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SECTION I  ï GENERAL  

DEFINITIONS  AND ABBREVIATIONS  

 

This Draft Letter of Offer uses certain definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when reading 

the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalized terms used in this Draft Letter of Offer is intended 

for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.  

 

Unless otherwise specified, the capitalized terms used in this Draft Letter of Offer shall have the meaning as defined 

hereunder. References to any legislations, acts, regulation, rules, guidelines, circulars, notifications, policies or clarifications 

shall be deemed to include all amendments, supplements or re-enactments and modifications thereto notified from time to 

time and any reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under such 

provision.  
 

Provided that terms used in the chapters titled ñIndustry Overviewò, ñSummary of this Draft Letter of Offerò, ñFinancial 

Informationò, ñStatement of Special Tax Benefitsò, ñOutstanding Litigation and Defaultsò and ñIssue Informationò on pages 

49, 17, 84, 45, 165 and 176 respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer, shall, unless indicated otherwise, have the meanings 

ascribed to such terms in the respective sections/ chapters. 

 

     Company Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

ñCompanyò, ñour Companyò, 

ñthe Companyò, ñthe Issuerò or 

ñVSILò 

Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at Bellad Bagewadi, 

Taluka Hukkeri, Belgaum ï 591 305, Karnataka, India. 

ñweò, ñusò, or ñourò Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company. 

ñAnnual Audited Financial 

Statementsò 

The audited financial statements of our Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 

prepared in accordance with IND AS which comprises the balance sheet as at March 

31, 2022, the statement of profit and loss, including other comprehensive income, the 

statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended 

March 31, 2022, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information read along with the 

report thereon. 

ñArticlesò / ñArticles of 

Associationò / ñAoAò 

Articles / Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time. 

ñAudit Committeeò The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Companyôs audit 

committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended (ñSEBI Listing Regulationsò) and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

ñAuditorò/ ñStatutory Auditorò/ 

ñPeer Review Auditorò 
Statutory and peer review auditor of our Company, namely M/s P.G. Ghali & Co. 
Chartered Accountants. 

ñBoardò/ ñBoard of    Directorsò Board of directors of our Company or a duly constituted committee thereof. 

ñChief Financial Officer / CFOò Sheshagiri Hanumantarao Kulkarni, the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. 

ñCompany Secretary and 

Compliance Officerò 

Priya Manoj Dedhia, the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of our 

Company. 

ñCorporate Social Responsibility   

Committee/ CSR Committeeò 

The committee of the Board of directors constituted as our Companyôs corporate social 

responsibility committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies      Act, 2013. 

For details, see ñOur Management and Organizational Structureò on page 80 of this 

Draft Letter of               Offer. 
ñDirector(s)ò The director(s) on the Board of our Company, unless otherwise specified. 

ñEquity Shareholderò A holder of Equity Shares 

ñEquity Sharesò Equity shares of our Company of face value of  2.00 each. 

ñExecutive Directorsò Executive Directors of our Company. 

ñIndependent Director(s)ò The Independent Director(s) of our Company, in terms of Section 2(47) and Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

ñKey Management Personnelò / 

ñKMPò 
Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the SEBI ICDR Regulations as described in the subsection titled ñOur Management 

and Organizational Structure ï Key Managerial Personnelò on page 82 of this Draft 

Letter of Offer.  
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ñLimited Reviewed 

Financial Informationò or 

ñLimited Reviewed 

Financial Statementsò 

The limited reviewed unaudited financial results dated February 9, 2023 for the nine 

months periods ended December 31, 2022, prepared in accordance with the Companies 

Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. For details, see ñFinancial Informationò on page 

84 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Materiality Policy Policy on determination of materiality of events adopted by our Company in 

accordance with Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

ñMemorandum of Associationò / 

ñMoAò 
Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time. 

ñNomination and 

Remuneration Committeeò 
The committee of the Board of Directors reconstituted as our Companyôs nomination 

and remuneration committee in accordance with Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

ñNon-Executive and Independent 

Directorò 
Non-Executive and Independent Directors of our Company, unless otherwise 

specified. 

ñNon-executive Directorsò Non-executive Directors of our Company. 

ñPromoter(s)ò The promoters of our Company, namely, Mr. Nikhil Umesh Katti, Ms. Sneha Nithin 

Dev, Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti, Mr. Lava Ramesh Katti, Ms. Jayashree Ramesh Katti, 

Ms. Sheela Umesh Katti and Mr. Ramesh Vishwanath Katti.  

ñPromoter Groupò Individuals forming part of promoter and promoter group in accordance with SEBI 

ICDR Regulations. 

ñRegistered Officeò The Registered Office of our Company located at Bellad Bagewadi, Taluk Hukkeri 

District, Belgaum-591305, Karnataka, India 

ñRegistrar of 

Companiesò/ ñRoCò 
Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, having its office at 'E' Wing, 2nd Floor, 

Kendriya Sadana, Kormangala, Banglore-560034, Karnataka. 

ñShareholders/ Equity 

Shareholdersò 
The Equity Shareholders of our Company, from time to time. 

ñStakeholdersô Relationship 

Committeeò 
The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Companyôs Stakeholdersô 

Relationship Committee in accordance with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations.  

 

Issue Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

2009 ASBA Circular, 2011 
ASBA Circular, 2013 ASBA 
Circular, 2020 ASBA Circular 
(Collectively called ñASBA 
Circulars) 

The SEBI circular SEBI/CFD /DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009 
The SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April  29, 2011, The SEBI circular 
CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 02, 2013, The SEBI circular 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/1/CIR/238/2020 dated December 08, 2020 

Abridged Letter of Offer Abridged letter of offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with respect to the 

Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
Allot/Allotment/Allotted Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue. 

Allotment Account The account opened with the Banker(s) to the Issue, into which the Application Money 

lying to the credit of the escrow account(s) and amounts blocked by Application 

Supported by Blocked Amount in the ASBA Account, with respect to successful 

Applicants will  be transferred on the Transfer Date in accordance with 
Section 40(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Allotment Advice Note, advice or intimation of Allotment sent to each successful Applicant who has been 

or is to be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue. 
Allotment Date Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to the Issue. 

Allottee(s) Person(s) who are Allotted Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Allotment. 

Applicant(s) / Investor(s) Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who make an application for the 

Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in terms of this Draft Letter of Offer, 
including an ASBA Investor. 
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Application Application made through (i) submission of the Application Form or plain paper 

Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic application 

through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA 

process, or (ii) filling the online Application Form available on R-WAP, to subscribe 

to the Rights Equity Shares at the Issue Price. 

Application Form Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form (including online application 

form available for submission of application at R-WAP facility or though the website 

of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process) used by an 

Applicant to make an application for the Allotment of 
Rights Equity Shares in this Issue. 

Application Money Aggregate amount payable in respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for in the 

Issue at the Issue Price. 

Application Supported by 

Blocked Amount/ASBA 

Application (whether physical or electronic) used by ASBA Applicants to make an 

Application authorizing a SCSB to block the Application Money in the ASBA 
Account 

ASBA Account Account maintained with a SCSB and specified in the Application Form or plain paper 

application, as the case may be, for blocking the amount mentioned in the Application 

Form or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders, as the 

case may be. 

ASBA Applicant / ASBA 

Investor 
As per the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 

2020, all investors (including renouncee) shall make an application for a rights issue 

only through ASBA facility. 

ASBA Bid A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modifications thereto as 

permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Banker(s) to the Issue Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank and the Refund Banks to the Issue. 

Bankers to the Issue Agreement Agreement to be entered into by and among our Company, the Registrar to the Issue, 

the Lead Manager and the Bankers to the Issue for collection of the Application Money 

from Applicants/Investors, transfer of funds to the Allotment Account and where 

applicable, refunds of the amounts collected from Applicants/Investors, on the terms 

and conditions thereof. 

Basis of Allotment The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful applicants 

in the Issue and which is described in chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò on page 176 

of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Composite Application Form 

(CAF) 
The application form used by eligible Equity Shareholders and renouncee(s), if any, to 

make an application for the issue and allotment of the Equity Shares in the Issue 

Consolidated Certificate The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted to each folio in 

case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who would request conversion of demat Equity 

Shares in physical form. 

Controlling Branches/ 

Controlling Branches of the 

SCSBs 

Such branches of SCSBs which coordinate Bids under the Issue with the LM, the 

Registrar and the Stock Exchange, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI 

at http://www.sebi.gov.in. 

Demographic Details Details of Investors including the Investorôs address, name of the Investorôs father/ 

husband, investor status, occupation and bank account details, where applicable. 

Designated SCSB Branches Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms submitted by ASBA 

Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in 

tmId=35, updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by 

SEBI from time to time. 

Designated Stock Exchange BSE Limited 

Depository(ies) NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as 

amended from time to time read with the Depositories Act, 1996. 

Draft Letter of 

Offer/DLOF/DLOF 
This draft letter of offer dated February 27, 2023 filed with SEBI and the Stock 

Exchanges. 

Escrow Collection Bank Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an issue 

and with whom Escrow Account(s) will be opened, in this case being State Bank of 

India. 

Eligible Equity Shareholders Existing Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date. Please note that the investors 

eligible to participate in the Issue exclude certain overseas shareholders. For further 

details, see chapter titled ñNotice to Investorsò on page 11 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in
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Issue / Rights Issue Issue of up to [ǒ] Equity Shares of face value of  2 each of our Company for cash at 

a price of  [ǒ] per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of  [ǒ] per Rights 

Equity Share) aggregating up to 12,500 Lakhs  on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders of our Company in the ratio of [ǒ] Rights Equity Shares for every [ǒ] 

Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company on the Record 

Date. 

Issue Agreement Issue Agreement dated February 23, 2023 between our Company and the Lead 

Manager, pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in relation to the Issue. 

Issue Closing Date [ǒ] 

Issue Material Collectively, the Draft Letter of offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the 

Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter, other applicable Issue material. 

Issue Opening Date [ǒ] 

Issue Period The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of 

both days, during which Applicants/Investors can submit their Applications, in 

accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Issue Price  [ǒ] per Rights Equity Share. 

Issue Proceeds Gross proceeds of the Issue. 

Issue Size Amount aggregating up to Rs. 12,500 Lakhs  

Lead Manager Corporate Capital Ventures Private Limited 

Letter of Offer/LOF The final letter of offer to be filed with the Stock Exchanges and SEBI. 

Monitoring Agency Monitoring Agency appointed for the purpose of the Issue namely ICRA Limited 

Monitoring Agency Agreement  Agreement dated February 07, 2023 entered into between our Company and the 

Monitoring Agency in relation to monitoring of Issue Proceeds. 

Net Proceeds Proceeds of the Issue less our Companyôs share of Issue related expenses. For further 

information about the Issue related expenses, see chapter titled ñObjects of the Issueò 

on page 40 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Non-Institutional Bidders or NIIs An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional Buyer as 

defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Off Market Renunciation The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring 

them through off market transfer through a depository participant in accordance with 

the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Depositories, from time 

to time, and other applicable laws. 

On Market Renunciation The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading them over the 

secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a registered stock broker in 

accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Stock 

Exchanges, from time to time, and other applicable laws, on or before [ǒ], [ǒ]. 

Project Establishment of 150 KLPD molasses-based distillery at Bellad Bagewadi, Karnataka. 

QIBs or Qualified 

Institutional Buyers 
Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1) (ss) of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. 

R-WAP Registrarôs web-based application platform accessible at www.bigshareonline.com  

instituted as an optional mechanism in accordance with SEBI circular bearing 

reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, SEBI 

circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 

24, 2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number 

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021 and SEBI circular 

bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2021, 

for accessing/submitting online Application Forms by resident Investors. 

Record Date Designated date for the purpose of determining the Equity Shareholders eligible to 

apply for Rights Equity Shares, being [ǒ]. 

Refund Bank(s) The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in this 

case being State Bank of India 

ñRegistrar to the Issueò 

/ñRegistrarò 
  Bigshare Services Private Limited 

 

Registrar Agreement Agreement dated January 23, 2023 entered into among our Company and the Registrar in 

relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Issue pertaining to the 

Issue. 

Renouncee(s) Person(s) who has/have acquired the Rights Entitlement from the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders on renunciation. 
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Renunciation Period The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights Entitlements 

which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date. Such period shall close on [ǒ], [ǒ] in 

case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that 

renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights 

Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue 

Closing Date. 

Retail Individual 

Bidders(s)/Retail Individual 

Investor(s)/ RII(s)/RIB(s) 

An individual Investor (including an HUF applying through Karta) who has applied 

for Rights Equity Shares and whose Application Money is not more than 

Rs. 200,000 in the Issue as defined under Regulation 2(1) (vv) of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. 

RE ISIN ISIN for Rights Entitlement i.e. [Å]. 

Rights Entitlement The number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled to 

in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholder 

on the Record Date, being [ǒ] Rights Equity Shares for [ǒ] Equity Shares held on [ǒ], 

[ǒ]. 
 

The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN: [ǒ] will be credited to demat account 

before the date of opening of the Issue, against the equity shares held by the Equity 

Shareholders as on the record date. 

Rights Entitlement Letter Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders. The 

Rights Entitlements are also accessible through the R-WAP facility and link for the 

same will  be available on the website of our Company. 
Rights Equity Shares Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue. 

SEBI Rights Issue  Circulars SEBI circular, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated 

January 22, 2020, as amended from time to time. 

Self-Certified Syndicate Banksò 

or ñSCSBs 

The banks registered with SEBI, offering services (i) in relation to ASBA (other than through 

UPI mechanism), a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&i ntmId=34

 or 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&i ntmId=35, 

as applicable, or such other website as updated from time to time, and 

(ii) in relation to ASBA (through UPI mechanism), a list of which is available on the website

 of SEBI at 

https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId 
=40 or such other website as updated from time to time 

Stock Exchanges Stock Exchange where the Equity Shares are presently listed, being BSE and NSE. 

Transfer Date The date on which the amount held in the escrow account(s) and the amount blocked 

in the ASBA Account will  be transferred to the Allotment Account, upon  finalization 

of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange. 

Wilful  Defaulter A wilful  defaulter or a fraudulent borrower, as defined under the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations. 

Working Day All days other than second and fourth Saturday of the month, Sunday or a public 

holiday, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business; provided 

however, with reference to (a) announcement of Price Band; and (b) Bid/Issue Period, 

Term Description the term Working Day shall mean all days, excluding Saturdays, 

Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for 

business; and (c) the time period between the Bid/Issue Closing Date and the listing of 

the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. ñWorking Dayò shall mean all trading days 

of the Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per the circulars 

issued by SEBI. 
 

 

 

Business and Industry related Terms or Abbreviations 

 

Term Description 

AAY  Antyodaya Anna Yojana 

Acres One Acre equals 4046.86 Square Meters 

Bagasse Fibrous pulpy material left over after sugarcane is extracted for its juice 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&i
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=40
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=40
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CACP Commission for Agricultural Costs and Prices 

Cane Area Reservation Every designated mill  is obligated to purchase from cane farmers within the cane 
reservation area, and conversely, farmers are bound to sell to the mill. 

Chiller Compressing Process of removing heat from a liquid via a vapourïcompression or absorption 
refrigeration cycle 

Co-generation Simultaneous production of heat and electricity 

Crushing Season The period as set by the state government each year during which sugarcane crushing 
should take place. 

Crystallization Nucleation and growth of crystals. 

DCS Distributed Control System 

DGFT Director General of Foreign Trade 

EMDEs Emerging Markets and Developing Economies 

ENA Extra Neutral Alcohol 

ESP Electro Static Precipitator 

FDI Foreign Direct Investment 

FMCG Fast Moving Consumer Goods 

FRP Fair and Remunerative Price 

G20 G20 is an international forum for governments and central bank governors 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

GST Goods and Service Tax 

Gunthas 40 Gunthas is equal to 1 Acre 

GW Giga Watt 

HESCOM Hubli Electricity Supply Company Limited 

IMARC Leading Market Research Company 

KL Kilo Litre 

KLPD Kilo Litre per Day 

KSBCL Karnataka State Beverages Company Limited 

KSPCB Karnataka State Pollution Control Board 

KWh Kilo Watt per Hour 

Ltrs. Litre / Litres 

Malt Malt is germinated cereal grains that have been dried in a process known as "malting" 

Mash Mixture of alcohol, water and bacteria used for manufacture of Vinegar 

Massecuite The mixture of crystals and syrup resulting from the crystallization process. 

MH Million Hectares 

Minimum Distance Criteria Under the Sugarcane Control Order, the central government has prescribed a minimum 

radial distance of 15 km between any two sugar mills. 

MMT Million Metric Tonnes 

Molasses The syrup separated from the crystals by Centrifuging used for producing alcohol 

MT Metric Tonnes 

MW Mega Watt 

MY Marketing Year 

NFSA National Food Security Act, 2013 

OECD Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development 

PCB Pollution Control Board 

Press-Mud Industrial Waste available from sugar mills 

QA / QC Quality Assurance / Quality Control 

RES (MNRE) Renewable Energy Sources (Ministry of New and Renewable Energy) 

SMP Statutory Minimum Price 

SPV Special Purpose Vehicle 

TCD Tonnes Crushed per Day 

TPDS Targeted Public Distribution System 

TPH Tonnes per Hour 

Water Scrubbing Process of biogas upgradation 

WEO World Economic Outlook 
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Conventional and General Terms or Abbreviations 

 

Term Description 

/Rs./ Rupees / INR Indian Rupees 

A/c Account 

AGM Annual General Meeting 

AIF Alternative Investment Fund as defined in and registered with SEBI under the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012   

AS/Accounting Standards Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

ASBA Application Supported by Blocked Amount 

AY Assessment Year 

BTI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994. 

BSE BSE Limited 

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate 

Category I Foreign 

Portfolio Investors / 

Category I FPIs 

FPIs who are registered with SEBI as ñCategory I Foreign Portfolio Investorsò under 

the                                        SEBI FPI Regulations. 

Category  II  foreign 
portfolio investor(s) / 
Category II FPIs 

FPIs who are registered as ñCategory II Foreign Portfolio Investorsò under the SEBI 

FPI Regulations 

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

CAO Chief Administrative Officer 

CFO Chief Financial Officer 

CIBIL  TransUnion Credit Information Bureau (India) Limited 

CIN Company Identification Number 

Client ID Client identification number of the Applicantôs beneficiary account 

 
Companies Act 

Unless specified otherwise, this would imply to the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 (to the extent notified) and /or Provisions of Companies Act, 1956 w.r.t. the sections 

which have not yet been replaced by the Companies Act, 2013 through any official 

notification. 

Companies Act, 1956 The Companies Act, 1956, as amended from time to time 

 
Companies Act, 2013 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent in force pursuant to the notification of the Notified 

Sections, along with the relevant rules, regulations, clarifications, circulars and 

notifications issued thereunder. 

CS Company Secretary 

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility 

CST Central Sales Tax 

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996 

DIN Director Identification Number 

DP Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act 

DP ID Depository Participantôs identification 

EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization 

ECS Electronic Clearing System 

EOGM / EGM Extraordinary General Meeting 

EMDEs Emerging Market and Developing Economies 

EPS Earnings Per Share 

Euro / ú Euro, the official currency of the European Union. 

FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non-Resident Account established in accordance with the 

FEMA 
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FDI Foreign Direct Investment 

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended from time to time, and the 

regulations framed there under 

FEMA Regulations The Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident 

Outside India) Regulations, 2017 

 
FIIs 

Foreign Institutional Investors (as defined under Foreign Exchange Management 

(Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident outside India) Regulations, 2000) 

registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India 

FPIs Foreign Portfolio Investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations 

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investor registered under the FVCI Regulations. 

FVCI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) 

Regulations, 2000 as amended.  

FY / Fiscal / Financial Year Period of twelve months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

GoI / Government The Government of India 

Gratuity Act The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

GST Goods & Services Tax 

HNI High Networth Individuals 

HUF Hindu Undivided Family(ies) 

ICAI  The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 

Ind AS Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 

Ind AS Rules Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 

India The Republic of India 

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India 

Insider Trading Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015, as amended from time to time 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended 

INR or  or Rs.  Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India. 

IT Information Technology 

I. T. Act / Income Tax 
Act 

Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time 

I. T. Department Income Tax Department, GoI. 

IPO Initial Public Offering 

ISIN International Securities Identification Number 

KM / Km / km Kilo Meter 

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate 

Limited Liability  
Partnership or LLP 

Limited Liability Partnership registered under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 

2008. 

Merchant Banker Merchant Banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant 

Bankers) Regulations, 1992 

MoF Ministry of Finance, Government of India 

MICR Magnetic ink character recognition 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

NA / N. A. Not Applicable 

NAV Net Asset Value 
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NECS National Electronic Clearing Service 

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer 

No. Number 

NoC No Objection Certificate 

NR or Non-Resident A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA, including an Eligible NRI and 

FII 

NRE Account Non-Resident External Account 

 
NRIs 

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and who is a citizen of India or 

a person of Indian origin, such term as defined under the Foreign Exchange Management 

(Deposit) Regulations, 2000. 

NRO Account Non-Resident Ordinary Account 

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited 

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

 
OCB/ Overseas Corporate Body 

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to 

the extent of at least 60.00% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which not less than 

60.00% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which 

was in existence on October 3, 2003 and immediately before such date had taken benefits 

under the general permission granted to OCBs under FEMA 

p.a. Per annum 

P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio 

PAN Permanent Account Number 

PAT Profit After Tax 

PBT Profit Before Tax 

PCB Pollution Control Board 

QA Quality Assurance 

QC Quality Check / Control 

R & D Research and Development 

RBI The Reserve Bank of India 

RONW Return on Net Worth 

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement 

SCRA Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from time to time 

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended from time to time 

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India 

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 

2012 

SEBI FPI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014 

SEBI FVCI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 

2000 

SEBI ICDR Regulations 
2018 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018, as applicable 

SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015/ 
SEBI Listing Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 notified on September 2, 2015, as amended from time 

to time. 

SEBI SAST Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 

Securities Act U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended 

STT Securities Transaction Tax 

TAN Tax Deduction Account Number allotted the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from 

time to time. 

TIN Taxpayers Identification Number 

TDS Tax Deducted at Source 
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UPI 

Unified Payment Interface, a payment mechanism that allows instant transfer of money 

between any two persons bank account using a payment address which uniquely  

identifies a personôs bank account 

US/United States United States of America 

USD/ US$/ $ United States Dollar, the official currency of the Unites States of America 

VAT Value added tax 

VCFs / Venture Capital Fund Foreign Venture Capital Funds (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996) registered with SEBI under applicable 

laws in India. 

w. r. t. With Respect To 

Y-O-Y Year-over-Year 
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS  

 

The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of offer, Abridged Letter of offer, CAF, Rights Entitlement Letter and 

the issue of the Rights Equity Shares and Rights Entitlements to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India may be restricted 

by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons, into whose possession this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of 

Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter may come, are required to inform themselves about 

the same and observe such restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders 

of our Company and will dispatch the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF and Rights 

Entitlement Letter to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have an address in India. Those overseas Shareholders who do not 

update the records with their Indian address, prior to the date on which we propose to dispatch the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter 

of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter, shall not be sent the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of 

Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter . No action has been or will be taken to permit this Issue 

in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Letter of Offer was filed with SEBI for 

dissemination purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Draft 

Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter may not be distributed in any 

jurisdiction, except in accordance with the legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Draft Letter of 

Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer ,the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter will not constitute an offer in those 

jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and in those circumstances the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of 

Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer ,the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter must be treated as sent for information only and should 

not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged 

Letter of Offer, the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or 

the Rights Entitlements, distribute in or send the same into the United States or any other jurisdiction where to do so would or 

might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer ,the 

CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter is received by any person in any such territory, or by their agent or nominee, they must not 

seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ 

Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter. Envelopes containing a CAF should not be dispatched from 

any jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares in this Issue 

must provide an Indian address. Any person who makes an application to acquire Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity 

Shares offered in this Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that he is authorised to acquire 

the Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in his 

jurisdiction. We, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or any other person acting on our behalf, reserve the right to treat any CAF 

as invalid where we believe that CAF is incomplete or acceptance of such CAF may infringe applicable legal or regulatory 

requirements and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such 

CAF. A Shareholder may not renounce his entitlement to any person resident in the United States or any other jurisdiction where 

to do so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations. Neither the delivery of the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter 

of Offer/Abridged Letter of Offer and the CAF nor any sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any implication 

that there has been no change in our Companyôs affairs from the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct 

as at any time subsequent to this date. 

  

The contents of the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer should not be construed as legal, tax or 

investment advice. Prospective Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result 

of the offer of Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements. As a result, each Investor should consult its own counsel, business 

advisor and tax advisor as to the legal, business, tax and related matters concerning the offer of Rights Equity Shares or Rights 

Entitlements. In addition, neither our Company nor the Lead Manager is making any representation to any offeree or purchaser 

of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements regarding the legality of an investment in the Rights Equity Shares or Rights 

Entitlements by such offeree or purchaser under any applicable laws or regulations. 

 

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX OR 

INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR 

LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF THE OFFER RIGHTS OF EQUI TY SHARES OR 

RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS.  

 

ACCORDINGLY, EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX 

ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE OFFER OF 

EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, NEITHER OUR COMPANY NOR T HE LEAD MANAGER IS MAKING ANY 

REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE 

LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER 

ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.  
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NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES 

 

The Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements have not been recommended by any U.S. federal or state securities commission 

or regulatory authority. Furthermore, the foregoing authorities have not confirmed the accuracy or determined the adequacy of 

the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter. Any representation 

to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States. The rights and securities of our Company, including the Rights Equity 

Shares or Rights Entitlements have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act, 1933, as amended 

(Securities Act), or any U.S. state securities laws and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United 

States of America or the territories or possessions thereof (United States or U.S.) or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. 

persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act (Regulation S), except in a transaction exempt from the registration 

requirements of the Securities Act.  

 

The rights referred to in the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer are being offered in India, but not 

in the United States. The offering to which the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer ,the CAF and 

Rights Entitlement Letter relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any securities or rights 

for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the said securities or rights. Accordingly, the 

Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer , the CAF and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be forwarded 

to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time. Neither our Company nor the Lead Manager nor any person acting on 

their behalf will accept subscriptions from any person or his agent, if to whom an offer is made, would require registration of 

this Letter of Offer with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.  

 

Neither our Company nor any person acting on behalf of our Company will accept subscriptions or renunciation from any 

person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on behalf of our Company has 

reason to believe is, either a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S) or otherwise in the United States when the buy order is 

made. Envelopes containing CAF should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from the United States 

or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer under the Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged 

Letter of Offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements and wishing to hold such Rights 

Equity Shares in registered form must provide an address for registration of the Rights Equity Shares in India. Our Company is 

making this issue of Rights Equity Shares on a rights basis to the Equity Shareholders of our Company and the Draft Letter of 

Offer/ Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF will be dispatched to Equity Shareholders who have an Indian address.  

 

Any person who acquires rights and the Rights Equity Shares, will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and 

agreed, (i) that it is not and that at the time of subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, 

in the United States when the buy order is made, (ii) it is not a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S), and does not have a 

registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the United States, and (iii) is authorized to acquire the rights and the Rights 

Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.  

 

Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any CAF which: (i) does not include the certification set out in the CAF to 

the effect that the subscriber is not a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S), and does not have a registered address (and is not 

otherwise located) in the United States and is authorized to acquire the rights and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with 

all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the 

United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that CAF is incomplete 

or acceptance of such CAF may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound to 

allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such CAF. 

 

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States. 

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and Exchange 

Commission (the ñUS SECò), any state securities commission in the United States or any other US regulatory authority, nor 

have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity 

Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Letter of Offer.  Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the 

United States. 

 

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Lead Manager are not liable 

for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this Draft 

Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of Rights Equity 

Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations. 

 

THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR COMPANY 

OR FROM LEAD MANAGER OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED 

OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.  
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ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES  

 

The Company is a Public Limited (Listed) Company under the laws of India and all the Directors and all Executive Officers are 

residents of India. It may not be possible or may be difficult for investors to affect service of process upon the Company or these 

other persons outside India or to enforce against them in courts in India, judgments obtained in courts outside India. India is not 

a party to any international treaty in relation to the automatic recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments. 

 

However, recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Sections 13, 14 and 44A of the Code of Civil 

Procedure, 1908, as amended (the ñCivil Procedure Codeò). Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code provides that where a 

certified copy of a decree of any superior court (within the meaning of that section) in any country or territory outside India 

which the Government of India has by notification declared to be a reciprocating territory, is filed before a district court in India, 

such decree may be executed in India as if the decree has been rendered by a district court in India. Section 44A of the Civil 

Procedure Code is applicable only to monetary decrees or judgments not being in the nature of amounts payable in respect of 

taxes or other charges of a similar nature or in respect of fines or other penalties. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code does 

not apply to arbitration awards even if such awards are enforceable as a decree or judgment. Among others, the United Kingdom, 

Singapore, Hong Kong and the United Arab Emirates have been declared by the Government of India to be reciprocating 

territories within the meaning of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code. 

 

The United States has not been declared by the Government of India to be a reciprocating territory for the purposes of Section 

44A of the Civil Procedure Code. Under Section 14 of the Civil Procedure Code, an Indian court shall, on production of any 

document purporting to be a certified copy of a foreign judgment, presume that the judgment was pronounced by a court of 

competent jurisdiction unless the contrary appears on the record; but such presumption may be displaced by proving want of 

jurisdiction. 

 

A judgment of a court in any non-reciprocating territory, such as the United States, may be enforced in India only by a suit upon 

the judgment subject to Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, and not by proceedings in execution. Section 13 of the Civil 

Procedure Code, which is the statutory basis for the recognition of foreign judgments (other than arbitration awards), states that 

a foreign judgment shall be conclusive as to any matter directly adjudicated upon between the same parties or between parties 

under whom they or any of them claim litigating under the same title except where: 

 

¶ The judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction; 

¶ The judgment has not been given on the merits of the case; 

¶ The judgment appears on the face of the proceedings to be founded on an incorrect view of international law 

¶ or a refusal to recognize the law of India in cases where such law is applicable; 

¶ The proceedings in which the judgment was obtained are opposed to natural justice; 

¶ The judgment has been obtained by fraud; and/or 

¶ The judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India. 

 

A suit to enforce a foreign judgment must be brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment in the same 

manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the 

same basis as a foreign court if an action is brought in India. In addition, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign 

judgments if it considered the amount of damages awarded as excessive or inconsistent with public policy or if the judgments 

are in breach of or contrary to Indian law. A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior 

approval from the Reserve Bank of India to repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to execution of such judgment. Any 

judgment in a foreign currency would be converted into Rupees on the date of such judgment and not on the date of payment 

and any such amount may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable laws. The Company cannot predict whether a 

suit brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a timely manner or be subject to considerable delays. 
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 

Certain Conventions  

All references to ñIndiaò contained in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions and 

all references herein to the ñGovernmentò, ñIndian Governmentò, ñGoIò, ñCentral Governmentò or the ñState Governmentò are 

to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable. 
 

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Draft Letter of Offer to the óUSô or óU.S.ô or 

the óUnited Statesô are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.  
 

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time (ñISTò). Unless indicated 

otherwise, all references to a year in this Draft Letter of Offer are to a calendar year.  

 

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever applicable.  

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this Draft Letter 

of Offer.  
 

Financial Data  

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this Draft Letter of 

Offer has been derived from our Financial Statements. For details, please see ñFinancial Informationò on page 84 of this Draft 

Letter of Offer. Our Companyôs financial year commences on April 01 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all 

references to a particular financial year, unless stated otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that 

year.  

 

The GoI has adopted the Indian accounting standards (ñInd ASò), which are converged with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards of the International Accounting Standards Board (ñIFRSò) and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (the ñInd AS Rulesò). The Financial Statements of 

our Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS and recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 

34 prescribed under the Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 33 of SEBI Listing Regulations. Our Company 

publishes its financial statements in Indian Rupees. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the 

financial disclosures presented in this Draft Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. 

 

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to 

rounding off and unless otherwise specified all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures. Our Company has 

presented all numerical information in this Draft Letter of Offer in ñlakhò units or in whole numbers where the numbers have 

been too small to represent in lakh. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000.  

 

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation of the financial 

information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also explain those differences or quantify their impact on 

the financial data included in this Draft Letter of Offer, and you are urged to consult your own advisors regarding such differences 

and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Draft Letter of 

Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the readerôs level of familiarity with Indian accounting 

policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with 

these accounting principles and regulations on our financial disclosures presented in this Draft Letter of Offer should accordingly 

be limited. For further information, see chapter titled ñFinancial Informationò on page 84 of this Draft Letter of Offer.  

 

Certain figures contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounded off 

adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two decimals. However, where any 

figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded off to other than two decimal points in their 

respective sources, such figures appear in this Draft Letter of Offer rounded-off to such number of decimal points as provided in 

such respective sources. In this Draft Letter of Offer, (i) the sum or percentage change of certain numbers may not conform 

exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to 

the total figure given for that column or row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off.  
 

Currency and Units of Presentation  

All references to:  

Å ñRupeesò or ñ ò or ñINRò or ñRs.ò are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India;  

Å ñUSDò or ñUS$ò or ñ$ò are to United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America; and  

Å ñEuroò or ñúò are to Euros, the official currency of the European Union.  
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Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Draft Letter of Offer in ñlakhò or ñLacò units. One lakh 

represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000. All the numbers in the document have been presented in lakh or in 

whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to present in lakh. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in chapters titled 

ñRisk Factorsò, ñOur Businessò, ñManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operationò 

and elsewhere in this Draft Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated based on our Audited Financial 

Statement.  

 

Exchange Rates  

This Draft Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have been presented 

solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as a representation that these 

currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate or at all.  

 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee 

and other foreign currencies: 

 

Currency Exchange rate as on 

December 30, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

1 USD  82.78 75.80 73.53  75.38 

1 Euro  88.14 84.65 86.10  83.04  

(Source: RBI reference rate)  

(Source: www.rbi.org.in and www.fbil.org.in)  

Industry and Market Data  

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Draft Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from publicly 

available information as well as industry publications and sources. 

 

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from publicly available 

documents from various sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their 

reliability cannot be assured. Although we believe the industry and market data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is reliable, it 

has not been independently verified by us, the LM or any of its affiliates or advisors. The data used in these sources may have 

been reclassified by us for the purposes of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be comparable. Such data involves 

risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in 

chapter titled ñRisk Factorsò on page 19 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based 

solely on such information.  

 

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the readerôs 

familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard data gathering 

methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is conducted, and methodologies and assumptions may vary 

widely among different industry sources. 

 

 

 

  

http://www.fbil.org.in/


16 
 

FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS  

 

All statements contained in this Draft Letter of Offer that are not statements of historical facts shall constitute forward-looking 

statements. All statements regarding our expected financial condition and results of operations, business, objectives, strategies, 

plans, goals and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our 

business strategy, our revenue and profitability, planned projects and other matters discussed in this Draft Letter of Offer 

regarding matters that are not historical facts. These forward-looking statements and any other projections contained in this Draft 

Letter of Offer (whether made by us or any third party) are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and 

other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, 

performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections. 

These forward-looking statements can generally be identified by words or phrases such as ñwillò, ñaimò, ñwill likely resultò, 

ñbelieveò, ñexpectò, ñwill continueò, ñanticipateò, ñestimateò, ñintendò, ñplanò, ñcontemplateò, ñseek toò, ñfutureò, ñobjectiveò, 

ñgoalò, ñprojectò, ñshouldò, ñwill pursueò and similar expressions or variations of such expressions. Important factors that could 

cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include but are not limited to: 

¶ general economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional and national and 

international economies; 

¶ inability to identify or acquire new clients; 

¶ our ability to successfully implement strategy, growth and expansion plans and technological initiatives; 

¶ our ability to respond to technological changes; 

¶ our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel; 

¶ the effect of wage pressures, hiring patterns and the time required to train and productively utilize new employees; 

¶ general social and political conditions in India which have an impact on our business activities or investments; 

¶ potential mergers, acquisitions restructurings and increased competition; 

¶ occurrences of natural disasters or calamities affecting the areas in which we have operations; 

¶ market fluctuations and industry dynamics beyond our control; 

¶ changes in the competition landscape; 

¶ our ability to finance our business growth and obtain financing on favourable terms; 

¶ our ability to manage our growth effectively; 

¶ our ability to compete effectively, particularly in new markets and businesses; 

¶ changes in laws and regulations relating to the industry in which we operate changes in government policies and 

regulatory actions that apply to or affect our business; 

¶ developments affecting the Indian economy; and 

¶ inability to meet our obligations, including repayment, financial and other covenants under our debt financing 

arrangements. 

For a further discussion of factors that could cause our current plans and expectations and actual results to differ, please refer 

chapter titled ñRisk Factorsò on page 19 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Forward looking statements reflect views as of the date of 

this Draft Letter of Offer and are not a guarantee of future performance. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only 

estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could 

materially differ from those that have been estimated. Neither our Company/our Directors nor the Lead Manager, nor any of its 

affiliates/advisers have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date 

hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance 

with SEBI requirements, our Company and the Lead Manager will ensure that investors in India are informed of material 

developments until such time as the listing and trading permission is granted by the Stock Exchange. 
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SUMMARY OF DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER  

 

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Draft Letter of Offer, and should be read in conjunction with and 

is qualified by more detailed information appearing in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the chapters titled ñRisk 

Factorsò, ñThe Issueò, ñCapital Structureò, ñObjects of the Issueò, ñOur Businessò, ñIndustry Overviewò, ñOutstanding 

Litigation and Defaultsò and ñTerms of the Issueò on pages 19, 32, 38, 40, 57, 49, 165 and 176 respectively of this Draft 

Letter of Offer. 

 

1. Summary of Business  

We are an integrated sugar and other allied products manufacturing company operating from Belgaum District in the State 

of Karnataka, which is designated as one of the ñHigh Recovery Zonesò for sugar production by Government of India. 

We operate a single location sugar unit having licensed crushing capacity of 11,000 TCD. In addition to sugar, we also 

manufacture other allied products like Rectified Spirits, Extra-Neutral Spirits, Vinegar, Compost, Carbon dioxide (CO2), 

etc. and are further engaged in the generation of Power for captive consumption as well as external sale. Our business can 

hence be broken up into four main segments namely Sugar, Co-Generation, Distillery and Vinegar. 

 

In the year 2001, we commenced operations of manufacture of Distillery products such as Ethanol, Rectified Spirit and 

Extra Neutral Spirit. In the year 2006, our Company implemented backward integration and began commercial operations 

for Sugar manufacture from sugarcane, along with Co-Generation capabilities. Currently our integrated unit processes 

sugarcanes to produce sugar and the by-products are used to generate electricity for captive use and commercial sale, 

manufacture rectified spirit, ENA, Vinegar, Press-mud and Compost. Over the years, we have expanded the production / 

manufacturing capacities of all our products. 

 

2. Objects of the Issue  

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in the manner set out in the following table: 

                                                                                                                                                     (Rs.  in Lakhs)  

Particulars Amount 

Establishment of 150 KLPD Molasses Based Distillery at Bellad Bagewadi 12,195 

General Corporate Purposes* [ǒ] 

Total Net proceeds** [ǒ] 

* Subject to the finalization of the basis of Allotment and the allotment of the Rights Equity Shares. The amount utilized for general 

corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. 

** Assuming full subscription and Allotment with respect to the Rights Equity Shares. #Rounded off to two decimal places. 

 

For further details, please see chapter titled ñObjects of the Issueò beginning on page 40 of this Draft Letter of Offer.  

3. Intention and extent of participation by Promoter and Promoter Group 

The objects of the Issue involve financing of capital expenditure for setting up a 150 KLPD Molasses based Distillery at 

Bellad Bagewadi, the commercial operations of which are tentatively to begin from January, 2024. Further, Mr. Nikhil 

Umesh Katti, Ms. Sneha Nithin Dev, Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti, Mr. Lava Ramesh Katti, Ms. Jayashree Ramesh Katti, Ms. 

Sheela Umesh Katti and Mr. Ramesh Vishwanath Katti our Promoters and member of our Promoter Group have vide their 

letter dated February 24, 2023 (the ñSubscription Letterò) undertaken to subscribe jointly and/ or severally to the full extent 

of his Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlements renounced in their favour by any 

Promoter and the member of Promoter Group of our Company. Further, solely in the event of an under-subscription of this 

Issue, our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group may subscribe to, either individually or jointly and/ or severally 

with any other Promoters or member of  the  Promoter  Group,  for additional Rights Equity Shares, subject  to  compliance 

with the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Takeover Regulations and other applicable laws.  

 

The additional subscription, if any, by our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group shall be made subject to such 

additional subscription not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of our Company falling below the level 

prescribed in SEBI Listing Regulations and SCRR. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue. 
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4. Summary of Outstanding Litigation   

A summary of the pending tax proceedings and other material litigations involving our Company is provided below:   

Type of Proceedings Number of cases Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 

Cases against our Company 

Issues involving moral turpitude or criminal liability  1 NA 

Material violations of Statutory Regulations  8 4,522 

Economic Offences against the Company NIL  NIL  

Tax proceedings:  

E-proceedings 7 Not Ascertainable 

TDS 1 0.31 

Other pending matters which, if they result in an adverse outcome would materially and adversely affect the 

operations or the financial position of our Company: 

Against our Company 15 1,062 

By our Company 1        252 

For further details, please refer the chapter titled ñOutstanding Litigation and Defaultsò on page 165 of this Draft Letter 

of Offer. 

 

5. Risk Factors  

Please see the chapter titled ñRisk Factorsò beginning on page 19 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

6. Summary of Contingent Liabilities  

Following are the details as per the Audited Financial Information as at and for the Financial Years ended on March 31, 

2021 and 2022: 

            (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 

2022 

For the year ended March 31, 

2021 

a) Court Cases 1,315.08 1,315.08 

b) Bank Guarantee 218.37 144.26 

c) EPCG Export Obligation 289.99 289.99 

Total  1,823.44 1,749.33 

* In respect of the above matters, future cash outflows, in respect of contingent liabilities are determinable only by 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.  

 

For further details, please see the chapter titled ñFinancial Informationò at page 84 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

7. Summary of Related Party Transactions  

For details regarding our related party transactions for nine-month period ended December 31 2022 and the Fiscal 2022, 

please see the chapter titled ñFinancial Informationò at page 84 of this Draft Letter of Offer.  

 

8. Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration other than cash 

Our Company has not made any issuances of Equity Shares in the last one year for consideration other than cash.  

 

9. Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year 

There has been no split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year. 

 

10. Our Promoter 

The Promoters of our Company are Mr. Nikhil Umesh Katti, Ms. Sneha Nithin Dev, Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti, Mr. Lava 

Ramesh Katti, Ms. Jayashree Ramesh Katti, Ms. Sheela Umesh Katti and Mr. Ramesh Vishwanath Katti. 

 

11. Our Promoter Group  

The Promoter Group of our Company comprises of Mr. Basavaraj S Uttur, Mr. Satish Mahalingappa Ghuli, Mr. Ravindra 

Shrikant Katti, Mr. Yuvaraj Chunamure, Mr. Suhas Mahalingappa Ghuli, Mr. Abhinandan Dhanapal Khemalapure and 

Mr. Ramesh Shiralkar. Ms. Padmaja Katti part of our promoter group since deceased, but her shareholding is yet to be 

transferred to her nominee/s. 
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SECTION II - RISK FACTORS 

 

An investment in Rights Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider all the information 

in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in the 

Rights Equity Shares. If one, or any combination, of the following risks or other risks which are not currently known or 

are now deemed immaterial actually occurs or were to occur, our business, results of operations, financial condition and 

prospects could suffer and the trading price of the Rights Equity Shares could decline and you may lose all or part of your 

investment. Unless specified in the relevant risk factor below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial implication 

of any of the risks mentioned below. Further, some events may be material collectively rather than individually.  

 

We have described the risks and uncertainties that our management believes are material but the risks set out in this Draft 

Letter of Offer may not be exhaustive and additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us, or which we 

currently deem to be immaterial, may arise or may become material in the future. In making an investment decision, 

prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us and the terms of the Issue, including the merits and the 

risks involved. 

 

Prospective investors should consult their tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular consequences to you of an 

investment in the Issue. This Draft Letter of Offer also contains forward-looking statements, which refer to future events 

that may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which may be beyond our control, 

and which may cause the actual results to be materially different from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking 

statements. For further details, see ñForward Looking Statementsò on page 16 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this section is derived from our Companyôs audited financial 

statements as of and for the nine months period ended December 31, 2022 and audited financial statements as of and for 

the year ended March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020. 

 

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial or other 

implications of any of the risks described in this section. Unless the context requires otherwise, the financial information 

of our Company has been derived from the Financial Information, prepared in accordance with Ind AS and the Companies 

Act and in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

Materiality: 

 

The Risk Factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for 

determining the materiality of Risk Factors: 

 

¶ Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively; 

¶ Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and 

¶ Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in future. 

 

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable have been disclosed in the risk 

factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and hence, the same 

has not been disclosed in such risk factors. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading 

and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk over another. 
 

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are due 

to rounding off. 
 

In this section, unless the context requires otherwise, any reference to ñweò, ñusò or ñourò refers to Vishwaraj Sugar 

Industries Limited. 
 

The risk factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding. 

 

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS  

 

BUSINESS RELATED RISKS 

 

1. We have in the past, made certain issuances and allotments of our equity shares which may not be in compliance 

with the applicable provisions and rules of the Companies Act, 1956. 
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During the period October 01, 2007 to March 31, 2008, we had made certain allotments with an aggregate of 9,564 Equity 

Shares of  1,000/- each. The said allotments were made in 43 different tranches, wherein the number of allottees was 

below the threshold limit of 50 in each individual allotment (ñcollectively the ñStated Allotmentsò). Secondly in 

compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, we had allotted 5,20,100 Equity Shares of  10/- 

each to VSL Shareholders Welfare Trust on December 10, 2010. These shares were held by the trust for a period of around 

3 years and subsequently transferred to 9,671 persons/farmers in FY 2013-14 (ñStated Transfersò).  

 

For further information, see ñCapital Structure ï Notes to Capital Structureò on page 38 of this Draft Letter of Offer. We 

have been given to understand that pursuant to the provisions of the then applicable Companies Act, 1956 and the recent 

judicial pronouncements, any invitation or offer to subscribe for shares made to 50 persons or more in any Financial Year, 

may be perceived as a Public Offer. Hence, the Stated Allotments and the Stated Transfer may not have been in compliance 

with the provisions governing public offerings, including, inter alia, issuance and registration of a prospectus. Pursuant to 

a press release dated November 30, 2015 and circulars no. CIR/CFD/DIL3/18/2015 dated December 31, 2015 and May 3, 

2016 (collectively, the ñSEBI Circularò), SEBI has provided that companies involved in issuance of securities to more than 

49 persons but up to 200 persons in a Fiscal Year may avoid penal action subject to fulfilment of certain conditions. These 

conditions include the provision of an option to the current holders of the equity shares allotted to surrender such equity 

shares at an exit price not less than the amount of subscription money paid along with 15% interest per annum or such 

higher return as promised to investors. While we have made allotments to more than 200 individuals in FY 2007-08 and 

we have registered the transfer to more than 200 individuals in FY 2013-14, recognizing the intent of SEBI through the 

SEBI Circular, our Board, in its meeting held on August 31, 2017, voluntarily authorized our Promoters to provide an exit 

offer to those shareholders (ñEligible Shareholdersò and such exit offers, the ñExit Offerò) who held, as on a specified 

record date (a) Equity Shares allotted by the Company through the Stated Allotments (including through split of the face 

value of the Stated Shares), and/ or (b) Equity Shares held by persons on account of the Transferred Shares, acquired either 

through direct allotment / transfer or secondary acquisition. Subsequently, invitations were issued through Offer Letter to 

all the relevant Eligible Shareholders to offer the stated Equity Shares held by them on the record date for sale to our 

Promoters at a purchase price calculated in accordance with the SEBI Circulars. All the formalities pertaining to the above 

have been completed and the relevant confirmations and certificate of the same have been submitted to SEBI as per 

procedure. We have also e-filed an application on December 19, 2017 with the RoC, as regards the Stated Allotments and 

the Stated Transfers, seeking to compound any breach of the Companies Act, 1956 on the grounds that (a) the non-

compliances with the Companies Act, 1956 were unintentional and inadvertent, and (b) equity shares were 

allotted/transferred primarily to farmers with the intent of providing them with a meaningful engagement with our 

Company and granting them sustained benefits of equity interests in our Company, requesting the RoC to compound the 

offences under Section 441 of the Companies Act, 2013. By an order dated October 31, 2018, the Honôble NCLT 

(Bengaluru Bench) rejected our petition due to it being premature and leaving the matter to SEBI to decide the issue in 

accordance with law at the appropriate time. Further, there was no order as to costs. We cannot guarantee that we may not 

be penalised by the Honôble NCLT and that SEBI may not initiate appropriate proceedings for violating public issue norms 

including adjudication proceedings against the Company. Also, we may be subject to complaints in the future regarding 

the said violations. If any of the above events were to occur, we have to divert substantial resources including our 

managementôs concentration on such proceedings or complaints or both. Any such proceeding or action or any adverse 

order may result in fines, penalties, payment of additional amounts and potentially criminal liability and adversely affect 

our Companyôs ability to raise funds, its reputation, financial condition, results of operations and the trading prices of the 

Equity Shares. Further, our Promoters, namely, Late Mr. Umesh Katti and Mr. Nikhil Katti (ñAcquirer Promotersò) had 

undertaken to redress any complaints received by them in future regarding the Exit Offers and any such complaint may 

result in our Acquirer Promoters to devote substantial time to such complaints and their redressal and may also involve 

financial penalties and / or fines. 

 

2. Our Company proposes to establish a 150 KLPD plant at the existing factory site of the company in Belgaum. We 

cannot assure you that the proposed manufacturing unit will become operational as scheduled, or at all, or operate as 

efficiently as planned. If we are unable to commission our new manufacturing unit in a timely manner or without cost 

overruns, it may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

In addition to our existing 100 KLPD manufacturing unit of Ethanol in Bellad-Bagewadi in Karnataka, we are in the 

process of setting up another manufacturing unit having aggregate installed capacity of 150 KLPD of Ethanol. The 

commercial production of the said manufacturing unit is expected to begin by January, 2024.  

 

Our expansion plan may be subject to delays and other risks, among other things, unforeseen engineering or technical 

problems, disputes with workers, force majeure events, unanticipated cost increases or changes in scope and delays in 

obtaining government approvals and consents. Additionally, we may face risks in commissioning the proposed unit 

including but not limited to, delays in the construction of our proposed manufacturing unit, problems with its facilities or 

for other reasons, our proposed manufacturing unit does not function as efficiently as intended, or utilisation of the 
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proposed unit is not optimal, we may not be able to take additional orders to produce anticipated or desired revenue as 

planned any of which could result in delays, cost overruns or the termination of the project. 

 

In the event of any delay in the schedule of implementation of our proposed manufacturing unit or if we are unable to 

complete the project as per the scheduled time, it could lead to revenue loss. If our proposed project is not commissioned 

at the scheduled time, our Company may face cash crunch to repay the interest obligations. Further, it cannot be assured 

that all potential delays could be mitigated and that we will be able to prevent any cost over-runs and any loss of profits 

resulting from such delays, shortfalls and disruptions. As a result, our business, financial condition, results of operations 

and prospects could be materially and adversely affected. 

 

3. We intend to utilize the Net Proceeds for funding our capital expenditure requirements for setting up the Project. 

Our proposed Project is subject to the risk of unanticipated delays in implementation and cost overruns. Any such 

unanticipated delays in implementation and cost overruns of the Project may have an adverse impact on our operations, 

reputation and cash flows.  

 

We intend to utilize the Net Proceeds for funding capital expenditure towards Project. For details, see chapter titled 

ñObjects of the Issueò on page 40 of this Draft Letter of Offer. The Project is proposed to be financed through Net Proceeds 

of this Issue and internal accruals. There can be no assurance that we will be able to complete the installation of the Project 

within estimated time and cost without any cost overruns. The costs of installation of the Project may escalate or vary 

based on external factors which may not be in our control. Additionally, in the event of any delay in receipt of various 

approvals in relation to the Project in a timely manner, occurrence of any force majeure events etc., the proposed schedule 

of implementation and deployment of the Net Proceeds may be extended or may vary accordingly. Further, our capital 

expenditure plans remain subject to the potential problems and uncertainties that the Project may face including cost 

overruns or delays. There can be no assurance that the proposed Project will be completed as planned or on schedule, and 

if it is not completed in a timely manner, or at all, our budgeted costs for the Project may be insufficient to meet our 

proposed capital expenditure requirements. If our Project cost significantly exceeds the estimated cost of the Project, we 

may not be able to achieve the intended economic benefits of such capital expenditure. 

 

4. We have contingent liabilities, and our financial condition could be adversely affected if any of these contingent 

liabilities materializes. 

 

As of March 31, 2022, contingent liabilities disclosed in the notes to our Audited Financial Statements aggregated to Rs. 

1,823.44 lakhs. The detail of the Contingent Liabilities that have been disclosed as of March 31, 2022 are set forth below:  

            (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2022 

a) Court Cases 1,315.08 

b) Bank Guarantee 218.37 

c) EPCG Export Obligation 289.99 

Total 1,823.44 
* In respect of the above matters, future cash outflows, in respect of contingent liabilities are determinable only by occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.  

 

In the event that any of these contingent liabilities materialise, our financial conditions may be adversely affected. 

 

5. Some of our Promoters may be interested in  companies or  entities  which  are  in  the  same  line  of business as us. 

. 

Some of our Promoters, are interested in other companies or entities, as directors or shareholders or otherwise, which are 

engaged in a similar line of business as compared to ours. Further there is no assurance that our Promoters will not provide 

competitive services or otherwise compete in business lines in which we are already present or will enter into in future. 

Such factors may have an adverse effect on the results of our operations and financial condition.  

 

6. We operate in a competitive business environment. Competition from existing players and new entrants and 

consequent pricing pressures could have a material adverse effect on our business growth and prospects, financial 

condition, and results of operations. 

 

We face huge competition in our industry from the existing players and new entrants especially producers of sugar. If there 

is a change in trend and increase in demand for sugar, it may put pressures on pricing, product quality, turnaround time, 

order size etc., which may put strain on our profit margins. Failure to compete with other producers may have adverse 

effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. 
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7. We require various licences and approvals for undertaking our business and if we fail to obtain, maintain, or renew 

our statutory and regulatory licenses, permits and approvals required to operate our business, our business and results 

of operations may be adversely affected. 

 

Our operations are subject to government regulations, and we are required to obtain and maintain several statutory and 

regulatory permits, approvals, and consents under central, state, and local government rules in India, generally for our 

business and each of the manufacturing facilities. Further, certain approvals for our manufacturing facilities are required 

to be applied or renewed on an ongoing basis. The approvals required by us are subject to numerous conditions and we 

cannot assure you that these would not be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged noncompliance 

with any terms or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action.  

 

For the Project, Environmental Clearance has been obtained and we may be required to obtain certain other approvals and 

permissions for undertaking the Project. The details of such approvals and permissions which will  be required for the 

installation and operation of the Project and the status of receipt of such approvals are disclosed in the chapter titled 

ñGovernment and Other Statutory Approvalsò on page 168 of this Draft Letter of Offer. The Issuer may be unable to obtain 

such approvals/consents or renew such approvals within the stipulated time. Additionally, any historical or future failure 

to comply with the terms and conditions of the existing regulatory or statutory approvals may cause the Issuer to lose or 

become unable to renew such approvals. Any delay in obtaining or renewing approvals, as applicable, in a timely manner 

may delay the installation of the Project in accordance with the Schedule of Implementation which may in turn adversely 

impact our reputation, operations and cash flows. 

 

8. The introduction of additional government control or newly implemented laws and regulations, depending on the 

nature and extent thereof and our ability to make corresponding adjustments, may adversely affect our business, results 

of operations and financial condition.  

 

Decisions taken by regulators concerning economic policies or goals that are inconsistent with our interests could adversely 

affect our results of operations. These laws and regulations and the way in which they are implemented and enforced may 

change from time to time and there can be no assurance that future legislative or regulatory changes will not have an 

adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. If there is any failure by us to 

comply with the applicable regulations or if the regulations governing our business are amended, we may incur increased 

costs, be subject to penalties, have our approvals and permits revoked or suffer a disruption in our operations, any of which 

could adversely affect our business. In case we fail to comply with these requirements, or a regulator alleges we have not 

complied with these requirements, we may be subject to penalties and compounding proceedings. 

 

9. Any downgrade in our credit ratings may increase interest rates for refinancing our borrowings, which would 

increase our cost of borrowings, and adversely affect our ability to borrow on a competitive basis. 

 

Credit ratings reflect the opinions of ratings agencies on our financial strength, operating performance, strategic position 

and ability to meet our obligations. We have received ratings from rating agencies, any downgrade in our credit ratings 

may result in an increase in the interest rates for refinancing our borrowings, which would increase our cost of borrowings, 

and impact our ability to borrow on a competitive basis. Further, any downgrade in our credit ratings may also trigger an 

event of default or acceleration of repayment of certain of our borrowings. If any of these risks materialise, it could have 

a material adverse effect on our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations. 

 

10. Our Company is a party to certain legal proceedings. Any adverse decision in such proceedings may have a material 

adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

Our Company is a party to certain legal proceedings. These legal proceedings are pending at different levels of adjudication 

before various courts, tribunals and forums. Details of the proceedings involving our Company as on the date of this Draft 

Letter of Offer along with the amount involved, to the extent quantifiable, based on the materiality policy for litigations, 

as approved by the Company in its Board meeting held on November 7, 2022 are given in chapter titled ñOutstanding 

Litigations and Defaultsò on page 165 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

There can be no assurance that these litigations will be decided in in favour of our Company, respectively, and consequently 

it may divert the attention of our management and Promoters and waste our corporate resources and we may incur 

significant expenses in such proceedings and may have to make provisions in our financial statements, which could increase 

our expenses and liabilities. If such claims are determined against us, there could be a material adverse effect on our 

reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations, which could adversely affect the trading price of our 

Equity Shares. For the details of the cases filed by and against our Company please refer the chapter titled ñOutstanding 

Litigations and Defaultsò on page 165 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
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11. Our business is subject to seasonal variations that could result in fluctuations in our results of operations. 

 

Our business is seasonal in nature and as a result, our operating results may fluctuate. Since our business is influenced by 

the availability of our basic raw material, i.e., sugarcane, our production schedules are operational only according to such 

availability. For example, in Belgaum area, the crushing season generally starts from October each year and remains till 

April. It is during this period that our majority of the sugar production takes place. During the non-crushing season, i.e., 

May to September, not only is our sugar production affected but also our cogeneration and distillery units are affected for 

the lack of bagasse and molasses. Further, other seasonal factors such as irrigation, seed quality, area of sugarcane 

production and amount of rainfall also play a role in determining the quantity and quality of sugarcane produce. 

Consequently, the results of one reporting period may not be necessarily comparable with the preceding, succeeding or 

corresponding reporting periods. Our revenues recorded during planting and harvesting seasons (i.e., 1st half of any 

financial year) are typically lower or even in losses as compared to revenues recorded during the crushing season (i.e., 2nd 

half of the financial year). During periods of lower sugar production, we continue to incur substantial operating expenses 

in connection with day-to-day operations, employeesô salaries, miscellaneous maintenance cost and among other things, 

product promotion expenses which are not reduced significantly during such periods, while our revenues remain reduced. 

We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, significant variability in our total revenue, operating cash 

flows, operating expenses and net revenues on a seasonal basis. 

 

12. We have significant amounts of outstanding payment to Sugarcane growers / farmers each year. 

 

We purchase our entire sugarcane requirement directly from various independent farmers from within and outside our 

reserved area. These farmers sell their produce to us mainly during the crushing season and the payment for the same is 

settled only once the crushing season is over. Due to this, we show significant amounts of outstanding to the sugarcane 

farmers who have sold their produce to us. Also, due to various developments and issues affecting the sugar sector, 

substantial cane payments are outstanding throughout the industry and due to this the Government has vide notification 

no. 1(4)/S.P.-I. dated March 02, 2019, notified the banks to sanction soft loans to sugar mills for facilitating the cane 

payables. We have cordial relations with our suppliers i.e., the Sugarcane farmers and the timeframe followed by us for 

settling the outstanding is generally accepted by these farmers. If we are unable to clear the dues in a timely manner, some 

farmers may claim immediate payment or legal action for delayed payment, which may affect our cash flows, business 

operations and financial condition. Further, if such dues are pending for an extended period of time, the farmers may refrain 

from selling their produce to us and approach our competitors. In such a case, we may not be able to accumulate sufficient 

raw materials and our business operations and financial results will be adversely affected. Though we have not defaulted 

in payment to farmers, we cannot guarantee that such an event will not impact our relations and business operations in the 

future. 

 

13. Sugarcane is the principal raw material used for the production of sugar. Our business depends on the availability 

of sugarcane and any shortage of sugarcane may adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

 

We do not own any land for cultivation of sugarcane and we purchase our entire sugarcane requirement directly from 

various independent farmers from within and outside our reserved area. After the de-regulation of the sugar sector, the 

farmers growing sugarcane within the villages around our manufacturing facility are not required to sell the sugarcane to 

our Company and we need to maintain cordial relations with these farmers to ensure that they sell their produce to us. Also, 

we strive to maintain relations with farmers in other villages not in our immediate vicinity so that we have adequate supply 

of sugarcane during the crushing season. Further, the farmers within our reserved area have no legal or contractual 

obligation to cultivate sugarcane and may instead grow other crops. If the farmers within our reserved area cultivate other 

crops, or otherwise limit their cultivation of sugarcane, we may have a shortage of the raw material. We work with the 

farmers to determine the harvesting schedule and also provide them with subsidised seeds, cutting & transport assistance 

so that these farmers sell their produce to us. However, if the farmers are able to realise a higher price for sales of sugarcane 

from other sugar factories or other users, the farmer may have an incentive to sell the sugarcane to parties other than us. 

Further, farmers may want to harvest the crop earlier than we have scheduled or grow other crops thereby disrupting our 

operations. To ensure that the farmers stay interested in selling sugarcane to our Company, we may need to provide 

financial and other incentives to the farmers. Diversion of sugarcane to other users or other sugar factories may reduce the 

sugarcane available to us and may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operation. In addition, adverse 

weather conditions, crop disease, pest attacks may adversely affect sugarcane crop yields and sugar recovery rates for any 

given harvest. Our sugar production depends on the volume and sucrose content of the sugarcane that is supplied to us. 

Crop yields and sucrose content depends primarily on the variety of sugarcane grown, the presence of any crop disease, 

weather conditions such as inadequate or excess rainfall and temperature which may vary even in a particular season. 

Adverse weather conditions may adversely affect our manufacturing operations. Flood or drought can adversely affect the 

supply and pricing of the sugarcane procured by us from the farmers. Accordingly, our business operations and results of 

operations may be adversely affected to such extent. There can be no assurance that weather patterns, crop disease or the 

cultivation of certain sugarcane crop varieties will not reduce the amount of sugar that we can recover in any given harvest. 
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Any reduction in the amount of sugar recovered from sugarcane could have a material adverse effect on our business and 

results of operations. 

 

14. The improper handling, processing or storage of raw materials or products, or spoilage of and damage to such raw 

materials and products, or any real or perceived contamination in our products, could subject us to regulatory and legal 

action, damage our reputation and have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

The products that we manufacture, or process are subject to risks such as contamination, adulteration and product tampering 

during their manufacture, transport or storage. We face inherent business risks of exposure to product liability or recall 

claims in the event that our products fail to meet the required quality standards or are alleged to result in harm to customers. 

Also, apart from ethanol, certain of our other raw materials and our products are required to be stored, handled and 

transported under specific conditions and / or temperatures and under certain food safety conditions. Further, products like 

sugar and vinegar may be subject to contamination which may affect the health of the final consumer. These contaminations 

may be human induced or natural, and, as a result, there is a risk that they could affect our processed sugar or other products. 

There is a potential for deterioration of our sugar products as a result of improper handling at the processing, packing, 

storing or transportation levels, which may adversely affect our customer image. Such risks may be controlled, but not 

eliminated, by adherence to good manufacturing practices and finished product testing. We have little, if any, control over 

proper handling once our products are shipped to our customers. We face the risk of legal proceedings and product liability 

claims being brought by various entities, including consumers, distributors and government agencies for various reasons 

including for defective or contaminated products sold or services rendered. For further details, please see chapter titled 

ñOutstanding Litigation and Defaultsò on page no. 165 of this Draft Letter of Offer. If we experience a product recall or 

are a party to a product liability case, we may incur considerable expense in litigation. We cannot assure that we will not 

experience product recalls or product liability losses in the future. Further, we do not have any product liability insurance 

cover and getting such an insurance afresh will require additional cost. Any product recall, product liability claim or adverse 

regulatory action may adversely affect our reputation and brand image, as well as entail significant costs in excess of 

available insurance coverage, which could adversely affect our reputation, business, results of operations and financial 

condition. 

 

15. Our inability to effectively manage our growth or to successfully implement our business plan and growth strategy 

could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

We have experienced considerable growth and we have expanded our operations and product portfolio. Our Company has 

a manufacturing unit in Belgaum, Karnataka for manufacturing molasses-based ethanol, and is proposing to set up a new 

manufacturing unit in the same factory premises for increasing its manufacturing capacity. Our revenue from operations 

grew at a rate of 10.11% between Fiscals 2021 and 2022, while our profit after tax grew at a rate of 625.44% between 

Fiscals 2021 and 2022. We cannot assure you that our growth strategies will continue to be successful or that we will be 

able to continue to expand further, or at the same rate. We cannot assure you that we would be able to successfully 

implement our growth plans and strategies for our new manufacturing unit or that we will not face delays in our plans. Our 

inability to execute our growth strategies in a timely manner or within budget estimates or our inability to meet the 

expectations of our customers and other stakeholders could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations 

and financial condition. Our future prospects will depend on our ability to grow our business and operations. The 

development of such future business could be affected by many factors, including general, political and economic 

conditions in India, government policies or strategies in respect of specific industries, prevailing interest rates and price of 

equipment and raw materials. Further, in order to manage our growth effectively, we must implement, upgrade and improve 

our operational systems, procedures and internal controls on a timely basis. If we fail to implement these systems, 

procedures and controls on a timely basis, or if there are weaknesses in our internal controls that would result in inconsistent 

internal standard operating procedures, we may not be able to meet our customersô needs, hire and retain new employees 

or operate our business effectively. Failure to manage growth effectively could adversely affect our business and results 

of operations. 

 

ISSUE SPECIFIC RISKS 

 

16. We will not distribute the Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form 

and Rights Entitlement Letter to overseas Shareholders who have not provided an address in India for service of 

documents. 

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and SEBI Rights Issue Circular our Company will send, only through 

email, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material to the email 

addresses of all the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are 

located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and 

in each case who make a request in this regard. The Issue Materials will not be distributed to addresses outside India on 



25 
 

account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials in overseas jurisdictions. However, the Companies Act, 

2013 requires companies to serve documents at any address which may be provided by the members as well as through 

email.  Presently, there is lack of clarity under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder with respect to 

distribution of Issue Materials in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under the applicable 

laws of such jurisdictions. While we have requested all the shareholders to provide an address in India for the purposes of 

distribution of Issue Materials, we cannot assure you that the regulator or authorities would not adopt a different view with 

respect to compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and may subject us to fines or penalties. 

 

17. SEBI has recently, by way of circular dated January 22, 2020, streamlined the process of rights issues. You should 

follow the instructions carefully, as stated in such SEBI circulars, and in this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders has recently been 

introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital market 

intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated 

in the SEBI circular dated January 22, 2020 and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to providing/updating 

their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò on page 176 of this Draft 

Letter of Offer. 

 

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of 

Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue 

Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our 

Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares 

held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in 

the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or suspended 

for debit or credit or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) 

credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, 

including any court proceedings. 

 

18. The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form (ñPhysical 

Shareholderò) may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar. 

 

In accordance with the circular SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the credit of 

Rights Entitlement and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, the Rights 

Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow demat account opened by our Company 

during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are requested to furnish the details of their demat account to the 

Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements 

in their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders 

who do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue 

Closing Date, shall lapse. Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 3, 2018 issued by the SEBI, with effect from 

April 1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless the Equity Shares are held in dematerialized 

form (except in case of transmission or transposition of Equity Shares). For details, please refer chapter titled ñTerms of 

the Issueò on page 176 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

19. Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without compensation 

and result in a dilution of shareholding. 

 

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and become null and 

void, and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The proportionate ownership and voting 

interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail (or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements 

will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may 

not be sufficient to fully compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our 

Company that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncees may not be able to apply in case of failure in completion 

of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account 

of the Renouncees prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the Rights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in 

case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will not be able to apply in this Issue with respect to such Rights 

Entitlements. For details, see chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò on page 176 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

20. Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our Company 

may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoters or members of our Promoter Group may 

adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. 
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Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares by our Company 

may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and our ability to 

raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might 

occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity 

Shares. The disposal of Equity Shares by any of our Promoters and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may 

occur may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoters and Promoter 

Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future. 

 

21. Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares. 

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares of an Indian 

company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment of long-term capital gains tax in 

India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied 

on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale 

of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital 

gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases 

where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a resident. Generally, 

Indian tax treaties do not limit Indiaôs ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may 

be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares. 

 

22. Applicants to this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date. 

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the 

Issue Closing Date. The Allotment in this Issue and the credit of such Equity Shares to the Applicantôs demat account with 

its depository participant shall be completed within such period as prescribed under the applicable laws. There is no 

assurance, however, that material adverse changes in the international or national monetary, financial, political or economic 

conditions or other events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse changes in our business, results of operation, 

cash flows or financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicantôs decision to invest in the Equity Shares, would 

not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in this Issue. Occurrence of any such events after the 

Issue Closing Date could also impact the market price of our Equity Shares. The Applicants shall not have the right to 

withdraw their applications in the event of any such occurrence. We cannot assure you that the market price of the Equity 

Shares will not decline below the Issue Price. To the extent the market price for the Equity Shares declines below the Issue 

Price after the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required to purchase Equity Shares at a price that will be higher 

than the actual market price for the Equity Shares at that time. Should that occur, the shareholder will suffer an immediate 

unrealized loss as a result. We may complete the Allotment even if such events may limit the Applicantsô ability to sell 

our Equity Shares after this Issue or cause the trading price of our Equity Shares to decline. 

 

23. Investors will be subject to market risks until the Equity Shares credited to the investors demat account are listed 

and permitted to trade. 

  

Investors can start trading the Equity Shares allotted to them only after they have been credited to an investorôs demat 

account, are listed and permitted to trade. Since the Equity Shares are currently traded on the Stock Exchanges, investors 

will be subject to market risk from the date they pay for the Equity Shares to the date when trading approval is granted for 

the same. Further, there can be no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to an investor will be credited to the investorôs 

demat account or that trading in the Equity Shares will commence in a timely manner. 

 

24. You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until fifteen days after the date on which this 

Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk. 

 

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the depository 

participants until approximately 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading such Equity Shares only after 

receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to 

you will be credited to your demat account, or that trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the specified time 

period, subjecting you to market risk for such period. 

 

25. The trading price of our Equity Shares may be subject to volatility and you may not be able to sell your Equity 

Shares at or above the Issue Price. 

 

The trading price of our Equity Shares may fluctuate after this Issue due to a variety of factors, including our results of 

operations and the performance of our business, competitive conditions, general economic, political and social factors, the 
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performance of the Indian and global economy and significant developments in Indiaôs fiscal regime, volatility in the 

Indian and global securities market, performance of our competitors, changes in the estimates of our performance or 

recommendations by financial analysts and announcements by us or others regarding contracts, acquisitions, strategic 

partnerships, joint ventures, or capital commitments. In addition, if the stock markets in general experience a loss of 

investor confidence, the trading price of our Equity Shares could decline for reasons unrelated to our business, financial 

condition or operating results. The trading price of our Equity Shares might also decline in reaction to events that affect 

other companies in our industry even if these events do not directly affect us. Each of these factors, among others, could 

adversely affect the price of our Equity Shares. 

 

26. Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian law and 

could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position. 

 

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares pre-emptive rights to 

subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages prior to the 

issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have been waived by the adoption of a special resolution 

by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted on such resolution, unless our Company has obtained government approval 

to issue without such rights. However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of such pre-

emptive rights without us filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority in such 

jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing. We may elect not to file 

a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by Indian law to you. To the extent that you 

are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would 

be reduced. 

 

27. Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely affect the value 

of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results. 

 

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends inrespect of our 

Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the relevant foreign currency for 

repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during the time that it takes to undertake such 

conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange 

rates during a delay in repatriating outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay 

in regulatory approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity 

shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated substantially in recent 

years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity 

Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results. 

 

28. Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form. 

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares shall be issued only in dematerialized form. Investors 

will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form. The Equity Shares Allotted to the 

Applicants who do not have demat accounts or who have not specified their demat details, will be kept in abeyance till 

receipt of the details of the demat account of such Applicants. For details, see chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò on page 

176 of this Draft Letter of Offer. This may impact the ability of our shareholders to receive the Equity Shares in the Issue. 

 

29. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed, or continue to be listed, on the Indian stock exchanges 

in a timely manner, or at all, and prospective investors will not be able to immediately sell their Equity Shares on the 

Stock Exchanges. 

 

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of our Equity Shares will not be applied 

for or granted until after our Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Such approval will require the submission of all 

other relevant documents authorizing the issuance of our Equity Shares. Accordingly, there could be a failure or delay in 

listing our Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges, which would adversely affect your ability to sell our Equity Shares. 

 

30. Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoters or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely affect the trading price 

of the Equity Shares. 

 

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoters or by other significant shareholder(s) may significantly 

affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be adversely affected even if there is a 

perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur. 
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31. Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions. 

 

Indian legal principles related to corporate procedures, directorsô fiduciary duties and liabilities, and shareholdersô rights 

may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction. Shareholdersô rights including in relation to 

class actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as shareholdersô rights under the laws of other countries or 

jurisdictions. Investors may have more difficulty in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as 

shareholder of a corporation in another jurisdiction. 

 

EXTERNAL RISKS  

 

32. Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our control may have an adverse effect on our business and 

results of operations. 

 

The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, 

particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe, the U.S. and elsewhere in the world 

in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although economic conditions are different in each country, investorsô 

reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other countries, 

including India. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased 

volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability, 

including the financial crisis and fluctuations in the stock markets in China and further deterioration of credit conditions 

in the U.S. or European markets, could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Any financial disruption could 

have an adverse effect on our business, future financial performance, shareholdersô equity and the price of our Equity 

Shares. Our performance, growth and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent on the health of the 

Indian economy. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of India. Demand for our services may be 

adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic, regional and global economies. Indiaôs economic growth is 

affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade movements, namely export 

demand and movements in key imports (oil and oil products), global economic uncertainty and liquidity crisis, volatility 

in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural production. Consequently, any future slowdown 

in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. Also, a change 

in the Government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies could adversely affect economic conditions 

prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general and our business in particular and high rates of inflation in India could 

increase our costs without proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our operating margins. 

 

33. A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer. 

We are incorporated in India, and all of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we are highly dependent 

on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are significantly affected by factors influencing 

the Indian economy. A slowdown in the Indian economy could adversely affect our business, including our ability to grow 

our assets, the quality of our assets, and our ability to implement our strategy. 

 

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations, may include: 

¶ any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation; 

¶ any scarcity of credit or other financing in India; 

¶ prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and Indian corporations; 

¶ volatility in, and actual or perceived trends in trading activity on, Indiaôs principal stock exchanges; 

¶ variations in exchange rates; 

¶ changes in Indiaôs tax, trade, fiscal or monetary policies; 

¶ political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or globally, 

¶ including in Indiaôs various neighbouring countries; 

¶ prevailing regional or global economic conditions; and 

¶ other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India 

 

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility in global 

commodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counterparties. This in turn could adversely affect 

our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares. 

 

34. Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial condition. 

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India has 

experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest rates and increased 
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costs to our business, including increased costs of salaries, and other expenses relevant to our business. High fluctuations 

in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our costs. Any increase in inflation in 

India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and the 

same may adversely affect our business and financial condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or 

increase our rates to pass the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash 

flows and financial condition may be adversely affected. Further, the GoI has previously initiated economic measures to 

combat high inflation rates, and it is unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that 

Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the future. 

 

35. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties in India, including adverse application of corporate 

and tax laws, may adversely affect our business and financial results. 

 

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such changes, including 

the instances mentioned below, may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects, to the extent that 

we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any such changes in applicable law and policy. The Government of 

India has issued a notification dated September 29, 2016 notifying Income Computation and Disclosure Standards 

(ñICDSò), thereby creating a new framework for the computation of taxable income. The ICDS became applicable from 

the assessment year for Fiscal 2018 and subsequent years. The adoption of ICDS is expected to significantly alter the way 

companies compute their taxable income, as ICDS deviates from several concepts that are followed under general 

accounting standards, including Indian GAAP and Ind AS. In addition, ICDS shall be applicable for the computation of 

income for tax purposes but shall not be applicable for the computation of income for minimum alternate tax. There can 

be no assurance that the adoption of ICDS will not adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial 

condition.  

 

¶ the General Anti Avoidance Rules (ñGAARò) have been made effective from April 1, 2017. The tax consequences 

of the GAAR provisions being applied to an arrangement could result in denial of tax benefit amongst other 

consequences. In the absence of any precedents on the subject, the application of these provisions is uncertain. If 

the GAAR provisions are made applicable to our Company, it may have an adverse tax impact on us. 

 

¶ a comprehensive national GST regime that combines taxes and levies by the Central and State Governments into 

a unified rate structure, which came into effect from July 1, 2017. We cannot provide any assurance as to any 

aspect of the tax regime following implementation of the GST. Any future increases or amendments may affect 

the overall tax efficiency of companies operating in India and may result in significant additional taxes becoming 

payable. If, as a result of a particular tax risk materializing, the tax costs associated with certain transactions are 

greater than anticipated, it could affect the profitability of such transactions.  

 

In addition, unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations 

including foreign investment laws governing our business, operations and group structure could result in us being deemed 

to be in contravention of such laws or may require us to apply for additional approvals. We may incur increased costs and 

other burdens relating to compliance with such new requirements, which may also require significant management time 

and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. 

Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, 

regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be 

time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the viability of our current business or restrict our ability 

to grow our business in the future. Any increase in taxes and levies, or the imposition of new taxes and levies in the future, 

could increase the cost of production and operating expenses. Taxes and other levies imposed by the central or state 

governments in India that affect our industry include customs duties, excise duties, sales tax, income tax and other taxes, 

duties or surcharges introduced on a permanent or temporary basis from time to time. The central and state tax scheme in 

India is extensive and subject to change from time to time. Any adverse changes in any of the taxes levied by the central 

or state governments may adversely affect our competitive position and profitability. 

 

36. Investors may have difficulty enforcing foreign judgments against us or our management.  

 

We are a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of India. All our directors and executive officers are 

residents of India and all of our assets and such persons are located in India. As a result, it may not be possible for investors 

to effect service of process upon us or such persons outside of India, or to enforce judgments obtained against such parties 

outside of India. Recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Section 13 of the Code of Civil 

Procedure, 1908 (ñCPCò) on a statutory basis. Section 13 of the CPC provides that foreign judgments shall be conclusive 

regarding any matter directly adjudicated upon, except: (i) where the judgment has not been pronounced by a court of 

competent jurisdiction; (ii) where the judgment has not been given on the merits of the case; (iii) where it appears on the 

face of the proceedings that the judgment is founded on an incorrect view of international law or a refusal to recognise the 
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law of India in cases to which such law is applicable; (iv) where the proceedings in which the judgment was obtained were 

opposed to natural justice; (v) where the judgment has been obtained by fraud; and (vi) where the judgment sustains a 

claim founded on a breach of any law then in force in India. Under the CPC, a court in India shall, upon the production of 

any document purporting to be a certified copy of a foreign judgment, presume that the judgment was pronounced by a 

court of competent jurisdiction, unless the contrary appears on record. However, under the CPC, such presumption may 

be displaced by proving that the court did not have jurisdiction. India is not a party to any international treaty in relation 

to the recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments. Section 44A of the CPC provides that where a foreign judgment 

has been rendered by a superior court, within the meaning of that Section, in any country or territory outside of India which 

the Central Government has by notification declared to be in a reciprocating territory, it may be enforced in India by 

proceedings in execution as if the judgment had been rendered by the relevant court in India. However, Section 44A of the 

CPC is applicable only to monetary decrees not being of the same nature as amounts payable in respect of taxes, other 

charges of a like nature or of a fine or other penalties. The United States and India do not currently have a treaty providing 

for reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments, other than arbitration awards, in civil and commercial matters. 

Therefore, a final judgment for the payment of money rendered by any federal or state court in the United States on civil 

liability, whether or not predicated solely upon the federal securities laws of the United States, would not be enforceable 

in India. However, the party in whose favour such final judgment is rendered may bring a new suit in a competent court in 

India based on a final judgment that has been obtained in the United States. The suit must be brought in India within three 

years from the date of the judgment in the same manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is 

unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if an action was brought in India. 

Furthermore, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce a foreign judgment if that court were of the view that the 

number of damages awarded was excessive or inconsistent with public policy or Indian practice. It is uncertain as to 

whether an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments that would contravene or violate Indian law. However, a party 

seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain approval from the RBI under the FEMA to execute 

such a judgment or to repatriate any amount recovered. 

 

37. The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and 

financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence could adversely affect the 

financial markets and our business. 

 

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes, fires, explosions, 

pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military actions, could adversely affect our 

results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may adversely 

affect the Indian securities markets. In addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and 

its neighbouring countries, may result in investor concern regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the 

price of the Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years and it is possible that 

future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India could have an adverse effect on our 

business. Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher 

degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity Shares.  

 

38. We are subject to regulatory, economic, social and political uncertainties and other factors beyond our control. 

 

We are incorporated in India and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India. Our Equity Shares are listed 

on BSE and NSE. Consequently, our business, operations, financial performance and the market price of our Equity Shares 

will be affected by interest rates, government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and 

economic developments affecting India. Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of 

operations may include: 

  

¶ any exchange rate fluctuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right to convert or 

repatriate currency or export assets; 

¶ any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse effect on economic conditions in India 

and scarcity of financing for our expansions; 

¶ prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations; 

¶ epidemic or any other public health in India or in countries in the region or globally, including in Indiaôs various 

neighbouring countries; 

¶ hostile or war like situations with the neighbouring countries; 

¶ macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates movements which may 

in turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing costs; 

¶ volatility in, and actual or perceived trends in trading activity on, Indiaôs principal stock exchanges; 

¶ decline in India's foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy; 

¶ downgrading of Indiaôs sovereign debt rating by rating agencies; and 



31 
 

¶ difficulty in developing any necessary partnerships with local businesses on commercially acceptable terms and/or 

a timely basis. 

 

Any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the Indian economy or certain 

regions in India, could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition and the price of the 

Equity Shares. For example, our manufacturing facilities are located in western India, hence any significant disruption, 

including due to social, political or economic factors or natural calamities or civil disruptions, impacting this region may 

adversely affect our operations. 

 

39. Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets. 

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, 

particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in each country, investorsô 

reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other countries, 

including India. A loss of investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased 

volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability 

could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our 

business, our future financial performance and the prices of the Equity Shares. The recent outbreak of Novel Coronavirus 

has significantly affected financial markets around the world. Any other global economic developments or the perception 

that any of them could occur may continue to have an adverse effect on global economic conditions and the stability of 

global financial markets, and may significantly reduce global market liquidity and restrict the ability of key market 

participants to operate in certain financial markets. Any of these factors could depress economic activity and restrict our 

access to capital, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and 

reduce the price of our Equity Shares. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our business, future 

financial performance, shareholdersô equity and the price of our Equity Shares. 

 

40. Any downgrading of Indiaôs debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency could adversely affect our 

business. 
 

There could be a downgrade of Indiaôs sovereign debt rating due to various factors, including changes in tax or fiscal 

policy, or a decline in Indiaôs foreign exchange reserves, which are outside our control. Any adverse revisions to Indiaôs 

credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or international rating agencies may adversely impact our 

ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such additional financing 

is available. Although economic conditions are different in each country, investorsô reactions to developments in one 

country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other countries, including India, which may cause 

fluctuations in the prices of our Equity Shares. This could have an adverse effect on our business and financial performance, 

and ability to obtain financing for expenditures. 
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SECTION I II ï INTRODUCTION  

 

      THE ISSUE 

 

This Issue has been authorised through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on January 5, 2023, pursuant to 

Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act. The following is a summary of this Issue and should be read in conjunction with and is 

qualified entirely by the information detailed in the chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò on page 176 of this Draft Letter of Offer.  

 

Particulars  Details of Equity Shares 

Equity Shares proposed to be issued Upto [ǒ] Equity Shares  

Rights Entitlement  Upto [ǒ] Equity Share(s) for every [ǒ] fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held on the 

Record Date 

Fractional Entitlement For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue, if the 

shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than [ǒ] Equity 

Shares or is not in multiples of [ǒ], the fractional entitlement of such Eligible 

Equity Shareholders shall be ignored for computation of the Rights Entitlement. 

However, Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being 

ignored earlier will be given preference in the Allotment of one additional Equity 

Share each, if such Eligible Equity Shareholders have applied for additional 

Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if any. 

Record Date  [ǒ] 

Face value per Equity Shares 2 /- 

Issue Price per Rights Equity Shares   [ǒ]/- 

Issue Size  Upto [ǒ] Equity Shares of face value of  2 each for cash at a price of  [ǒ] 

(Including a premium of  [ǒ]) per Rights Equity Share not exceeding an amount 

of Rs.12,500 Lakhs. 

Voting Rights and Dividend  The Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall rank pari passu in all respects 

with the Equity Shares of our Company.  

Equity Shares issued, subscribed and 

paid up prior to the Issue  

18,77,80,000 Equity Shares 

Equity Shares subscribed and paid-up 

after the Issue (assuming full 

subscription for and allotment of the 

Rights Entitlement) 

Upto [ǒ] Equity Shares  

Equity Shares outstanding after the 

Issue (assuming full subscription for 

and Allotment of the Rights 

Entitlement) 

[ǒ] 

Money payable at the time of 

Application  

 [ǒ]/- 

Scrip Details   ISIN:  INE430N01022 

BSE: 542852 

NSE: VISHWARAJ 

Use of Issue Proceeds For details please refer to the chapter titled ñObjects of the Issueò on page 40 of 

this Draft Letter of Offer.  

Terms of the Issue  For details please refer to the chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò on page 176 of 

this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Please refer to the chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò on page 176 of this Draft Letter of Offer.  

Issue Schedule 

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking hours on the 

dates mentioned below: 

 

Event Indicative Date 

Issue Opening Date  [ǒ] 

Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights  [ǒ] 

Issue Closing Date* [ǒ] 

 
*The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to 

time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date.  
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GENERAL INFORMATION  

 

Our Company was incorporated as a public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956 in the name of óVishwanath Sugars 

Limitedô vide Certificate of Incorporation dated May 02, 1995 with the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore bearing Registration 

Number - 017730. Our Company was granted the Certificate of Commencement of Business by the Registrar of Companies, 

Bangalore on December 21, 1999. The name of our Company was subsequently changed to Vishwanath Sugar and Steel Limited 

and a Fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon change of name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore 

on December 28, 2010. The name of our Company was further changed to Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited and a Fresh 

Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon change of name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore on November 

29, 2012. 

 

Company Identification Number  L85110KA1995PLC017730 

Address of Registered Office of Company Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited  

Bellad Bagewadi Taluk, Hukkeri District Belgaum, Karnataka- 591305, 

India. 

Telephone: 08333-251251 

Facsimile: 08333-251322 

E-mail: info@vsil.co.in 

Website: www.vsil.co.in 

Registration Number: 017730  

Address of Registrar of Companies Registrar of Companies,  

'E' Wing, 2nd Floor, Kendriya Sadana, Kormangala,  

Banglore-560034, Karnataka. 

Telephone: 080-25633105 

Facsimile: 080-25538531 

E-mail: roc.bangalore@mca.gov.in  

Designated Stock Exchange BSE Limited 

 

Our Board of Directors 

 

Details regarding our Board of Directors as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer are set forth in the table hereunder: 

Name Designation Address DIN 

Mr. Nikhil Umesh Katti Managing Director No. 828, Vaccine Depot Road, Tilakwadi, 

Belgaum, Karnataka - 591305 

02505734 

Mr. Ramesh Vishwanath 

Katti 

Additional Director  House No. 341, Bellad Bagewadi, Hukkeri, 

Belgaum, Karnataka - 591305 

02669306 

Mr. Kush Ramesh Katti Whole Time Director 

(Executive Director) 

No. 341, Bellad Bagewadi, Hukkeri, 

Belgaum, Karnataka - 591305 

02777189 

Mr. Mukesh Kumar Whole Time Director 

(Executive Director) 

F-201, Mantri Paradise Bannerghatta Road, 

Opposite Reliance Mart Arekere Gate, 

Bilekahalli, Bangalore, Karnataka ï 560076 

02827073 

Mr. Surendra Shantaveer 

Khot 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Plot No. 116, Ramateerth Nagar, Belgaum, 

Karnataka - 590016 

03504813 

Mr. Shivanand 

Basavanneppa Tubachi 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Plot No. 278, Anugraha Shivabasava Nagar, 

2nd Sector, Belgaum, Nehru Nagar, Hukkeri, 

Belgaum, Karnataka - 590010 

07852525 

Mr. Basavaraj Veerappa 

Hagaragi 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

House No. 1460/42, Pragati Housing 

Colony, Bellad Bagewadi, Hukkeri (rural), 

Belgaum, Karnataka - 591305 

07852512 

Mrs. Pratibha Pramod 

Munnolli 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

AT Post, Bellad Bagewadi, Hukkeri 

Belgaum, Karnataka - 591305 

07852508 

Mr. Vishnukumar 

Mahadev Kulkarni 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Sr. No. 12/3B, Flat No. 1004, B-2, Siddharth 

Towers, G.A. Kulkarni, Behind City Pride 

Kothrud, Pune City, Ex. Serviceman Colony 

Pune, Maharashtra ï 411038 

01756948 

Ms. Sneha Nithin Dev Additional Director M, 104 Briedge Gate Way 26/1 Dr. Rak 

Kumar Road, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, 

Bangalore North, Karnataka - 560055 

09762514 

mailto:roc.bangalore@mca.gov.in
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For detailed profile of our Directors, please refer to the chapter titled ñOur Management and Organisational Structureò on page 

80 of this Draft Letter of Offer.  

 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Priya Manoj Dedhia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. Her contact details are set forth hereunder.  

 

103, Kusum Nivas CHS Ltd, Namadev Path No.3,  

Kai DADA Utgikar Marg,  

Dombivali East, Thane -421201  

Telephone: +91 9769306316  

E-mail: cs@vsil.co.in  

 

Chief Financial Officer  

Sheshagiri Hanumantarao Kulkarni, is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. His contact details are set forth hereunder.  

 

Degulahalli Post: Devagaon  

Taluk: Bailhongal, Dist: Belagavi -591305  

Telephone: +91 9686698938  

E-mail: accounts@vsil.co.in  

 

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue of our Company:  

Lead Manager to the Issue Registrar to the Issue 

Corporate Capital Ventures Private Limited  

B-1/E-13 Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate, Mathura 

Road, New Delhi-110044, India  

Telephone: + 91 ï 11 - 41824066 

E-mail: rights@ccvindia.com 

Website: www.ccvindia.com  

Investor grievance: investor@ccvindia.com 

Contact Person: Mrs. Harpreet Parashar 

SEBI Registration Number: INM000012276 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 

Office No. S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, near to 

Ahura Centre, Mahakali caves Road, Andheri (East) 

Mumbai _ 400093 

Telephone: 022 ï 6263 8200/22 

E-mail: rightsissue@bigshareonline.com 

Website: www.bigshareonline.com  

Contact person: Mr. Vijay Surana 

Investor grievance: investor@bigshareonline.com 

CIN: U99999MH1994PTC076534 

SEBI Registration No: INR0001385 

Bankers to the Company Legal Adviser to the Issue 

The Belagavi District Central Co-Operative Bank Ltd. 

Address: Head Office, Near Central Bus Stand, Belagavi - 

590016 

Telephone: +91 9845260059 

Email: dgm.planning@belagavidccb.com  

Website: N.A. 

Contact Person: Mr. Mahanand C. Managavi  

RBI License Number: RPCD (BG) DCCB-2/2009/10 

 

Bank of India 

Address: Bank of India, Shahapur (Belagavi) Branch, Dr. 

SPM Road, Shahapur, Belagavi, Karnataka ï 590003 

Telephone: +91 0831-2407001 

Email: Shahapur.hubballidharwad@bankofindia.co.in 

Website: www.bankofindia.com 

Contact Person: Shri AK Jha 

 

State Bank of India 

Address: Udyambag Khanapur Road Belagavi 

Telephone: +91 9448993377 

Email: sbi.04160@sbi.co.in  

Website: - 

Contact Person: Mr. Mohit Saraogi 

M/s. M. V. Kini Law Firm  

Kini House, 6 / 39 Jangpura-B, 

New Delhi ï 110014, India 

Tel No.: +91ï11ï24371038/39/40 

Email:  raj@mvkini.com 

Website: www.mvkini.com  

Contact Person: Ms. Raj Rani Bhalla 

 

mailto:accounts@vsil.co.in
http://www.ccvindia.com/
mailto:rightsissue@bigshareonline.com
http://www.bigshareonline.com/
http://www.mvkini.com/
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SVC Co-Operative Bank Ltd. 

Corporate Address: SVC Tower, Nehru Road, 

Vokala , Santacruz East , Mumbai 

Branch Address: Ground Floor Satellite Space Age Complex 

Koppikar Road, Hubli ï 580020 

Telephone: +91 9886700445 

Email: raona@svcbank.com 

Website: www. svcbank.com 

Contact Person: Mr. Nagaraj Rao 

Statutory & Peer Review Auditor of the Company Banker to the Issue 

M/s PG Ghali & Co.  

Address: Flat 01, 3rd Floor, Above Reliance Trends, Beside 

Yes Bank, Khanapur Road, Tilakwadi, Belagavi - 590006 

Telephone: +91 9448765797 

Email:  capraveenghali@gmail.com 

Contact Person: CA Praveen P Ghali 

Membership No.: 215756 

Firm Registration No.: 011092S 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 013376 

State Bank of India 

Address: Mumbai Main Branch Building, 3rd Floor, 

Mumbai Samachar Marg, Fort, 400023 

Telephone: +91 8879640174 

Email: sbi.11777@sbi.co.in  

Website: - 

Contact Person: Mr. Mahadev B. Rawool 

 

 

Monitoring Agency   

ICRA Limited  

Address: FMC Fortuna, A-10 & 11, Third Floor, 234/ 3A, 

AJC Bose Road, Calcutta, 70020 

Telephone: 913371501100 

Email: info@icraindia.com 

Website: www.icra.in 

Contact Person: Mr Jayanta Chatterjee 

 

 

DESIGNATED INTERMEDIARIES  

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks 

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided at the website of the SEBI 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to time. For details on 

Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Forms, refer to the website of the SEBI 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. On Allotment, the amount will be unblocked and the 

account will be debited only to the extent required to pay for the Rights Equity Shares Allotted. 

 

Inter -se Allocation of Responsibilities 

Corporate Capital Ventures Private Limited being the sole Lead Manager will be responsible for all the responsibilities related 

to co-ordination and other activities in relation to the Issue. Hence a statement of inter se allocation of responsibilities is not 

required. 

 

Expert Opinion 

Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions: 

 

Our Company has received written consent dated January 6, 2023 from the Statutory Auditors to include their name as required 

under Section 26(5) of the Companies Act 2013 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations in this Draft Letter of Offer as an ñexpertò as 

defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent and in its capacity as an independent Statutory Auditor and 

in respect of its (i) examination report dated May 9, 2022  on our Financial Information for the financial years ended March 31, 

2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020; (ii) limited review report dated February 9, 2023  on our Limited Review Financial 

Results for the nine month period ended December 31, 2022 ; and (iii) statement of tax benefits dated February 22, 2023 in this 

Draft Letter of Offer and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.  

 

 

Investor grievances  

mailto:sbi.11777@sbi.co.in
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
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Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue/ post-Issue related matters such as non-

receipt of Letters of Allotment/ share certificates/ demat credit/ Refund Orders, etc.  Investors are advised to contact the Registrar 

to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre- Issue or post-Issue related problems such as non-

receipt of Abridged Letter of Offer/ Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter/ Letter of Allotment, Split Application 

Forms, Share Certificate(s) or Refund Orders, etc. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar 

to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSBs, giving full details such as name, address of the applicant, ASBA Account number and the 

Designated Branch of the SCSBs, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked, where the Application Form and Rights 

Entitlement Letter or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholder, was submitted by the ASBA Investors 

through ASBA process or R-WAP.  

 

Changes In Auditors During Last Three Financial Years 

Except as mentioned below, there has been no change in the Statutory Auditors of our Company during the last 3 years preceding 

the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Date of 

Change 

From Date of 

Change 

To Reason for Change 

1. August 27, 

2022 

Gojanur & Co.,  

Chartered Accountants 

Accountants  

Address:  

E-mail: 

gojanur_cs@rediffmail.co

m 

Firm Registration 

Number: 000941S 

Peer Review Certificate 

Number: 011335 

August 27, 

2022 

P.G. Ghali & Co. Chartered 

Accountants  

Address: No. 102, Hari Apartments, 

Behind Punjab National Bank, 

College Road, Belagavi-590001  

E-mail: capraveenghali@gmail.com  

Firm Registration Number: 

011092S 

Peer Review Certificate Number: 

013376* 

Earlier Auditor M/s 

Gojanur & Co. had 

completed their five-year 

term. 

*The peer review certificate issued by Peer Review Board of ICAI is valid till July 31, 2024. 

Issue Schedule  

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking hours on the 

dates mentioned below: 

 

Events Indicative Date 

LAST DATE FOR CREDIT OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS  [ǒ] 

ISSUE OPENING DATE [ǒ] 

LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET RENUNCIATION OF  

RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS # 

[ǒ] 

ISSUE CLOSING DATE* [ǒ] 

FINALISATION OF BASIS OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT)  [ǒ] 

DATE OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT)  [ǒ] 

DATE OF CREDIT (ON OR ABOUT)  [ǒ] 

DATE OF LISTING (ON OR ABOUT)  [ǒ] 
# Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the 

Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 

 

*Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not 

exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted 

by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date. 

 

The above schedule is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Lead Manager. 

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date have not provided the 

details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide their demat account details to our 

Company or the Registrar not later than two (2) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., [ǒ] to enable the credit of the 

Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts at least one 

day before the Issue Closing Date, i.e., [ǒ]. 

 

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our Company, the Lead 

Manager or the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Applications on or before 
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the Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting Common Application Forms, see chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò beginning 

on page 176 of this Draft letter of Offer. 

 

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before Issue Closing 

Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares for such 

lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser will 

lose the amount paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make 

an application to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under Issue. 

 

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such respective 

Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at www.bigshareonline.com after keying in their respective details 

along with either security control measures implemented there at. For further details, see chapter titled ñTerms of the Issueò 

beginning on page 176 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

Credit Rating  

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.  

 

Debenture Trustees 

This is an issue of equity shares; hence appointment of debenture trustee is not required. 

Monitoring Agency 

Since the size of the Issue is more than Rs. 10,000 Lakhs, our Company has appointed ICRA Limited as the Monitoring Agency 

for monitoring the utilisation of the Net Proceeds from the Issue in accordance with Regulation 41 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

ICRA Limited  

Address: B-710, Statesman House, 148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi -110001, India 

Telephone: +91 9845022459 

Email: jayantac@icraindia.com  

Contact Person: Mr. Jayanta Chatterjee 

 

For details in relation to the proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds, see chapter titled ñObjects of the Issueò on page 40 of this 

Draft Letter of Offer. 

Appraising Agency 

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been appraised by any bank or financial 

institution. 

 

Underwriting  

This Issue is not underwritten and our Company has not entered into any underwriting arrangement.  

Minimum Subscription  

If our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of the Issue Size, or the subscription level falls below 90% 

of the Issue Size, after the Issue Closing Date on account of withdrawal of applications, our Company shall refund the entire 

subscription amount received within 4 days from the Issue Closing Date. In the event that there is a delay in making refund of 

the subscription amount by more than eight days after our Company becomes liable to pay subscription amount (i.e. 4 days after 

the Issue Closing Date) or such other period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company shall pay interest for the delayed 

period at rate prescribed under applicable laws. 

 

Filing of the Offer Document 

A copy of this DLOF has been filed with the Securities Exchange Board of India through the SEBI Intermediary Portal at 

https://siportal.sebi.gov.in, in accordance with SEBI circular dated January 19, 2018 bearing reference number 

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 and at cfddil@sebi.gov.in , in accordance with the instructions issued by the SEBI on 

March 27, 2020, in relation to ñEasing of Operational Procedure ïDivision of Issues and Listing ïCFDò.  This DLOF will also 

be filed with BSE and NSE, where the Rights Equity Shares are proposed to be listed. 

  

mailto:jayantac@icraindia.com
mailto:cfddil@sebi.gov.in
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE  

 

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer and after giving effect to the Issue is set 

forth below: 

 

S. 

No.  

Particulars Amount (in Rs.  Lakhs, except share data) 

Aggregate value at 

nominal value 

Aggregate value at 

Issue Price 

    

A. Authorised Share Capital   

 30,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2 each 6000 [ǒ] 

    

B. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital before the 

Issue 

  

 18,77,80,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2 each 3,755.60 [ǒ] 

    

C. Present Issue in terms of this Letter of Offer*    

 Up to [ǒ] Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2 each [ǒ] [ǒ] 

    

D. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital after the 

Issue# 

  

 [ǒ] Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2 each [ǒ] [ǒ] 

    

E. Securities Premium Account   

 Before the Issue [ǒ] [ǒ] 

 After the Issue [ǒ] [ǒ] 

    

* The present Issue has been authorised vide a resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors dated January 5, 2023. 

 

Our Equity Shareholders pursuant to voting in AGM, the results of which were declared on September 25, 2021 have approved the 

sub division of the equity shares from Rs. 10 face value to Rs. 2.  

 

# Assuming full subscription for and allotment of the Rights Entitlement. Please note that the Payment Schedule and the right to call 

up the remaining paid-up capital in one or more calls will be as determined by our Board at its sole discretion. 

 

NOTES TO CAPITAL STRUCTURE  

1. Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group in the Issue: 

The Promoters and the Promoter Group has, vide their letter (s) dated January 24, 2023 (the ñSubscription Letterò), 

undertaken to: (a) subscribe, jointly and/ or severally to the full extent of their Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full 

extent of any Rights Entitlement that may be renounced in his favour by any other Promoters or member(s) of the Promoter 

Group of our Company; and (b) subscribe to, either individually or jointly and/ or severally with any other Promoters or 

member of the Promoter Group, for additional Rights Equity Shares, including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if 

any) in the Issue. 
 

Such subscription for Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result in an increase in their 

percentage shareholding. Any such acquisition of additional Rights Equity Shares (including any unsubscribed portion of 

the Issue) is exempt in terms of Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations as conditions mentioned therein have 

been fulfilled and shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in accordance with provisions 

of the Takeover Regulations.  
 

The additional subscription by the promoters shall be made subject to such additional subscription not resulting in the 

minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the level prescribed in Regulation 38 of LODR/ SCRR. Our 

Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the 

minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.  

 

2. The ex-rights price of the Rights Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations is Rs. [ǒ]/- per 

equity share. 

 

3. There are no outstanding options or convertible securities, including any outstanding warrants or rights to convert 
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debentures, loans or other instruments convertible into our Equity Shares as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Further, our Company does not have any employee stock option scheme or employee stock purchase scheme. 

 

4. Shareholding Pattern of our Company as per the last filing with the Stock Exchanges: 

i. The shareholding pattern of our Company as on December 31, 2022, can be accessed on the website of the BSE 

at:https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=542852&qtrid=116.00&QtrName=Dece

mber%202022  and on the website of the NSE at: https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-

shareholding-pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity   

 

ii.  Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoters and Promoter Group including details of lock-in, pledge 

of and encumbrance thereon, as on December 31, 2022 can be accessed on the website of the BSE at: 

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=542852&qtrid=116.00&QtrName=Decem

ber%202022 and on the website of the NSE at: https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-

shareholding-pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity  

 

iii.  Statement showing holding of Equity Shares of persons belonging to the category ñPublicò including shareholders 
holding more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares as on December 31 , 2022 can be accessed on the website 

of the BSE at 

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpdrPercnt.aspx?scripcd=542852&qtrid=116.00&CompName=Vishwaraj%2

0Sugar%20Industries%20Ltd&QtrName=December%202022&Type=TM  and on the website of the NSE at: 

https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-

pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity  

 

5. Details of shares locked-in, pledged, encumbrance by promoters and promoter group 

As on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, none of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters or the members of our Promoter 

Group are locked-in, pledged or otherwise encumbered. 

 

6. Details of specified securities acquired by the promoter and promoter group in the last one year immediately 

preceding the date of filing of the Draft Letter of Offer:  

 

¶ Our erstwhile Promoter, Mr. Umesh Vishwanath Katti passed away on September 6, 2022 and 70,92,820 Equity 

Shares held by him were transmitted to his son and member of our Promoter Group, Mr. Nikhil Umesh Katti on 

December 7, 2022.  

¶ Our erstwhile Promoter, Ms. Padmaja Katti passed away on September 01, 2021 and 25,000 Equity shares held by 

her are yet to transmitted to her nominees. 

 

Except as mentioned above and in this Draft Letter of Offer, our Promoters and members of Promoter Group have not 

acquired any Equity Shares in the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of the Draft Letter of Offer. 
 

7. At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company. 

8. All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of this Draft Letter of 

Offer. Further, the Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue, shall be fully paid up. 

 

  

https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=542852&qtrid=116.00&QtrName=December%202022
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=542852&qtrid=116.00&QtrName=December%202022
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpdrPercnt.aspx?scripcd=542852&qtrid=116.00&CompName=Vishwaraj%20Sugar%20Industries%20Ltd&QtrName=December%202022&Type=TM%20%20
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpdrPercnt.aspx?scripcd=542852&qtrid=116.00&CompName=Vishwaraj%20Sugar%20Industries%20Ltd&QtrName=December%202022&Type=TM%20%20
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-pattern?symbol=VISHWARAJ&tabIndex=equity
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 

 

Our Company proposes to utilize the net proceeds from the issue towards funding the following objects: 

 

1.  Establishment of 150 KLPD Molasses Based Distillery at Bellad, District Belgaum (hereinafter referred to as the 

ñProjectò); and 

2.  General Corporate Purposes (Collectively, referred to hereinafter as the ñObjectsò) 

 

We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the ñIssue Proceedsò) after deducting the Issue related expenses 

(ñNet Proceedsò) for the above-mentioned Objects. 

 

The main object clause of Memorandum of Association of our Company enables us to undertake the activities for which the 

funds are being raised by us through the Issue. Further, we confirm that the activities which we have been carrying out till date 

are in accordance with the object clause of our Memorandum of Association.  

 

Issue Proceeds and Net Proceeds 

 

The details of the proceeds of the Issue are summarized in the table below: 

(Rs.  in lakhs) 

S. No. Particulars Amount 

1. Gross Proceeds of the Issue* [ǒ] 

2. Less: Issue Expenses** [ǒ] 

Net Proceeds of the Issue  [ǒ] 
*Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted as per the Rights Entitlement 

ratio. 

** To be determined at the time of filing the Letter of offer. 

 

Utilization of Net Proceeds and Means of Finance 

The proposed utilization of Net Proceeds is set forth below: 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

S. No. Object Amount proposed to be utilised form the Net 

Proceeds  

1. Establishment of 150 KLPD Molasses Based Distillery at 

Bellad, District Belgaum 

 12,195 

2. General Corporate Purposes [ǒ]  

3.  Net proceeds from the Issue** [ǒ] 
* Subject to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment and the Allotment. The amount is subject to adjustment upon finalization of Issue related 

expenses, however, in no event, shall general corporate purposes exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. 

** Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted per the Rights Entitlement 

ratio. 

 

Means of Finance  

 

The funding requirements mentioned above are based on inter alia our Companyôs internal management estimates and have not 

been appraised by any bank, financial institution or any other external agency. They are based on current circumstances of our 

business and our Company may have to revise these estimates from time to time on account of various factors beyond our control, 

such as market conditions, competitive environment, costs of commodities, interest or exchange rate fluctuations. Our Company 

proposes to meet the entire funding requirements for the proposed objects of the Issue from the Net Proceeds and identifiable 

internal accruals. 

 

Therefore, our Company is not required to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards at least 75% of 

the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised from the Issue. 
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Proposed Schedule of Implementation and Deployment of Funds 

 

We propose to deploy the Net Proceeds towards the aforesaid objects in accordance with the estimated schedule 

of implementation and deployment of funds set forth in the table below: 

(Rs.  in lakhs) 

S. 

No. 

Particulars Amount to be 

deployed from Net 

Proceed 

Estimated deployment 

of Net Proceeds from 

FY 2022-23# 

Estimated deployment 

of Net Proceeds from 

FY 2023-24 

1. Establishment of 150 KLPD Molasses 

Based Distillery at Bellad 

 12,195.00 4,000  8,195 

2. General Corporate Purposes## [ǒ]  [ǒ] [ǒ] 

 Total Net Proceeds from the Issue* [ǒ] [ǒ]  [ǒ] 

# Our Company proposes to utilize funds collected in rights issue after finalization of the basis of allotment. Post completion of 

the rights issue, the Company will immediately use the funds for the purpose stated in the objects of the issue. However, our 

Company in order to expedite the establishment of 150 KLPD Molasses Based Distillery will be temporally funded out of internal 

accruals.  

 

Our Company has deployed Rs. 2420 lakhs, towards meeting the expenditure incurred on the Proposed Projects as on February 

20, 2023, which is certified by M/s P.G.Ghali & Co., Chartered Accountants, vide their certificate dated February 20, 2023. 

 

##The amount to be utilized for General corporate purposes will not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds; 

 

*Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted per the Rights 

Entitlement ratio; 

 

The above fund requirements, the deployment of funds and the intended use of the Net Proceeds as described above are based on 

our current business plan, management estimates, current and valid purchase or work orders issued to suppliers & contractors 

and quotation received by the Company. However, such fund requirements and deployment of funds have not been appraised by 

any bank or financial institution. Our Companyôs funding requirements and deployment schedules are subject to revision in the 

future at the discretion of our Board and will be subject to monitoring by a monitoring agency i.e, ICRA Limited. In view of the 

competitive environment of the industry in which we operate, we may have to revise our business plan from time to time and 

consequently, our funding requirements may also change. We may have to revise our funding requirements, and deployment 

from time to time on account of various factors such as economic and business conditions, increased competition and other 

external factors which may not be within our control. This may entail rescheduling the proposed utilization of the Net Proceeds 

and changing the allocation of funds from its planned allocation at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with 

applicable law. Further, in case the Net Proceeds are not completely utilized in a scheduled Fiscal Year due to any reason, the 

same would be utilized (in part or full) in the next Fiscal Year/ subsequent period as may be determined by our Company, in 

accordance with applicable law. 

 

In case of any increase in the actual utilization of funds earmarked for any of the Objects of the Issue or a shortfall in raising 

requisite capital from the Net Proceeds, such additional funds will be met through means available to us, including by way of 

incremental debt, sale of investments and/or internal accruals. 

 

Details of the Objects of the Issue: 

 

1. Establishment of 150 KLPD Molasses Based Distillery at Bellad 

 

We are an integrated sugar and other allied products manufacturing company and operate a single location sugar unit having 

licensed crushing capacity of 11,000 TCD. In addition to sugar, we also manufacture other allied products such as Rectified 

Spirits, Extra-Neutral Spirits, Indian Made Liquor, Vinegar, Compost etc. Thus, Distillery is a part of our main segment of 

business. Over the years, we have expanded our production and manufacturing capabilities and for the same purpose, we are 

establishing a 150 KLPD Molasse Based Distillery at Bellad. The amount will be utilised to establish the aforestated distillery, 

which will help increase our production capacity. The Project will be capable of producing 160,000 lit/day Rectified Spirit with 

85% v/v or 150,000 lit/day Ethanol with 99.8% v/v from óBô Heavy Molasses. The Project is capable of producing minimum 

11% v/v alcohol content in fermentation wash. 

 

Details of Estimated Costs 

The total estimated cost of capital expenditure for expansion of establishment of 150 KLPD Molasses Based Distillery at Bellad, 

District Belgaum. The detailed break-down of estimated cost is set forth below: 

                                               (Rs.  in lakhs) 
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Particulars Amount Total Estimated 

Civil Works 995.00 

Plant and Machinery (including electricals, design, manufacture, supply etc.) 11,000.00 

Provisions for contingencies and other miscellaneous expenses 200.00 

Total   12,195.00*   

*The said amount is tentative and the same may change as per the market scenario. 

 

Quotation dated November 25, 2022 for civil works involved in the Project has been obtained from Structural & Architectural 

Consultant Mr, Prasad S. Dabeer Designs, Address: 1031, E Ward, B-I-1, Sterlimg Tower, Gavat Mandai, Shahupuri, Kolkapur, 

which is as below ï  

 

Sr. No. Name of Work Estimated Cost 

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

1. Digester Foundation and Allied Works (32 m Dia. 2 Nos)        120.00  

2. Condensate Polishing Units         105.00  

3. Boiler and Auxiliary Foundation           65.00  

4. R.C.C. Chimney         130.00  

5. Power House with control rooms        100.00  

6. Turbo Alternator and Aux Foundation          55.00  

7. Distillery (Civil Works of Distillation, Fermentation section with PLC room and 

Lab)  
       250.00  

8. Civil work for Dryer and Allied Works          60.00  

9. Ash handling and Briquette conveyor system           15.00  

10. Cooling Towers (3 No. with pipe rack columns)           30.00  

11. D.M. Plant          25.00  

12. Roads and Site Development           40.00  

Total 995.00  

 

Quotation dated November 2, 2022 for the Project on turnkey basis has been obtained from M/s Alco Tech Engineering, Address: 

W-18, MIDC, Baramati, Dist- Pune and the same has been reproduced below ï  

 

Design, Manufacture, Supply, erection and commissioning of 150 KLPD MPR Wash to Ethanol Distillery Plant. 

Sr. No. Description Rs. in Lakhs 

1.  Molasses Handling System 11,000.00 

2.  Fermentation Section 

3.  Distillation Section ï Wash to Ethanol RS Multi Pressure Distillation with 

DCS Based Instrumentation 

4.  Design, Fabricate and Supply of Integrated Evaporation Plant  

5.  Condensate Polishing Unit  

6.  WTP  

7.  Utilities like Cooling Towers and Air-Compressors, with Dryers 

8.  Weigh Bridge & Laboratory Equipmentôs  

9.  Boiler with Fuel Feeder Arrangement  

Fuel handling, ash handling of boiler  

Steam line PRDS and steam flow metres along with structure 

Online monitoring system of CPCB 

10.  Turbine ï 4MW 

11.  DG Set  

12.  Erection and Commissioning  

13.  Painting Insulation  

14.  Transport Charges 

15.  Structure 

16.  Civil Work for Plant and Machinery  

 Total   11,000.00 
 
 
 

2. General Corporate Purposes 

Our Company intends to deploy the balance Net Proceeds aggregating to Rs. [ǒ] lakhs towards general corporate purposes, 

subject to such utilization not exceeding 25% of the Issue Proceeds, in compliance with applicable laws, to drive our business 

growth, including, amongst other things, (a) funding growth opportunities, including strategic initiatives; (b) acquiring assets, 
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such as furniture and fixtures and other office equipment; (c) meeting any expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business 

by our Company including salaries and wages, rent, administration expenses, insurance related expenses, and the payment of 

taxes and duties; (d) meeting of exigencies which our Company may face in course of any business, (e) brand building and other 

marketing expenses and (f) any other purpose as permitted by applicable laws and as approved by our Board or a duly appointed 

committee thereof.  

 

Our management, in response to the competitive and dynamic nature of the industry, will have the discretion to revise its business 

plan from time to time and consequently our funding requirement and deployment of funds may change. This may also include 

rescheduling the proposed utilization of Net Proceeds and increasing or decreasing expenditure for a particular object i.e., the 

utilization of Net Proceeds. In case of a shortfall in the Net Proceeds, our management may explore a range of options including 

utilizing our internal accruals or seeking debt from future lenders. Our management expects that such alternate arrangements 

would be available to fund any such shortfall. Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility 

in utilizing the proceeds earmarked for general corporate purposes. In the event that we are unable to utilize the entire amount 

that we have currently estimated for use out of Net Proceeds in a Fiscal, we will utilize such unutilized amount in the next Fiscal. 

 

Issue Related Expenses 

 

The total expenses of the Issue are estimated to be approximately Rs. [ǒ] lakhs. The expenses of this Issue include, among others, 

lead management fees, printing and distribution expenses, advertisement expenses and legal fees, if applicable.  

 

The estimated Issue expenses are as follows: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Activity  Estimated 

Expenses 

As a % of the total 

estimated Issue 

Expenses 

As a % of the 

Total Issue Size 

Payment to Merchant Banker including, underwriting and 

selling commissions, brokerages, Advisors to the Company, 

payment to other intermediaries such as Legal Advisors, 

Registrars etc. and other out of pocket expenses. 

[ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Advertising and marketing expenses [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Printing and stationery expenses, distribution and postage [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Regulatory and other expenses including Listing Fee [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Total estimated Issue expenses [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Note: Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment and actual Allotment. In case of any difference between the estimated Issue 

related expenses and actual expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount allocated towards 

general corporate purposes. All Issue related expenses will be paid out of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue. 

 

Interi m Use of Funds 

 

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, we undertake to temporarily deposit the funds from the Net Proceeds in the 

scheduled commercial banks included in the Second Schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. In accordance with Section 

27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company confirms that it shall not use the Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise 

dealing in the equity shares of any other listed company. 

 

Appraisal Report  

 

None of the objects for which the Net Proceeds from the Issue will be utilised have been appraised by any financial 

institutions/banks. 

 

Bridge Loan 

 

As of the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has not raised any bridge loans which are required to be repaid from the Net 

Proceeds. However, depending on its business requirements, our Company may consider raising bridge financing facilities, 

pending receipt of the Net Proceeds. 

 

Strategic or Financial Partners 

 

There are no strategic or financial partners to the Objects of the Issue. 
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Monitoring of Utilisation of Funds  

 

In accordance with Regulation 41 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company has appointed ICRA Limited as the monitoring 

agency for monitoring the utilisation of Net Proceeds, as the proposed Fresh Issue exceeds Rs. 1,000 million. Our Audit 

Committee and the Monitoring Agency will monitor the utilisation of the Net Proceeds and the Monitoring Agency shall submit 

the report required under Regulation 41(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, on a quarterly basis, until such time as the Net 

Proceeds have been utilised in full. Our Company undertakes to place the report(s) of the Monitoring Agency on receipt before 

the Audit Committee without any delay. Our Company will disclose and continue to disclose, the utilisation of the Net Proceeds, 

including interim use under a separate head in its balance sheet for such fiscal periods as required under the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations and any other applicable laws or regulations, clearly specifying the purposes for which 

the Net Proceeds have been utilized, till the time any part of the Fresh Issue proceeds remains unutilized. Our Company will also, 

in its balance sheet for the applicable fiscal periods, provide details, if any, in relation to all such Net Proceeds that have not been 

utilised, if any, of such currently unutilized Net Proceeds. Further, our Company, on a quarterly basis, shall include the 

deployment of Net Proceeds under various heads, as applicable, in the notes to our financial results.  

 

Pursuant to Regulation 32(3) and Part C of Schedule II, of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall on a quarterly basis 

disclose to the Audit Committee the uses and application of the Net Proceeds. The Audit Committee shall make recommendations 

to our Board for further action, if appropriate. Our Company shall, on an annual basis, prepare a statement of funds utilised for 

purposes other than those stated in this Draft Letter of Offer and place it before our Audit Committee. Such disclosure shall be 

made only until such time that all the Net Proceeds have been utilised in full. The statement shall be certified by the Statutory 

Auditors and such certification shall be provided to the Monitoring Agency. Further, in accordance with Regulation 32(1) of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges on a quarterly basis, a statement indicating (i) 

deviations, if any, in the utilisation of the Net proceeds from the objects of the Issue as stated above; and (ii) details of category 

wise variations in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds from the objects of the Issue as stated above. 

 

Variation in Objects 

 

In accordance with Section 13(8) and Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company shall not vary the Objects of the 

Issue without our Company being authorized to do so by the shareholders by way of a special resolution. In addition, the notice 

issued to the shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution shall specify the prescribed details and be published 

in accordance with the Companies Act 2013. Pursuant to the Companies Act 2013, the Promoters or controlling shareholders will 

be required to provide an exit opportunity to the shareholders who do not agree to such proposal to vary the Objects of the Issue 

at the fair market value of the Equity Shares as on the date of the resolution of our Board recommending such variation in the 

terms of the contracts or the objects referred to in the Letter of Offer, in accordance with such terms and conditions as may be 

specified on this behalf by SEBI. 

 

Other Confirmations 

 

No part of the Net Proceeds of the Issue will be utilized by our Company as consideration to our Promoter, members of the 

Promoter Group, Directors, or key management personnel. Our Company has not entered into or is not planning to enter into any 

arrangement/ agreements with Promoter, Directors, key management personnel, associates in relation to the utilization of the Net 

Proceeds of the Issue. 

 

Key Industry Regulations for the Proposed Objects of the Issue 

 

The Key Industry Regulations for the proposed Objects of the Issue are not different from the existing business of our Company.  

 

Interest of Directors and management, in the objects of the Issue  

 

Our Directors and management do not have any interest in the objects of the Issue. No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by 

our Company as consideration to our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of our Company. 
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS  

 

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY  AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS  

 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited, 

Bellad Bagewadi,  

Taluk Hukkeri,  

District Belagaum - 591305,  

Karnataka - 

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

Sub: Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits available to Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited ("the Company') 

and shareholders of the Company under the direct and indirect tax laws. 

 

We have been requested by the Company to issue a report on the special tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders 

attached for inclusion in this Letter of Offer in connection with the proposed rights issue of equity shares of the Company (the 

"Issue" ). The statement has been prepared by the management of the Company and stamped by us for identification purpose 

only. 

 

The statement showing the current position of special tax benefits available to the Company and the shareholders of the Company 

as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 196l (ñthe IT Act') and the Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017/ Integrated Goods 

and Services Tax Act, 2017 relevant State Goods and Services Tax Act ("SGST") read with rules. circulars. and notifications 

("GST law"), the Customs Act. 1962, Customs Tariff Act, 1975 (" Customs law")  and Foreign Trade Policy 2021-2026 (ñFTPò) 

(here in collectively referred as " Indirect Tax Laws" ) as amended by Finance Act. 2022. i.e., applicable for the assessment year 

AY2023-24 relevant to the financial year 2022-2023 for inclusion in the Letter of offer (ñDLOF") & Letter of Offer ("LOF ò) 

for the issue of rights shares is annexed herewith. 

 

These possible special tax benefits are dependent on the Company and the shareholders of the Company fulfilling the conditions 

prescribed under the relevant provisions of the corresponding Tax laws. Hence, the ability of the Company and the shareholders 

of the Company to derive these possible special tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling such conditions, which is based on 

business imperatives, the Company may face in the future and accordingly, the Company, and the shareholders of the Company 

may or may not choose to fulfil.  

 

Further, certain tax benefits may be optional, and it would be at the discretion of the Company or the shareholders of the Company 

to exercise the option by fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the Tax laws. 

 

The benefits discussed in the enclosed statement are neither exhaustive nor conclusive. The contents stated in the Annexure are 

based on the information and explanations obtained from the Company. This statement is only intended to provide general 

information to guide the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of 

the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult their own tax 

consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the offer. We are neither suggesting 

nor are we advising the investor to invest money or not to invest money based on this statement. 

 

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance whether: 

i. The Company or the shareholders of the Company will continue to obtain these benefits in future; 

ii. The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met; 

iii. The revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein 

 

The statement is intended solely for information and the inclusion in the Letter of Offer in connection with the rights issue of 

equity shares of the Company and is not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose, without our prior consent, 

provided the below statement of limitation is included in the Offer Letter. 

 

Limitation: 

Our views expressed herein are based on the facts and assumptions indicated to us. No assurance is given that the revenue 

authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the existing provisions of the Tax Laws 

and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views 

consequent to such changes. We shall not be liable to the Company for any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this 
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assignment except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from 

bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to the Company, its Certain Material Subsidiaries and any other person 

in respect of this Statement, except as per applicable law. 

 

For M/s. P.G. Ghali & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 011092S 

 

CA Praveen P. Ghali  

Partner 

Membership No. 215756 

UDIN ï 23215756BGSBZR8242 

Date ï February 22, 2023 
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO VISHWARAJ SUGAR 

INDUSTRIES LIMITED (ñTHE COMPANYò) AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS 

The information provided below sets out the possible special direct tax & indirect tax benefits available to the Company and its 

shareholders in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the 

subscription, ownership and disposal of equity shares, under the current tax laws presently in force in India. Several of these 

benefits are dependent on the Company and its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant tax laws. 

Hence, the ability of the Company, and the shareholders of the Company to derive the direct and indirect tax benefits is dependent 

upon their fulfilling such conditions, which is based on business imperatives the Company may face in the future and accordingly, 

the Company, and the shareholders of the Company may or may not choose to fulfil. Further, certain tax benefits may be optional, 

and it would be at the discretion of the Company or the shareholders of the Company to exercise the option by fulfilling the 

conditions prescribed under the Tax laws. 

 

The following overview is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to be a substitute for professional advice. 

Investors are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications of an investment in the shares 

particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may have a 

different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail. The tax benefits stated below are as per the Income tax Act, 

1961 (ñIT Actò) as amended from time to time and applicable for financial year 2021-22 relevant to assessment year 2022- 23 

(AY 2022-23) and Indirect Tax Laws as amended from time to time and applicable for financial year 2021-22. 

 

I. Under the IT Act  

1. Special tax benefits available to the Company under the Act 

a) Lower Corporate Tax Rate under section 115BAA 

A new Section 115BAA has been inserted by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 (ñthe Amendment Act 2019ò) granting 

an option to domestic companies to compute corporate tax at a reduced rate of 25.17% (22% plus surcharge of 10% and cess of 

4%) from the Financial Year 2019-20, provided such companies do not avail specified exemptions/incentives (i.e. deduction 

under section 10AA, 32(1)(iia), 33ABA, 35 (2AB), 80-IA etc.) The Amendment Act, 2019 also provides that domestic companies 

availing such option will not be required to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (ñMATò) under section 115JB. The CBDT has further 

issued Circular 29/2019 dated Oct 02, 2019 clarifying that since the MAT provisions under section 115JB itself would not apply 

where a domestic company exercises option of lower tax rate under section 115BAA, MAT credit would not be available. 

Corresponding amendment has been inserted under section 115JAA dealing with MAT credit. The Company is eligible to 

exercise the above option and has exercised the option to pay tax u/s 115BAA from AY 2021-22. 

 

B. Deductions from Gross Total Income 

Section 80 JJAA- Deduction in respect of Employment of new employees 

Subject to fulfilment of prescribed conditions, the company and the Material Subsidiaries are entitled to claim deduction, under 

the provision of Section 80JJAA of the Act, of an amount equal to thirty percent of additional employee cost (relating to specified 

category of employees) incurred in the course of business in the previous year, for three assessment years including the assessment 

year relevant to the previous year in which such employment is provided. 

 

Section 80M-Deduction in respect of inter-corporate dividends 

A new Section 80M has been inserted by the Finance Act, 2020 w.e.f. April 01, 2020 providing for deduction from gross total 

income of a domestic company, of an amount equal to dividends received by such company from another domestic company or 

a foreign company or a business trust as does not exceed the amount of dividend distributed by it on or before one month prior 

to the date of filing its tax return as prescribed under Section 139(1) of the Act. Where the Company received any such dividend 

during a Financial Year and also, distributes dividend to its shareholders before the aforesaid date, as may be relevant to the said 

Financial year, it shall be entitled to the deduction under Section 80M of the Act. 

 

2. Special tax benefits available to Shareholders 

There are no special tax benefits available to the shareholders (other than resident corporate shareholder) of the company. With 

respect to a resident corporate shareholder, a new section 80M is inserted in the Finance Act, 2020, to remove the cascading 

effect of taxes on inter-corporate dividends during financial year 2020-21 and thereafter. The Section provides that where the 

gross total income of a domestic company in any previous year includes any income by way of dividends from any other domestic 

company or a foreign company or a business trust, there shall, in accordance with and subject to the provisions of this section, 

be allowed in computing the total income of such domestic company, a deduction of an amount equal to so much of the amount 

of income by way of dividends received from such other domestic company or foreign company or business trust as does not 

exceed the amount of dividend distributed by it on or before the due date. The ñdue dateò means the date one month prior to the 

date for furnishing the return of income under sub-section (1) of section 139. 

 

 



48 
 

NOTES: - 

a) The above statement of possible special tax benefits sets out the provisions of Tax Laws in a summary manner only and is not 

a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of shares. 

b) The above statement covers only certain special tax benefits under the Act, read with the relevant rules, circulars and 

notifications and does not cover any benefit under any other law in force in India. This statement also does not discuss any tax 

consequences, in the country outside India, of an investment in the shares of an Indian company. 

c) The above statement of possible special tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the assessment year 2022-

23. Several of these benefits are dependent on the company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the 

relevant provision of the Tax Laws. 

d) In respect of non-residents, the tax rate and consequent taxation mentioned above will be further subject to any benefits 

available under the relevant Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement, if any, entered into between India and the country in which 

the non-resident has fiscal domicile. 

e) In respect of lower Corporate Tax rate under section 115BAA, it may be noted that such option for Financial Year 2020-21 is 

yet to be exercised by the Company which could be done prior to furnishing the tax return of the Company for Financial Year 

2020-21. The option once exercised cannot be subsequently withdrawn for the same or any other Financial Year. 

f) If the company opts for concessional corporate income tax rate as prescribed under section 115BAA of the Act, it will not be 

allowed to claim any of the following deductions: - 

¶ Deduction under the provisions of section 10AA (deduction for units in Special Economic Zone) 

¶ Deduction under clause (iia) of subïsection (1) of section 32 (Additional Depreciation) 

¶ Deduction under section 32AD or section 33AB or section 33ABA (Investment allowance in backward areas, Investment 

deposit account, site restoration fund) 

¶ Deduction under sub-clause (ii) or sub-clause (iia) or sub clause (iii) of sub-section (1) or sub-section (2AA) or sub-section 

(2AB) of section 35 (Expenditure on scientific research)  

¶ Deduction under section 35AD or section 35CCC (deduction for specified business, agricultural extension project) 

¶ Deduction under section 35CCD (Expenditure on skill development) 

¶ Deduction under any provisions of Chapter VI-A other than the provisions of section 80JJAA or section 80M 

¶ No set off of any loss carried forward or depreciation from any earlier assessment year, if such loss or depreciation is attributable 

to any of the deductions referred above 

¶ No set off of any loss or allowance for unabsorbed deprecation deemed so under section 72A, if such loss or depreciation is 

attributable to any of the deductions referred above 

g) This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be 

substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, each investor is advised to consult 

his or her tax advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his/her investment in the shares of the Company. 

 

II. Under the Indirect Tax Laws 

1. Special indirect tax benefits available to the Company. 

The Company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under indirect tax laws. 

 

2. Special indirect tax benefits available to Shareholders 

The Shareholders of the company are not entitled to any special tax benefit under indirect tax laws. 

 

NOTES: 

1. This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a 

substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, each investor is advised to consult 

his or her tax advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his/her investment in the shares of the Company. 

2. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. The views are based on 

the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not assume 

responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes.  
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SECTION IV - ABOUT THE COMPANY  

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW  

 

The information in this chapter has been extracted from websites and publicly available documents from various sources. The 

data may have been re-classified by us for the purpose of presentation. Neither we nor any other person connected with this Issue 

has independently verified the information provided in this chapter. Industry sources and publications, referred to in this chapter, 

generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable but their 

accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry sources 

and publications may also base their information on estimates, projections, forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be 

incorrect. Industry publications are also prepared based on information as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect 

the current trends. Accordingly, investors should not place undue reliance on, or base their investment decision on this 

information. The information in this section must be read in conjunction with the chapters titled ñRisk Factorsò and ñOur 

Businessò beginning on page 19 and 57, respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

Global Economic Overview 

The war in Ukraine has triggered a costly humanitarian crisis that demands a peaceful resolution. Economic damage from the 

conflict will contribute to a significant slowdown in global growth in 2022. A severe double-digit drop in GDP for Ukraine and 

a large contraction in Russia are more than likely, along with worldwide spill-overs through commodity markets, trade, and 

financial channels. Even as the war reduces growth, it will add to inflation. Fuel and food prices have increased rapidly, with 

vulnerable populationsðparticularly in low-income countriesð most affected. Elevated inflation will complicate the trade-offs 

central banks face between containing price pressures and safeguarding growth. Interest rates are expected to rise as central banks 

tighten policy, exerting pressure on emerging market and developing economies. Moreover, many countries have limited fiscal 

policy space to cushion the impact of the war on their economies. Moreover, recent lockdowns in key manufacturing and trade 

hubs in China will likely compound supply disruptions elsewhere. 

 

Global growth is projected to slow from an estimated 6.1 percent in 2021 to 3.6 percent in 2022 and 2023. This is 0.8 and 0.2 

percentage points lower for 2022 and 2023 than in the January World Economic Outlook Update. Beyond 2023, global growth 

is forecast to decline to about 3.3 percent over the medium term. Crucially, this forecast assumes that the conflict remains confined 

to Ukraine, further sanctions on Russia exempt the energy sector (although the impact of European countriesô decisions to wean 

themselves off Russian energy and embargoes announced through March 31, 2022, are factored into the baseline), and the 

pandemicôs health and economic impacts abate over the course of 2022. With a few exceptions, employment and output will 

typically remain below pre-pandemic trends through 2026. Scarring effects are expected to be much larger in emerging market 

and developing economies than in advanced economiesðreflecting more limited policy support and generally slower 

vaccinationðwith output expected to remain below the pre-pandemic trend throughout the forecast horizon. Unusually high 

uncertainty surrounds this forecast, and downside risks to the global outlook dominateðincluding from a possible worsening of 

the war, escalation of sanctions on Russia, a sharper-than-anticipated deceleration in China as a strict zero-COVID strategy is 

tested by Omicron, and a renewed flare-up of the pandemic should a new, more virulent virus strain emerge. Moreover, the war 

in Ukraine has increased the probability of wider social tensions because of higher food and energy prices, which would further 

weigh on the outlook. Inflation is expected to remain elevated for longer than in the previous forecast, driven by war-induced 

commodity price increases and broadening price pressures. For 2022, inflation is projected at 5.7 percent in advanced economies 

and 8.7 percent in emerging market and developing economiesð1.8 and 2.8 percentage points higher than projected in January. 

Although a gradual resolution of supply-demand imbalances and a modest pickup in labor supply are expected in the baseline, 

easing price inflation eventually, uncertainty again surrounds the forecast. Conditions could significantly deteriorate. Worsening 

supply-demand imbalancesð including those stemming from the warðand further increases in commodity prices could lead to 

persistently high inflation, rising inflation expectations, and stronger wage growth. If signs emerge that inflation will be high 

over the medium term, central banks will be forced to react faster than currently anticipatedðraising interest rates and exposing 

debt vulnerabilities, particularly in emerging markets. 

 

Multilateral efforts to respond to the humanitarian crisis, prevent further economic fragmentation, maintain global liquidity, 

manage debt distress, tackle climate change, and end the pandemic remain essential and as the pandemic is not yet over, 

governments must use all tools at their disposal to combat the virus, both by meeting vaccination targets and by ensuring equitable 

access to tests and treatment. 

 

Source: World Economic Outlook Report by IMF  

(https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2022/04/19/world-economic-outlook-april-2022) 

 

 

https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2022/04/19/world-economic-outlook-april-2022
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Indian Economy Overview 

Right when the global economy seemed to be at the cusp of witnessing green shoots of recovery after leaving the worst of the 

COVID-19 pandemic behind (despite uncertainties associated with subsequent waves of infection and rising global inflationary 

pressures), the Russia-Ukraine crisis escalated. Consequently, prices of crude oil and gas, food grains such as wheat and corn, 

and several other commodities have shot up. The conflict has also brought in severe financial sanctions and political pressure on 

Russia from the rest of the world, primarily the Western powers. It is obvious that these will likely have unpredictable and 

undesired implications on the global financial system and economy. Global investors, for instance, are shoring up their money 

into safer-haven assets such as gold and US Treasuries, while equity markets in emerging countries, which were seeing capital 

outflows since the US Federal Reserveôs announcement to taper asset purchases in November, are in a state of flux. 

 

It is, therefore, no surprise that the war in Ukraine and its potential economic impact have forced several economic forecasters to 

go back to their drawing boards and revise their growth projections for this yearðmost now point to less-than-expected growth 

in 2022. Even though there is little visibility into how long the conflict will last, our economists believe that the crisis could hurt 

growth in the United States and the United Kingdom by 0.3ï0.5% in 2022. 

 

We, however, believe that Indiaôs underlying economic fundamentals are strong and despite the short-term turbulence, the impact 

on the long-term outlook will be marginal. The results of growth-enhancing policies and schemes (such as production-linked 

incentives and governmentôs push toward self-reliance) and increased infrastructure spending will start kicking in from 2023, 

leading to a stronger multiplier effect on jobs and income, higher productivity, and more efficiencyðall leading to accelerated 

economic growth. Furthermore, the emphasis on manufacturing in India, various government incentives such as lower taxes, and 

rising services exports on the back of stronger digitization and technology transformation drive across the world will aid in 

growth. Also, several spillover effects of geopolitical conflicts could enhance Indiaôs status as a preferred alternate investment 

destination. 

 

On the back of these factors, we expect India to grow at 8.3ï8.8% during FY2021ï22, followed by equally strong growth of 

more than 7.5% and 6.5% in the next two fiscal years, respectively. This will likely mean that the baton for the fastest-growing 

emerging country will be passed on from China to India in the coming years.   

 

GDP grew by 5.4% during OctoberïDecember 2021 (Q3 FY2021ï22), slower than we had earlier estimated. Growth in the Julyï

September quarter was revised up to 8.4%, which explains the fading recovery in the subsequent quarter. The uneven (modest, 

at best) recovery in a few sectors, especially agricultural, manufacturing, and contact-intensive services sectors, weighed on the 

overall growth. 

 

On the expenditure front, although festive demand and reduced infections boosted private consumption, growth momentum 

slowed compared to previous quarter. Slower-than-expected demand growth and lower capacity utilization weighed on the 

momentum in gross fixed capital formation growth. Even government expenditure declined this quarter. However, exports 

maintained a strong momentum, pushing the overall growth upward. 

 

Consumer price inflation (CPI) breached the upper band of the Reserve Bank of Indiaôs (RBIôs) comfort zone (of 4%+2%) and 

grew by 6% in January 2022 as against 5.7% in the previous month. Wholesale price inflation also jumped to a decadal high of 

12.96%. Prices rose primarily because of logistics and supply chain disruption as the number of infections increased and regional 

lockdowns were imposed. Prices of food commoditiesðled by vegetables, edible oils, and poultry productsðwitnessed sharp 

increases. 

 

Consumer price inflation (CPI) breached the upper band of the Reserve Bank of Indiaôs (RBIôs) comfort zone (of 4%+2%) and 

grew by 6% in January 2022 as against 5.7% in the previous month. Wholesale price inflation also jumped to a decadal high of 

12.96%. Prices rose primarily because of logistics and supply chain disruption as the number of infections increased and regional 

lockdowns were imposed. Prices of food commoditiesðled by vegetables, edible oils, and poultry productsðwitnessed sharp 

increases. 
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On a positive note, there was a visible growth in credit uptake in FY 2021ï22, with agricultural and industrial sectors and personal 

loans driving the uptick (figure 3). Falling gross nonperforming asset (GNPA) ratios in the industry sector (by 7.6% in three 

years) contributed to a significant rise in lending to this sector. Credit growth in the services sector, meanwhile, remained muted 

while the GNPA ratio remained higher than pre-pandemic levels. Banks and nonbanking financial companies (NBFCs) have 

healthier balance sheets and provisions compared to the levels seen in 2018. They are in a better position to lend and remain 

resilient in case of rising stress in the financial sector due to sanctions on Russia. However, credit growth remains far below the 

2019 levels and is in need of an uptick at a sustainable pace. 

 

 

 
 

Source: India Economic Outlook Report by Deloitte 

(https://www2.deloitte.com/uk/en/insights/economy/asia-pacific/india-economic-outlook-04-2022.html ) 

 

Indian Sugar Industry  

Sugar industries development is backbone to economic development of the nation. Significance of sugarcane and sugar industry 

for Indiaôs economy can be gauged from the fact that it is the countryôs second largest agro-based industry, next to cotton. It 

impacts the livelihood of over 5 crore farmers and their dependents. India is the largest consumer and the second-largest producer 

of sugar in the world. Average annual production of sugarcane is around 35.5 crore tonnes which is used to produce around 3 

crore tonnes of sugar. The domestic consumption is estimated to be around 2.6 crore tonnes in 2020-21. Over the years, India has 

become a sugar surplus nation as reflected from the trend of sugar production and consumption in Figure 10. Since 2010-11, 

production has outstripped consumption except in 2016-17.  

 

This has been possible because of various measures undertaken by Government. For example, the interest of the farmers is 

protected by Fair and Remunerative Price (FRP) which has doubled in a span of ten years. In addition, some state governments 

https://www2.deloitte.com/uk/en/insights/economy/asia-pacific/india-economic-outlook-04-2022.html
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announce State Advised Price (SAP) at levels higher than FRP. Additionally, sugar mills that buy sugarcane are mandated to 

purchase crops from farmers within a specified radius known as the Cane Reservation Area. In this way, sugarcane farmers are 

insured and protected against price risk. 

 

 
 

Source: Indian Economic Survey 2021-2022 

Incentivizing Sugar Mills 

In order to handle the surplus production and enhance liquidity of mills, the Government has taken various steps such as 

incentivizing sugar mills to divert excess sugar cane/sugar to ethanol production, providing financial assistance for transport to 

sugar mills to facilitate export of sugar, etc. About 70 LMT of sugar has been exported in sugar season 2020- 21 in comparison 

to 59.60 LMT of sugar export in sugar season 2019-20. Further, contracts of about 30 LMT for export of sugar have already been 

signed in the sugar season 2021-22. Moreover, in the past four sugar seasons ending 2020-21, revenue of about Rs. 35,000 crore 

has been generated by sugar mills/distilleries from sale of ethanol to Oil Marketing Companies which has helped in clearing cane 

price arrears of farmers. 
 

Source: Indian Economic Survey 2021-2022 

Production 

There are 506 operational sugar factories in the country as on 04.02.2022, with sufficient crushing capacity to produce around 

350 lakh MT of sugar. The capacity is roughly distributed equally between private sector units and co-operative sector units. The 

capacity of sugar mills is, by and large, in the range of 2,500 Tonnes Crushed per Day (TCD) to 5,000 TCD bracket but 

increasingly expanding and going even beyond 10,000 TCD. Three standalone refineries have also been established in the country 

in the coastal belt of Gujarat, West Bengal and Andhra Pradesh which produce refined sugar mainly from imported raw sugar as 

also from indigenously produced raw sugar. The sector-wise break-up of operation sugar mills in the country is given below: - 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Sector  Number of Factories  

1. Co-Operative  204 

2. Private  292 

 Total 506* 

* Inclusive of 3 refineries each in Gujrat, West Bengal and Andhra Pradesh. 

 

Source: Annual report (2021-2022) from the Department of food and Consumer Affairs. 

 

Export of Indian Sugar Industry  

Sugar is an essential commodity. Its sale, delivery from mills, and distribution were regulated by the Government under Essential 

Commodities Act, 1955. Till 15.01.1997, the exports of sugar were being carried out under the provisions of the Sugar Export 

Promotion Act, 1958, through the notified export agencies, viz. Indian Sugar & General Industry Export Import Corporation Ltd. 

(ISGIEIC) and State Trading Corporation of India Ltd. (STC). 

 



53 
 

Through an Ordinance, the Sugar Export Promotion Act, 1958, was repealed w.e.f. 15.01.1997 and thus the export of sugar was 

decanalised. Under the decanalised regime, the export of sugar was being carried out through the Agricultural and Processed 

Food Products Export Development Authority (APEDA), under Ministry of Commerce & Industry. Thereafter, the sugar export 

was undertaken by the various sugar mills/merchant exporters, after obtaining the export release orders from the Directorate of 

Sugar. 
 

During the surplus phase of 2006-07 and 2007-08 sugar seasons, the sugar exports were permitted without release orders. 

Subsequently, the necessity of obtaining release order was reintroduced from 01.01.2009, in view of drop in sugar production. 

However, due to surplus production during 2010-11 sugar season, Government permitted exports under Open General License 

on the strength of the release order. 
 

The phase of surplus production continued and the Government has again dispensed with the requirement of export release orders 

w.e.f. 11.05.2012. Thereafter, the export of sugar was made free subject to prior registration of quantity with DGFT. 

Subsequently, w.e.f. 07.09.2015, the requirement for prior registration (RC) was also dispensed with.  

 

 
Sugar season-wise export of sugar 

Source: Annual report (2021-2022) from the Department of food and Consumer Affairs. 

Import Of Indian Sugar Industry  

Sugar production in the sugar season 2008- 09 had declined and in order to augment the domestic stock of sugar, the Central 

Government allowed import of raw sugar at zero duty under Open General License (OGL) w.e.f. 17.04.2009 which was 

applicable till 30.06.2012. Thereafter, a moderate duty of 10% was re-imposed w.e.f. 13.07.2012 which was subsequently 

increased to 15% w.e.f. 08.07.2013. 
 

Due to surplus stocks of sugar in the country and in order to check any possible imports, the Government increased the import 

duty from 15% to 25% on 21.08.2014, which was subsequently increased to 40% w.e.f. 30.04.2015 and further increased to 50% 

w.e.f. 10.07.2017. In order to prevent any unnecessary import of sugar and to stabilize the domestic price at a reasonable level, 

the Central Government has increased custom duty on import of sugar from 50% to 100% in the interest of farmers w.e.f. 

06.02.2018. 

 
Sugar season-wise import of sugar 

Source: Annual report (2021-2022) from the Department of food and Consumer Affairs. 



54 
 

 

Regulations in Sugar Industry 

With the amendment of the Sugarcane (Control) Order, 1966 on 22.10.2009 and the concept of Statutory Minimum Price (SMP) 

of sugarcane was replaced with the óFair and Remunerative Price (FRP) of sugarcane for 2009-10 and subsequent sugar seasons. 

The cane price announced by the Central Government is decided on the basis of the recommendations of the Commission for 

Agricultural Costs and Prices (CACP) after consulting the State Governments and associations of sugar industry. The amended 

provisions of the Sugarcane (Control) Order, 1966 provides for fixation of FRP of sugarcane having regard to the following 

factors: - 

 

a. Cost of production of sugarcane; 

b. Return to the growers from alternative crops and the general trend of prices of agricultural commodities; 

c. Availability of sugar to consumers at a fair price; 

d. Price at which sugar produced from sugarcane is sold by sugar producers; 

e. Recovery of sugar from sugarcane; 

f. The realization made from sale of by-products viz. molasses, bagasse and press mud or their imputed value and 

g. Reasonable margins for the growers of sugarcane on account of risk and profits. 

 

Under the FRP system, the farmers are not required to wait till the end of the season or for any announcement of profits by sugar 

mills or the Government. The new system also assures margins on account of profit and risk to farmers, irrespective of the fact 

whether sugar mills generate profit or not and is not dependent on the performance of any individual sugar mill. 

 

In order to ensure that higher sugar recoveries are adequately rewarded and considering variations amongst sugar mills, the FRP 

is linked to a basic recovery rate of sugar, with a premium payable to farmers for higher recoveries of sugar from sugarcane. 

 

Accordingly, FRP for 2021-22 sugar season has been fixed at ` 290 per quintal linked to a basic recovery of 10% subject to a 

premium of ` 2.90 per quintal for each 0.1% increase of recovery over and above 10% and reduction in FRP at the same rate for 

each 0.1% decrease in the recovery rate ill 9.5%. With a view to protect interest of farmers, the Government has decided that 

there shall not be any deduction in case where recovery is below 9.5%; such farmers will get ` 275.50 per quintal for sugarcane 

in the current season. 

 

Source: Annual report (2021-2022) from the Department of food and Consumer Affairs. 

De-regulation of sugar sector on the recommendations of Dr. Rangarajan Committee report 

The year 2013-14 was a water-shed for the sugar industry. The Central Government considered the recommendations of the 

committee headed by Dr. C. Rangarajan on de-regulation of sugar sector and decided to discontinue the system of levy obligations 

on mills for sugar produced after September, 2012 and abolished the regulated release mechanism on open market sale of sugar. 

The de-regulation of the sugar sector was undertaken to improve the financial health of sugar mills, enhance cash flows, reduce 

inventory costs and also result in timely payments of cane price to sugarcane farmers. The recommendations of the Committee 

relating to Cane Area Reservation, Minimum Distance Criteria and adoption of the Cane Price Formula have been left to State 

Governments for adoption and implementation, as considered appropriate by them. 
 

Source: Annual report (2021-2022) from the Department of food and Consumer Affairs. 

Government Initiatives 

After the implementation of National Food Security Act (NFSA), 2013 in the entire country, there is no identified category of 

BPL under the NFSA, 2013; however, the Antyodaya Anna Yojana (AAY) beneficiaries are clearly identified. The Government 

has reviewed the sugar subsidy scheme and has decided to give access to consumption of sugar as a source of energy in diet, for 

the poorest of the poor section of the society i.e., AAY families. 
 

The Central Government has been reimbursing a fixed subsidy of 18.50 per kg @ 1 kg per month per AAY family to participating 

States/ UTs. The States/ UTs are also allowed either to absorb the additional cost on account of handling, transportation and 

dealerôs commission or pass it on to the consumer by adding it to the Retail Issue Price (RIP) of ` 13.50 per kg under the Public 

Distribution System (PDS). 
 

Presently 24 states are participating in the scheme and about 1.87 crore AAY families are getting benefit under this scheme for 

which about 2.25 Lakh tons sugar is being distributed. 
 

Source: Annual report (2021-2022) from the Department of food and Consumer Affairs. 

Power Sector in India 

Power is one of the most critical components of infrastructure crucial for the economic growth and welfare of nations. The 

existence and development of adequate infrastructure is essential for sustained growth of the Indian economy. 
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Indiaôs power sector is one of the most diversified in the world. Sources of power generation range from conventional sources 

such as coal, lignite, natural gas, oil, hydro and nuclear power to viable non-conventional sources such as wind, solar, and 

agricultural and domestic waste. Electricity demand in the country has increased rapidly and is expected to rise further in the 

years to come. In order to meet the increasing demand for electricity in the country, massive addition to the installed generating 

capacity is required. 

 

India was ranked fourth in wind power, fifth in solar power and fourth in renewable power installed capacity, as of 2020. India 

is the only country among the G20 nations that is on track to achieve the targets under the Paris Agreement. 

 

Source: India Brand Equity Foundation 

(https://www.ibef.org/industry/power-sector-india) 

  

Bagasse Co-generation Industry in India 

Bagasse is a by-product of sugar cane that is used as fuel in boilers to produce process steam. The consumption of Bagasse 

depends upon the pressure at which steam is produced in boiler. Co-generation projects with higher boiler pressure results in low 

computation of Bagasse, resulting in increased operating days. 

 

Recycling Bagasse: The task force recommends that incentives be provided to sugarcane mills to recycle bagasse. In addition to 

being used as a biofuel, bagasse has multiple other uses. If bagasse is not burned in high-pressure boilers it will lead to 

uncontrolled burning and environmental air pollution. The funding should be procured through soft loans from the SDF. In 

addition, to tackle falling prices, a complete rethink of cogen pricing needs to happen to incentivize this industry to use bagasse 

and the other biomass. 

 

Source: Maharashtra Energy Development Agency 

https://www.mahaurja.com/meda/en/grid_connected_power/bagasse  

And, NITI Aayog Task Force Report 
 

Thermal Power Industry in India  

¶ Global proven crude oil reserves are estimated at 1730 bn barrels, proven natural gas at 196.9 tn cubic meters, and 

proven coal at 1,055 bn tonnes. 

 

¶ The target of electricity generation from conventional sources for the year 2020-21 was fixed as 1330 bn Unit (BU). 

 

¶ Total installed generation capacity of 384GW transformed country from a power deficit to a power surplus country. 

 

¶ The installed generation capacity is around 379 Giga Watt which is more than adequate to serve the electricity peak 

demand of 190 GW. 

 

¶ Total Coal reserves in India are estimated to be 326.50 bn tonnes, out of which 155.61 bn tonnes are proven reserves. 

Proven natural gas reserve measures up to 1233 bn cubic meters (BCM), as reported in March 2018. 

 

¶ NTPC Group achieves over 100 bn Units of cumulative generation in the current financial year that indicates improved 

performance and an increase in demand for power. 

 

¶ India is well on its way to achieving and surpassing its nationally determined contribution (NDC) target which was 40% 

capacity by non-fossil-fuel sources by 2030. 

 

¶ India is the third-largest producer of electricity and consumer of energy. 

¶ Arunachal Pradesh state has one of the highest potentials for generating hydro-power in India. It is divided into five 

river valleys having immense hydropower potential, currently estimated at 50,328 MW, or approximately 22%of India's 

current power generating capacity. 

 

¶ Power consumption moderated from its double-digit YoY growth in October, it grew at 3.5 per cent in November, 

signalling sustained recovery in commercial and industrial activity as compared to a growth of 4.6 per cent in September 

2020. 

 

¶ Conventional power generation capacity to be commissioned by 2024-25 is at various stages of construction in the 

country which includes Thermal 36,765 MW, Hydro 10,164.50 MW and Nuclear 4,800 MW. 

 

https://www.ibef.org/industry/power-sector-india
https://www.mahaurja.com/meda/en/grid_connected_power/bagasse
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¶ The Hydro based generation has decreased by 8.22% and Nuclear based generation has increased by 4.60% during 

December 2020 as compared to last year during the same period.  

 

(Source:https://www.msmekipathshala.com/webkype/assets/pdf/MAKE%20IN%20INDIA/THERMAL%20POWER%20

-%20Make%20In%20India.pdf) 

 

Ethanol blended Petroleum Programme   

In order to find a permanent solution to address the problem of excess sugar, Government is encouraging sugar mills to divert 

excess sugarcane to ethanol. Government has fixed target of 10% blending of fuel grade ethanol with petrol by 2022 & 20% 

blending by 2025. 

 

Till year 2014, ethanol distillation capacity of molasses-based distilleries was less than 200 cr litres. Supply of ethanol to OMCs 

was only 38 crore litres with blending levels of only 1.53 % in ethanol supply year (ESY) 2013-14. However, in past 7.5 years, 

due to the policy changes made by the Government, the capacity of molasses-based distilleries have been doubled and are 

currently at 519 cr litres. Capacity of grain-based distilleries are presently about 268 crore liters. 

 

Production of fuel grade ethanol and its supply to OMCs has increased by 5 times from 2013-14 to 2018-19. In ESY 2018- 19, 

we touched a historically high figure of about 189 cr litres thereby achieving 5% blending. 

 

In previous ethanol supply year 2020-21 (December - November), about 302 cr ltrs ethanol was supplied to OMCs to achieve 8.1 

% blending levels. It is likely that we will be achieving 10% blending target by 2022. With a view to support sugar sector and in 

the interest of sugarcane farmers, the Government has also allowed production of ethanol from B-Heavy Molasses, sugarcane 

juice, sugar syrup and sugar. 

 

Government has been fixing remunerative ex-mill price of ethanol derived from C-heavy & B-heavy molasses & ethanol derived 

from sugarcane juice/ sugar/ sugar syrup for ethanol season to encourage mills to divert excess sugarcane to ethanol. The cabinet 

committee on Economic Affairs chaired by Prime Minister, has given its approval for fixing higher ethanol price derived from 

different sugarcane based raw materials under the EBP Programme for the forthcoming sugar season 2021-22 during ESY 2021-

22 from 1st December, 2021 to 30th November, 2022. The price of ethanol from C heavy molasses route be increased from ` 

45.69 per litre to ` 46.66 per litre. The price of ethanol from B heavy molasses route be increased from ` 57.61 per litre to ` 59.08 

per litre. The price of ethanol from sugarcane juice, sugar/sugar syrup route be increased from ` 62.65 per litre to ` 63.45 per litre, 

additionally, GST and transportation charges will also be payable. 6.30 

 

In sugar seasons 2018-19 & 2019-20 about 3.37 & 9.26 LMT of sugar was diverted to ethanol. In previous sugar season 2020-

21, about 22 LMT of excess sugar was diverted to ethanol. In current sugar season 2021- 22, it is likely that about 35 LMT of 

excess sugar would be diverted to ethanol. By 2025, it is targeted to divert 50-60 LMT of excess sugar to ethanol, which would 

solve the problem of high inventories of sugar, improve liquidity of mills thereby help in timely payment of cane dues of farmers. 

 

Source: Annual report (2021-2022) from the Department of food and Consumer Affairs  

 

  

https://www.msmekipathshala.com/webkype/assets/pdf/MAKE%20IN%20INDIA/THERMAL%20POWER%20-%20Make%20In%20India.pdf
https://www.msmekipathshala.com/webkype/assets/pdf/MAKE%20IN%20INDIA/THERMAL%20POWER%20-%20Make%20In%20India.pdf
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OUR BUSINESS 

 

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain forward-

looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in the Equity Shares, Shareholders should 

read this entire Draft Letter of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. For a discussion 

of certain risks in connection with investment in the Equity Shares, you should read ñRisk Factorsò on page 19, for a 

discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements, as well as ñFinancial Informationò and 

ñManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsò on pages 84 and 156, 

respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer, for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition 

or results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-

looking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this section is derived from our Financial 

Statements and Limited Reviewed Financial Statements. 

 

OVERVIEW  

We are an integrated sugar and other allied products manufacturing company operating from Belgaum District in the State 

of Karnataka which is designated as one of the ñHigh Recovery zonesò for sugar production by Government of India. We 

operate a single location sugar unit having licensed crushing capacity of 11,000 TCD. In addition to sugar we       also 

manufacture other allied products like Rectified Spirits, Extra-Neutral Spirits, Vinegar, Compost, Carbon dioxide (CO2), 

etc. and are further engaged in the generation of Power for captive consumption as well as external sale. Our business can 

hence be broken up into four main segments namely Sugar, Co-Generation, Distillery, and Vinegar. 

 

In the year 2001, we commenced operations of manufacture of Distillery products such as Ethanol, Rectified Spirit and 

Extra Neutral Spirit. In the year 2006, our Company implemented backward integration and began commercial operations 

for Sugar manufacture from sugarcane, along with Co-Generation capabilities.  Currently our integrated unit processes 

sugarcanes to produce sugar and the by- products are used to generate electricity for captive use and commercial sale, 

manufacture rectified spirit, ENA, Vinegar, Press-mud and Compost. Over the years, we have expanded the production / 

manufacturing capacities of all our products. Our present licensed manufacturing capacity for our various products is 

given below: 

(1) The above licensed capacities are equivalent to a total Sugarcane crushing capacity of 11000 TCD working 

for approximately 200 days per year (Crushing Season) at an average 12% recovery rate for sugar, 30% for 

Bagasse and 4% for Molasses and 6.5% in case of B heavy Molasses 

 

Production of sugar, power and distillery products requires our Company to adopt stringent Quality Assurance and Quality 

Control standards (QA/QC). We have set-up indigenous laboratories for each department which ensure that quality of raw 

material used in the production process and also the finished goods delivered to our customers is subject to various tests. 

To access and facilitate compliance with applicable requirements, we regularly review our quality systems to determine 

their effectiveness and identify areas for improvement. This helps in improving our procurement process thus reducing 

wastages, returns and other related costs. Our Company has obtained FSSC 22000 Version 5.1 certification, vide 

Certificate Registration Number 44 295 22393778 the highest in Quality and Safety in sugarcane milling, clarification, 

juice evaporation, crystallization, centrifugation of massecuite, drying, grading and packaging of sugar in PP bags issued 

by TUV Nord GmBh issued on October 3, 2022 and valid until October 2, 2025. Our Company has received a certification 

from Eurofins Assurance India Private Limited on December 23, 2022 with validity upto January 29, 2024 vide certificate 

reference number F_EI0180_2022 with grade A+ for manufacturing of brewed vinegar from cane spirit by aerobic 

fermentation and ultrafiltration, packed in bulk into trunks or drums. 
 

During the production of sugar; bagasse and molasses are produced which are the basic raw materials for power generation 

and Distillery (Spirit) manufacturing unit, respectively. The sugar unit of our integrated production facility first crushes 

sugarcane to extract juice and processes the juice to produce sugar. The sugar manufactured is then graded and packed 

based on the size of crystals and quality of the sugarcane. During the last fiscal year, we produced 92,700 tonnes of sugar. 

After extracting the juice from sugarcane, the residual fibre leftover called Bagasse is used as a fuel for power generation. 

The molasses used in the process of sugar production is fermented and distilled to manufacture various spirits (Rectified 

Sr. No. Product Current  Approved Capacity 

1.  Sugar 2,42,000 Tons / Year 

2.  Bagasse 6,60,000 Tons / Year 

3.  Molasses 88,000 Tons / Year 

4.  Rectified Spirit/Ethanol 1,20,000 KL / Year 

5.  Extra Neutral Alcohol (ENA) 21,000 KL / Year 

6.  Electricity / Power 4,96,800 MW / Hr 

7.  Brewed Vinegar 10,350 KL / Year 
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Spirit and Ethanol) in the distillery unit of our integrated production and manufacturing facility. 

 

Bagasse is the fibrous residual matter used as a bio-fuel to generate steam in high pressure boilers for turning turbines 

to generate electricity. We obtain enough Bagasse during the crushing seasons, such that the electricity produced is used 

not just for captive consumption, but also for sale. We sell the co-generated electricity produced at our manufacturing 

facility under Open Access Arrangement.  

 

Molasses is the viscous product resultant of refining sugarcane juice. Molasses, which forms the primary raw material for 

the distillery unit, is fermented, distilled and made to undergo various processes for making rectified spirit and extra 

neutral spirit. Rectified Spirit is processed to manufacture Industrial Vinegar. During the last financial year, we 

manufactured approximately, 13779.00 KL of Industrial Vinegar, 2081.93 KL of Rectified Spirit and 25328.51 KL 

Ethanol. 

 

Further the waste water extracted from Distillery unit is called as spent wash which is further mixed with mud to form 

Compost / Organic Manure, which is supplied back to farmers for cultivation of their fields which ensures higher yields. 

Further the company has set up a CO2 plant also. Thus, we believe that nothing is wasted, as every single output whether 

residue or by-product is utilised. 

 

The Revenue Model of the Company for March 31, 2022 is as below: 

Our income from the sugar business formed approximately (in lakhs) Rs. 29,677.27, Rs. 29,800.92 and Rs. 26,842.12 of 

our total net sales in the F.Y. 2020, F.Y. 2021 and F. Y. 2022, respectively;  

 

Income from the co-generation business formed (in lakhs) Rs. 2,258.20, Rs. 2678.80 and Rs. 2,480.75 of our total sales in 

the F.Y. 2020, F.Y. 2021 and F.Y. 2022, respectively;  

 

Income from the Distillery business formed (in lakhs) Rs. 1,565.16, Rs. 5,859.44 and Rs. 15,042.56 of our total sales in 

the F.Y. 2020, F.Y. 2021 and F.Y. 2022, respectively.  

 

Our revenue from operations for the last 3 years i.e., F.Y. 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22 were (in lakhs) Rs. 37,673.60, 

Rs. 42,646.38 and Rs. 46875.10.  

 

Our Company reported losses in 2019-20 mainly due to high sugarcane price and competitive sugar prices.  

 

Our net profits/loss for F.Y. 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22 were (in lakhs) Rs. 788.05, Rs. 829.29 and further Rs. 

6016.04 respectively. 

 

As on March 31, 2022, our Company had 849 employees. 

 

OUR OPERATIONS 

 

Following is our detailed revenue breakup on standalone basis for the financial years ending March 31, 2020, 2021 and 

2022:  

                                                                                                                                          (Rs in lakhs) 

S. NO.  Particulars  FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 

1.  Manufacturing        37,673.60 42,646.38  46,875.10  

2.  Trading  0.00 0.00 0.00 

3.  Job Work  0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total        37,673.60  42,646.38  46,875.10  

 

Our Competitive Strengths 

Experienced Promoters and strong Executive Team 

Our Promoters are engaged in the business of distillery and sugar production from sugarcane for more than a decade and 

have thus established a proven background and rich experience in the sugar and derived product industry. In the year 

2001, our Promoters were part of the commencing business of a small distillery unit in Bellad, near Belgaum, Karnataka 

with a capacity of 35 KLPD. With their business acumen and foresight, our Promoters, in the year 2006, undertook 

backward integration and started the sugar production unit and also a co-generation unit with a capacity of 2500 TCD and 

14 MW respectively. With the continued support of the farming community in the area we were able to expand our sugar 

unit capacity from 2500 TCD to 5500 TCD in the year 2009. This further led to the enhancement in our power generation 

capacity from 14 MW to 36.4 MW. Today our Company has an integrated manufacturing unit for products ranging from 
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Sugar to electricity generation, rectified spirit, vinegar to compost, thus utilizing technically the entire waste from sugar 

production.  

 

Also, our Company and our Promoters are aided by a team of experienced personnel. The team comprises of personnel 

having technical, operational and business development experience. We believe that our management teamôs experience 

and their understanding of the sugar production & derived product manufacturing business will enable us to continue to 

take advantage of both current and future market opportunities. It is also expected that our management personnelôs 

experience will help us in addressing and mitigating various risks inherent in our business, including significant 

competition, reliance on independent agents, and fluctuations in sugar and sugarcane prices. 

 

Our team includes senior executives and managers, many of whom are having over 15-20 yearsô experience in the 

engineering and sugar industry. We believe our management and executive team has the long-term vision to provide 

stability and continuity to our businesses. 

 

Wide range of products 

 

The process of production of sugar produces various residual materials and by-products like Bagasse and Molasses. These 

residual materials are used by us as raw materials for manufacturing further products. The Bagasse, which is a dry 

residue after the sugar production process is used to generate electricity by burning the same in the Boilers. Molasses is 

used in the distillery unit to make a range of products like rectified spirit and ENA, and the rectified spirit so produced is 

used in the production of Industrial Vinegar. Also, surplus Molasses is sold directly to other distillery units. Further, the 

mud generated in the sugar process is used along with certain distillery unit wastes to produce CO2, press mud and 

compost. 

 

The customers of different products cover a wide range of industrial sectors like FMCG, Government agencies, Food 

industry and Cold Storage industry to name a few. The above wide range of products gives us a large market for each 

product. We have made sugar sales to various wholesalers, FMCG companies and also to local and state government 

agencies. The Industrial Vinegar manufactured by us is mainly sold as preservatives and also for certain industrial uses. 

Further, other by- product like CO2 is sold as a gas and liquefied CO2 which has different applications in several industries 

from medicine, food storage, electronics and agriculture. Once the sugar production is started, we are in a position to 

always provide raw materials to the other products in sufficient quantities for captive consumption and also for 

external sale. For further details, regarding our product portfolio, please refer chapter titled ñOur Businessò on page 57 

of this Draft Letter of offer. 

 

Integrated operations and economies of scale 

We have integrated operations enabling us to meet the time, cost efficiency, quality and quantity requirements. The 

residual material and by-products generated from the production process of one product is used as a raw material for 

manufacturing another product. Thus, our diversified but integrated business model provides most of the necessary raw 

materials in-house for the various business segment products leading to reduced costs and control over the input material. 

Our unit has been setup such that the residual materials from one production process are transported to their respective 

product units either via pipes or conveyor belts or other in-house transport mechanism. This provides us seamless flow 

of raw material for all our products and also enables us to transport the surplus materials, if, any, for direct sale. This 

integration allows us not only to save enormous costs and have less dependence on third party for input           materials, but also 

helps us achieve economies of scale by controlling the inputs / production based on each previous process, improving our 

efficiency and margins. 

 

The main raw material for production of our various segments is sugarcane and our integrated unit processes each 

component of the sugarcane to manufacture a variety of products relating to the food and beverage industry. Further, with 

approximately 49 villages from whom we procure our sugarcane produce uninterruptedly till date, we are also able to 

achieve economies of scale by bulk buying from the farmers. 

 

Strong Technological Capabilities 

Our integrated manufacturing unit situated at Bellad-Bagewadi has been installed with various latest machinery and 

technology. We have installed the Distributed Control System (DCS) at our sugarcane milling and co-generation facilities 

for precision system management. The DCS is a type of automated control system that is distributed throughout a machine 

to provide instructions to different parts of the machine. Instead of having a centrally located device controlling all 

machines each section of a machine has its own computer that controls the operation. DCS is commonly used in 

manufacturing equipment and utilizes input and output protocols to control the machine. The entire system of controllers 

is connected by networks for communication and monitoring. The successful installation of the DCS which enables us to 

achieve reduced cost, reduced environmental effect, higher efficiency and reduced response time, reliability of equipment, 
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ease of maintenance and conservation of energy. 
 

We have also installed the latest machineries for our Distillery and Vinegar units. The machinery used for manufacture 

of Vinegar has been imported from Germany and we use the latest technology for processing the diluted ethanol into 

Vinegar. 

 

Strategic location of our manufacturing unit  

Sugarcane is the principal raw material used for the production of sugar. Our business depends on the availability of 

sugarcane and any shortage of sugarcane may adversely affect our results of operations. After de-regulation of the sugar 

industry, there are no restrictions on the farmers to sell their produce to any particular sugar unit. However, due to our 

continued relations with the farmers, are regular and advance payments, assistance with high quality seeds and timely aid 

in harvesting and transportation of the cane, we have ensured continuous supply of sugarcane from a large number of 

farmers in the nearby villages in our vicinity and other areas. As per the earlier cane area allotted order to our Company 

by the Sugarcane Commissioner, Bangalore, there were 28 villages in Taluka Hukkeri, 12 villages in Taluka Chikkodi 

and 9 villages in Taluka Gokak in Belgaum District reserved for the supply of sugarcane to our factory. 

 

Over the period of time, there has been a considerable increase in the acreage of sugarcane cultivation in the nearby 

villages thus increasing the sugarcane growing areas. To tap this increase, in the F. Y. 2021-22 increased our installed 

capacity .and we crushed more than 11,00,000 MTs of sugarcane as compared to over 9,00,000 MTs in the year prior to 

that. Also, having a large sugarcane supply base ensures that, in times of cane shortage, due to its long-standing 

relationships with farmers, the factory gets a considerable share of the cane available in the vicinity of our factory. Also, 

a simultaneously large sugarcane crushing capacity also ensures a larger stock of Bagasse for the co-generation of power, 

as also a substantial increase in the Molasses available for our distillation business. 

 

Besides, our factory unit is located approximately 70 kms from the main city of Belgaum, which has established road and 

rail connections to various major cities like Bangalore, Chennai, Mumbai, Pune and Goa. The air route from Belgaum is 

also constantly growing which enables certain urgent transportation possible. 

 

Cordial  and strong relationships with  sugarcane farmers 

We had approximately 49 villages allotted to us under the cane area allotment order by the Sugarcane Commissioner of 

Bangalore, in the vicinity of our factory unit and have cordial relations with every farmer in the nearby areas. We have 

maintained good and cordial relations with large sugarcane growing farmer base so as to ensure un-interrupted supply 

of sugarcane and within the required time period. Besides making timely payments to sugarcane farmers, we provide them 

with high-quality sugarcane seeds at subsidized rates, thus being an integral part of the cane development process. This 

not only helps us in ensuring the supply of sugarcane to us but also ensures quality of the sugarcane so that the recovery 

from these sugarcanes is good. We have entered into agreements for harvesting and transporting of sugarcane produced 

by the farmers, for no cost to the farmers. The harvesting and transporting groups are paid by our Company and this cane 

procurement activity ensures the harvested produce is transported to our factory for crushing. 

 

Besides, the raw material procurement, our Company has also established many shops, local hotels and eating places for 

the convenience of the farmers when they come to our factory unit to sell their produce. These amenities keep the farmers 

happy and help us build and maintain a good and cordial relationship. Despite the cyclical nature of the sugar industry, 

we keep strong ties with the desired sugarcane growing farmers. We believe that these relationships are a competitive 

advantage as farmers have no obligation to sell their produce to us and they are free to sell to any sugar factory. Also, 

assisting the farmers with seeds, irrigation etc., ensures that the farmers do not switch to other crops that may be more 

profitable. 

 

Captive Power plant and exportable capacity 

Power is an important factor in every manufacturing facility. Considering the integrated nature of our manufacturing unit 

and its corresponding power requirements, we have installed a power plant with electricity generation capacity of 14 MW 

and 22.4 MW (from Bagasse / Coal). Our entire electricity requirement during the crushing season is met out of the 

electricity generated by us in-house. Also, the captive power generation gives us stable and uninterrupted power supply 

which is very crucial in manufacturing of our products. It further gives us steady and quality supply of steam for our 

various processes in the sugar, co-generation and distillery units. Uninterrupted power supply helps to avoid any delays 

in manufacturing process thereby ensuring optimum utilization of our capacities and reducing external electricity costs, 

especially during the crushing season. 

 

With a total co-generation capacity of 36.4 MW, we ideally use approximately 11MW for our captive consumption. The 

remaining electricity generated is sold to third parties through an open sale. 
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Further, we have installed various energy saving devices at our production facilities such as planetary gear boxes, variable 

frequency drives, swing type fibrizor, high efficiency pumps and energy efficient motors which help us reducing the 

consumption of energy in our crushing operations. We have also installed planetary gear boxes in our boiling house 

section and have further introduced energy efficient condensers and unforced cooling tower as power saving measures. 

Similarly, in the co-generation unit, our power consumption has been reduced due to installation of a spray pond instead 

of forced draught cooling tower. Due to the implementation of the above measures, we have been able to reduce our 

captive consumption leading to higher availability of exportable power. 

 

For risks related to our business, our Company and our industry, see chapter titled ñRisk Factorsò on page 19 of 

this Draft Letter of Offer.  

 

OUR STRATEGIES 

 

Our strategic objective is to improve and consolidate our position as a sugar manufacturer with a continuous growth 

philosophy. The diagram below represents our continuous growth philosophy being implemented on a day-to-day basis. 

 

 
Our continuous growth philosophy is being driven with the strategic levers of operational excellence, strengthening 

existing services, customer satisfaction, ecosystem development, innovation and marketing. 

 

Increasing operational efficiency 

Our product portfolio consists of sugar and various other products manufactured by processing its residual products. 

Hence operational efficiency for each product is related to its previous productôs efficiency and quality. We continue to 

invest in increasing our operational efficiency throughout the organization. We are addressing the increase in operational 

output through continuous process improvement, increasing recovery rate through timely sugarcane crushing, technology 

development throughout the products, consistent quality and customer service. We also strive to achieve alignment of our 

people towards óprocess improvementô through change management and upgrading of skills for latest technology and as 

required for customer satisfaction is a continuous activity. Awareness of this quality commitment is wide spread among 

all the employees. 

 

Explore possibilities of geographical expansion 

Our Company is currently situated in the area of Bellad, Bagewadi and our Company intends to propose to explore 

other geographical locations within the Belgaum District. Our Company, with intent of exploring new location with 

significant sugarcane cultivation area and abundant sugarcane growth has acquired a land of approximately 9 acres and 

12 Gunthas by way of óFull Paid Power of Attorneyô. For details of the land purchased, please see the chapter titled 

ñProperties ï Our Businessò on page 76 of this Draft Letter of offer. However, our Company is still at  planning stage 
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and has neither finalized any specific utilisation for the said land nor any plans have been put forth regarding the funding, 

capacity, products and other details. 

 

 

Augment our fund-based capacities in order to scale up business operations 

The sugar industry is characterized by high debtors and advance payments to farmers and harvesting & transportation 

agents. Our customers, mainly being entities in the food, petroleum, beverages, and also government agencies, we 

generally offer substantial credit period to them. Further, during the crushing season, we have to make advance payments 

for various minor raw materials, utilities and other services so as to carry out the un-interrupted crushing. Thus, our 

operations are working capital intensive. 

 

It is hence our strategy to raise funds from this issue and augment our fund based working capital capabilities. We believe 

that companies with high liquidity on their balance sheet would be able to better negotiate with sugarcane suppliers. With 

the de-regulation of the sugar industry, farmers are free to sell their produce where they like and are not obligated to sell 

any portion of the same to us. Better liquidity will also provide us with sufficient incentives to ensure the farmers prefer 

us for selling their sugarcane produce in each season. Also, we invest a portion of our working capital to provide 

some of our farmers with high quality seeds for better crop quality. Additional working capital will enable us to offer 

such high-quality seeds on larger quantities and to a large farmer base. Funding this working capital requirement from 

the proceeds of the Fresh Issue will also enable us to save a considerable interest cost due to lower working capital 

borrowings. For further details regarding the working capital being raised through this Offer, please refer to chapter titled 

ñObjects of the Issueò on page 40 of the Draft Letter of offer. 

 

DETAILS OF OUR BUSINESS 

LOCATION  

We have setup our integrated facility over an area of around 132.85 acres (57,86,946 sq. ft.) which houses our Registered 

Office, Manufacturing Unit, Packing Unit and Storage Unit. All of these units are located in close proximity to each other 

within the facility. Our entire premise is located at Bellad Bagewadi, District, Belgaum, Karnataka - 591 305. 

 

For further details of our properties including the above location, please refer to chapter titled ñOur Businessò on page 57 

of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

OUR PRODUCTS 

Our Company is engaged in the business production of sugar and manufacture of other products including Distillery 

(Spirits) products, Vinegar, other by-products and also in the co-generation of power. 

 

SUGAR 

Our Company is involved in the process of production of sugar, with a total capacity crushing capacity of 8,500 tonnes 

per day. Sugarcane being a seasonal crop, the sugar manufacturing majorly takes place during the sugarcane period of 

October to April known as Crushing Season. We use modern technology which enables us to optimally utilize the 

available resources to ensure maximum crushing capacity and thereby maximize the production of sugar. We have a total 

licensed sugarcane crushing capacity of 11,000 TCD and installed sugarcane crushing capacity of 8,500 TCD. 

 

The sugar produced by us is differentiated on the basis of the size of the sugar crystals. These types are termed as M, M2, 

S1, S22 and S30 which are in descending order of the size of the crystals. 

 

Since the de-regularization of Sugar, Our Company has developed a robust marketing and sales team which liaisons with 

various major brands. We sell our manufactured sugar to various wholesalers, stockists and also to several FMCG 

companies throughout the country, who use sugar for manufacture of various biscuits, confectionery and beverages. 

 

Plant &  Machineries 

Our Company uses modern technology which enables us to fully utilize the available resources to ensure maximum 

crushing capacity and thereby maximizes the production of sugar. We have installed latest machinery including a fully 

automated milling tandem by installation of Distributed Control System (DCS). We have highly automated sugar 

production facility with plant & machinery ranging from cane loading / unloading cranes, cane cutting machines, mill 

tandems, different juice heaters, Air  Compressors, sulphitation tanks, evaporators, centrifuges, crystallisers, hoppers 

and automated carriers, elevators and relay belts for transferring products from one process to another. We confirm that 

our Company has not acquired any second-hand machinery for this unit. 
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Raw Materials 

Sugarcane 

 

Sugarcane is the only and basic raw material for all our product segments. Our Company purchases all our required 

sugarcane directly from farmers. Currently, we purchase sugarcane from estimated 25,000 - 30,000 farmers who are 

majorly within and around the area where our manufacturing unit is situated. These Farmers growing sugarcane are based 

in approximately 49 villages allotted to us around our production facility. We offer sufficient incentives, infrastructure 

and assistance in various stages of cultivation, thus ensuring loyalty from these farmers. We also appoint contractors who 

are responsible for harvesting and transporting the sugarcane from the farms to our factory. Further, our Company has 

and will continue to maintain good relations with the sugarcane farmers in our vicinity which ensures uninterrupted supply 

of sugarcane to our factory during the crushing season. 

 

Sugarcane Cultivation 

 

We have undertaken several initiatives to improve sugarcane production in our area, and also on improving cane quality 

and hence recovery, and at the same time developed good relations with the farming community of the area. 

 

Sugarcane development initiatives undertaken by us include conversion of other crop areas to sugarcane cultivation, field-

extension activities, providing quality seeds and agri-inputs to the new farmers in the area. Commercial and Co- operative 

banks have been associated with us in our effort for such activities. Apart from this we have also been associated in 

helping farmer groups develop irrigation sources like check dams, percolation tanks, individual/group lift irrigation 

schemes, sump-wells as well as taking up land development to bring additional acreage under cultivation especially the 

land which is either barren or unsuitable for growing sugarcane in its present state. We have designated areas for 

cultivation of high quality sugarcane studs which are distributed to various famers as high quality seeds on a subsidized 

rate. 

 

Our sugar production is based on the grade of sugarcane procured by us. Different grade / types of sugarcane have different 

recovery rates. Some of the major grades of sugarcane used by us are given below: 

 

Sr. No. Sugarcane 

Grade 

Description and 

Quality  

1. COC 671 The Variety CoC671 is sugar rich, early maturing and high sucrose variety. Also 

very vigorous and quick growing and having good filed keeping quality. 

2. CO 8011 It is mid-late to late maturing variety, sparse/late flowering. Also it is a high fibre 

variety and good ratooning ability. Low sucrose content variety. 

3. CO 86032 Co 86032 is a medium maturing variety. Grows well in all soil types, has multi ï 

rationing potential, can be grown throughout the year. 

4. CO 94012 This variety has high cane yield. Improved Plant and cane productivity with better 

juice quality. Moderately tolerant to drought and salinity. 

5. CO 2001-15 It is a mid-late maturing sugarcane variety suitable under normal and drought 

conditions. The canes are tall and medium thick with light canopy. 

6. CO 740 This is a high yielding variety of sugarcane both in plant and ratoon crops and is suitable 

for late crushing and adasali planting 
 

Besides the above many other varieties like CO 92005, CO 92020, CO 98012, CO 9805, COM 0265, CO 434, CO 86038, 

SNK 7680, CO 419, CO 8011, etc. are used by us, depending on the availability. 

 

Manufacturing  Process 

We obtain sugarcane from various farmers who are within and around the area where our manufacturing unit is situated. 

Once the sugarcane is received by us, we weigh them to ascertain the quantity of sugarcane received by us so that the 

farmers can be paid accordingly. 

 

The sugarcane is fed on to the cane feeder through the loader. The sugarcane undergoes cutting, levelling and fiberising 

through the conveyor belt thereby preparing the cane for the milling process. We have 5 milling tandem one after the 

other where the cane is crushed and raw juice to the extent of 95% - 98% is extracted from it at each level. 

 

The leftover after extraction of raw juice is called bagasse. This bagasse is used by the boilers as bio-fuel for steam 

generation. The steam generated is used for the rotation of turbines which in turn generates electricity, which is used 

for captive consumption and supplied to clients. 
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The raw juice so extracted passes through the rotary screen where the raw juice is strained for major particles of bagasse 

and other impurities. A reagent, Phosphoric Acid, is added to the strained juice which clarifies the final impurities in the 

strained juice. The juice is then transferred to the Boiling containers and is subjected to various degrees of heating. Once 

it passes through the initial heating process, milk of lime and Sulphuric Dioxide is added. The juice is heated in various 

stages and at varying temperatures ranging from 79o C to 99.5o C. 

 

The output from heating the juice is processed into the juice clarifier and clear juice is extracted by heating the clear juice 

at a very high temperature of 110o C. 

 

 
 

The output from the above process is then inserted in the Multiple Effect Evaporation System which results in Syrup like 

substance and stored in Syrup supply tanks. The Syrup in the Syrup supply tank is then subjected to the process of 

Crystallizing and Massecuite in various centrifuge machines giving us sugar crystals. 

 

The viscous product which does not result in sugar is called as Molasses. Molasses is subject to the process of Crystallizing 

and Massecuite and is further processed in the centrifugal machines for production of sugar. This process is repeated until 

no further processing is possible. The leftover is stored in the storage tank, and used in the distillery segment for 

manufacture of distillery products. 

 

The crystallized sugar produced is dried, graded and weighed into various categories based on the size of the crystals and 

is packed in bags of 50 kgs each. 

 

CO-GENERATION  

The activity of sugar manufacturing results in the residue Bagasse, which is used as a bio-fuel for boilers to generate 

steam and for the rotation of turbines which generates electricity. Our co-generation unit has an installed capacity of total 

36.4 MW divided into two turbine generators set of 14 MW and 22.4 MW. 

 



65 
 

Electricity is a unique commodity which cannot be stored and has to be consumed the moment it is generated. The 

electricity is partly consumed by our other manufacturing units like Sugar, Distillery and Vinegar. Besides the captive 

consumption, our Company has installed and maintains transmission lines which transmit the surplus electricity generated 

by us to our clients. However, in times of lower captive electricity consumption, we sell the electricity through open 

access market. 

 

Plant &  Machineries 

For generation of electricity, we have installed two (2) boilers, one with a capacity of 70 TPH and the other with a capacity 

of 80 TPH. Besides, our co-generation unit is equipped with various other state-of-the-art machinery including   2 turbine 

generation set for 15 MW and 22.4 MW, transformers, alternators, isolators and various boiler and turbine auxiliary 

machines. We confirm that our Company has not acquired any second-hand machinery for this unit. 

 

Raw Materials 

Bagasse 

Bagasse is the fibrous residual material that is left after juice has been extracted from sugarcane. The bio-fuel is used 

for the boilers which generates steam this high-pressure steam is blown through the turbines which and is responsible for 

rotation of turbines. The rotation of turbines generates electricity. The entire bagasse produced as a result of the cane 

crushing process, is used for the electricity generation process. 

 

Coal 

During off seasons, i.e. May ï September, if there is a requirement of production of electricity we procure coal and use 

the same as bio fuel by burning the same in the Boilers. During this season no crushing takes place and hence there is 

no supply of bagasse. In this period to continue to generate electricity, we use coal as fuel in the boilers. Also, during 

crushing season, in case of shortfall of bagasse due to various reasons, we procure coal to fulfil our captive and electricity 

requirements. Coal is procured through various local and other domestic traders. 

 

Manufacturing  Process 

The leftover fibrous material after extraction of raw juice from sugarcane is called Bagasse. The technology adopted in 

co-generation is the Combined Heat and Power cycle, wherein heat and electrical energy is derived from a common 

source, in our case Bagasse. Bagasse from the mills is carried into the 2 boilers through an automated conveyor belt carrier 

and used as fuel in the boilers to generate steam. We have two Boilers having 70 TPH and 80 TPH capacities. The burning 

of fuel results in steam generation which is injected into turbines where it expands and rotates the turbine at high speed, 

which in turn rotates the alternator to generate power. This power is used to meet the power requirements to operate the 

plant and the excess power generated is fed to the grid after upgrading it to 110 KV. The exhaust steam from the turbine, 

which is at a comparatively low-pressure, is used for boiling in the sugar process. 

 

Also, both our boilers are also equipped to burn coal. This enables us to produce power during off-seasons. Further, the 

residual steam leaving the turbines still has certain amount of energy, which is utilized in the sugar plant for juice & syrup 

boiling. 

 

The boilers and turbines of our co-generation plant are equipped with Distributed Control System (DCS). One (1) boiler 

is installed with Electro Static Precipitator (ESP) and the other boiler has Venturi Wet Scrubber as the air pollution control 

equipment in order to keep the emissions from the boiler within the prescribed norms of the Pollution Control Board. 

 

DISTILLERY  PRODUCTS  

Our Company manufactures Distillery products like Rectified Spirit & Ethanol from molasses.  

 

Rectified Spirit is a highly concentrated spirit which has been purified by means of repeated distillation. Currently our 

distillery unit has an installed capacity of 35 KLPD of Rectified Spirit and 30 KLPD of Neutral Spirit. Ethanol produced 

after fermentation and distillation of Molasses can be further purified into Fuel Ethanol, by removing the water content. 

The Government has recently amended the Sugarcane (Control) Order, 1966 vide order S.O. 

3663(E)/Ess.Com./Sugarcane dated July 26, 2018 wherein sugar factories have been allowed to manufacture Ethanol from 

B-Heavy Molasses. Thus our Company intends to manufacture Ethanol which contains a minimum 99.6% ethyl alcohol 

that is used for blending with petrol and other fuel products. This ethyl alcohol is extracted from the residue mixture using 

fractional distillation process. 
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Fuel Ethanol contains various impurities like Esters, Aldehyde and Ketones which needs to be removed to make the 

Ethanol potable. Once it is re-distilled, the product obtained is devoid of impurities and is odourless which is called Extra 

Neutral Spirit / Extra Neutral Alcohol (ENA). Ethanol is also denatured and can be used for industrial use. 

 

Plant & Machineries 

We have installed the latest machinery for fermentation, distillation, blending processes required for manufacture of 

Rectified Spirit, ENA. The major plant and machineries used in our distillery unit includes various types of condensers, 

separators, Aldehyde column, coolers, boilers & re-boilers, decanters and tanks, rotameters and pumps. We also use 2 

small boilers in the distillery unit for 12 TPH and 10 TPH. The effluent treatment machines used post the distillation 

process includes bio-digester, various pumps, biogas breakers, air compressors, vacuum breakers, vents and tanks. 

We confirm that our Company has not acquired any second-hand machinery for this unit. 

 

Raw Material 

The main raw material for production of Rectified Spirit is Molasses, which is a by-product of sugar production process. 

Molasses retains some amount of sugar, but this sugar cannot be extracted by usual technology used for sugar production. 

It is used as an input in distilleries where the sugar present in the molasses is fermented into Ethanol / Rectified Spirit. 

Our Company produces enough molasses for the manufacture of all distillery related products in our Company. Also, 

after captive consumption, we sell the surplus molasses, if any, to other distillery units. 

 

Manufacturing  Process 

The manufacture of Rectified Spirit is a two-stage processï 

 

The required amount of acidified yeast is transferred to the pre-fermentation tank and filled with molasses. This mix is 

allowed to ferment for 5 to 7 hours and during this period the yeast starts its activity. Air is bubbled for a few minutes. 

After initial fermentation, the mix is transferred to the main fermentation tank and filled with molasses. Fermentation 

tanks are filled to three forth of their capacity; this is to accommodate the increase in volume due to forming during the 

periods of fermentation. It takes a total of 40 hours to complete the fermentation process. The end result of the process 

is ñfermented washò and is transferred to the Clarified wash tank. 

 

The alcohol in the pre-heated Fermented Wash is stripped off by ascending the vapours in the Analyser column. The 

alcoholic vapours are condensed in the Evaporators in the Integrated Evaporation Machine known as the De-Gassifying 

Column. The condensed alcoholic vapours are taken to the pre-rectifier feed tank. Analyser Condensate (alcohol 

condensate) is concentrated in pre-rectifier column, which operates under atmospheric pressure. Condensing steam 

provides energy to pre-rectifier column through a vertical boiler. A Technical Alcohol cut, of a substantial percentage 

of total spirit is taken from the pre-rectifier column. Concentrated alcohol draw from the Pre-Rectifier column is fed to 

extractive distillation column for purification. This process leads to manufacture of Rectified Spirit. It is then transferred 

to the Azeotropic Dehydration Column and results in production of Ethanol which is either sold or used for captive 

consumption for manufacture of Vinegar. 
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Spent lees and Rectified Spirit are mixed together in the mixing tank and this mixture is taken to the Extractive Distillation 

column for heating. The top of the Extractive Distillation column is transferred to the exhaust column where the 

vapours are condensed whereas the bottom of the Extractive Distillation is transferred back to the Rectifier column to 

enhance the alcoholic content. The condensed liquid from the Exhaust column is transferred to the recovery column from 

which Extra Neutral Spirit / ENA is recovered. 

 

VINEGAR  

We primarily manufacture vinegar which is non-potable in nature and mainly sold either for industrial purposes or for 

further processing to convert it as a preservative and for domestic consumption purposes. Basic Vinegar, being a mild 

acid, has large industrial application mainly as a cleaning agent. However, our major Vinegar sales are for use as a 

preservative while exporting raw vegetables and fruits. We have an installed capacity for manufacture of Vinegar of 75 

KL per annum. 

 

Plant &  Machineries 

The various plant and machinery used in our Vinegar Unit include an acetator, air aspiration system, filtration unit and 

various types & sizes of tanks & pumps. We confirm that our Company has not acquired any second hand machinery for 

this unit. 

 

Raw Materials 

The basic raw material required for production of vinegar is diluted ethanol which is further fermented. The Ethanol 

produced by us in the distillery process is used in the manufacture of Vinegar. For the fermentation process, a special 

bacterium is used, which oxidizes the sugars or ethanol and produce acetic acid during fermentation. We import the 

bacteria from Germany only once a year and the same is cultivated for a year by our in-house lab chemists. 

 

Manufacturing  Process 

The raw materials viz. alcohol, water and imported bacteria (collectively called as ñmashò) are mixed into the Charge 

Tank in the correct proportion. The tank is provided with an agitator through a transfer pump to ensure proper mixing 

of the raw materials. 

 

The acetator facilitates fermentation of the mash under controlled atmospheric conditions. Since conversion of alcohol 

into vinegar is basically an oxidation process, fresh oxygen is supplied vide natural air aspirator. The temperature required 

is maintained by circulating chilled water inside a coil mounted within the acetator. The vinegar obtained from the acetator 

is cloudy in nature and requires filtration. The cloudy vinegar is received at the discharge tank and then pumped for 

filtration. The filtration process may not adequately filter the vinegar to the desired levels and is hence re- transferred to 

the circulation tank where it is goes through the process again and when no further processing is possible, sludge is released 

in the sludge storage tank. The filtered Vinegar is stored at the filtrate tank and is pumped to the vinegar storage tank. 
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OTHER BY-PRODUCTS 

Besides the above described products, we generate other captive use and / or saleable by-products, mainly from the 

manufacture of Sugar and Vinegar. 

 

Carbon Di-Oxide 

The process of fermentation of Molasses into Ethanol releases Carbon Di-Oxide (CO2) gas which is in a crude form. This 

crude CO2 undergoes a series of processes including pre-chilling, water scrubbing, chiller compressing and is also passed 

through an activated carbon filter for purification resulting in Liquefied CO2. Our Company supplies Liquefied CO2 to 

various clients who use it for industrial purposes like chilling and cold storage, industrial cleaning, and also some 

agricultural uses. 

 

We also sell the Crude CO2 to Excellences Carbonic Pvt. Ltd. with whom we have entered into an Inclusive Agreement 

for sale of Crude CO2 and simultaneously providing to them electricity, water and steam for processing the CO2 into 

Liquid CO2. 

 

Press Mud 

Press mud is used as manure in sugarcane fields to increase the fertility of the soil and ensure improved yields. Press mud 

is produced from the residue which comes out from the factory after the filtration of sugarcane juice. The clarification 

process separates the juice into a clear juice that rises to the top and goes for manufacture, and a mud that collects at the 

bottom. Press Mud is used for manufacture of Compost fertilizers. However, Press Mud is also sold to vendors who use 

it for various purposes such as manufacture of fertilizers, manufacture of cement etc. 

 

Compost 

Compost is a organic manure prepared from waste arising from the factory. The composting process involves an 

interaction between the organic waste, microorganisms, moisture and oxygen. It mainly involves mixing of two waste 

materials, one from the Sugar manufacturing process (Press Mud) and one from the Distillery unit (Spent Wash). Spent 

wash is the unwanted residual liquid waste generated during alcohol production. The Compost is an organic matter that 

has been decomposed and recycled as a fertilizer and soil amendment and is one of the key ingredients in organic farming. 

 

Boiler Ash 

Boiler Ash generated from burning bagasse and / or coal in the Boilers installed in our Co-generation unit. It is sold by 

our Company to various cement and brick manufacturing companies. 

 

INSTALLED  CAPACITY  

 

Below is the Installed and Utilized Capacity for the last three years: 
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Product Particulars for  the Financial Year 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

(A) Sugar Unit  

 

 

 

 

Sugar 

Installed Cane Crushing Capacity 

(TCD) 8,500.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 

No. of days worked 95.00 119.00 138.00 

Total Cane Crushed (MT / year) 7,02,776.20 9,08,954.57 11,01,936.28 

Total Sugar Production (MT / year) 77,150.00 79,320.00 92,700.00 

Capacity Utilised (%) 87.03% 69.44% 72.59% 

Total Bagasse Production (MT / year) 

2,00,000.00 2,57,705.00 3,11,120.00 

Total Molasses Production (MT / year) 32,469.16 52,770.60 64,300.00 

(B) Co-Generation Unit  

 

Power Generation 

Installed Capacity MW 39.00 39.00 39.00 

No. of days worked 169.00 191.00 196.00 

Utilised Capacity MW 18.44 19.21 19.50 

Utilised Capacity (%) 47.29% 49.25% 50.01% 

(C) Distillery  Unit  

 

Rectified 

Spirits/Ethanol 

Installed Capacity (KLPD) 35.00 96.00 96.00 

Utilised Capacity (KLPD) 27.60 91.04 94.62 

Utilised Capacity (%) 78.87% 94.83% 98.56% 

 

We have proposed the below Installed capacity and Utilisation for the next three (3) years based on the assumption of 

normal Sugarcane crop during each year: 

 
 

Product Particulars for  the Financial Year 

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

(A) Sugar Unit  

 

Sugar 

Installed Cane Crushing Capacity (TCD) 11,000.00 11,000.00 21,000.00 

No. of days worked 120.00 130.00 120.00 

Average Sugar Capacity (MT / year) 13,20,000.00 14,30,000.00 2,77,200.00 

Capacity Utilised (%) 85.00% 90.00% 92.00% 

(B) Co-Generation Unit  

Power Generation Installed Capacity MW 39.00 59.20 59.20 

Utilized Capacity (%) 52.00% 55.00% 60.00% 

(C) Distillery  Unit (1)(2) 

Rectified Spirits Installed Capacity (KLPD) 96.00 250.00 250.00 

Utilized Capacity (%) 90.00% 92.00% 95.00% 

Neutral Spirits Installed Capacity (KLPD) 75.00 75.00 75.00 

Utilized Capacity (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

(E) Vinegar Unit  

Industrial Vinegar Installed Capacity (KLPD) 75.00 75.00 75.00 

Utilized Capacity (%) 50.00% 55.00% 60.00% 
(1) Our Company is in the process of expansion of its distillery capacity and the construction and installation is under 

process. The Company will be applying for the increased capacity with the relevant authorities upon completion of the 

construction and installation work. 
(2) Based on the amendment to the Sugarcane (Control) Order, 1966 vide order S.O. 3663(E)/ Ess.Com./Sugarcane 

dated July 26, 2018, our Company intends to manufacture Ethanol from B-Heavy Molasses and accordingly the 

installed capacity of Ethanol currently is 30 KLPD and relevant applications will be made for the same upon 

completion of the construction and installation work of the distillery unit. 

 

Our capacity utilisation is primarily based on sugarcane crushed during each Crushing Season and thus there is substantial 
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fluctuation in the capacity utilisation of majority of our products in case of lower or higher sugarcane availability. 

Correspondingly, our projected capacities are based on the assumption of normal sugarcane production and thus the 

projections may be higher than 25% of the actual average production of the last three years. For risks involved,          please see 

the chapter titled ñRisk Factorò on page 19 of the Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

OUR MAJOR  CUSTOMERS &  SUPPLIERS 

Our Company is primarily engaged in the production of sugar, power generation (electricity), distillery (Rectified Spirit, and 

Ethanol), Vinegar and other products. 

 

The contribution of the top ten (10) customers to the total turnover of our Company in the last three financial years is as given 

below: 

              (Rs in lakhs) 

 

Particulars 

For year ended 

March 

2022 

% March 

2021 

% March 

2020 

% 

Sales from Top 10 

Customers(1) 42,282.91 90.20 23,235.09 54.48 36,614.83 97.19 
(1) We confirm that there is no direct/indirect relationship between the customers forming part of the above top 10 and our 

Company and our promoters/directors. 

 

The contribution of the top five (5) suppliers to the total purchases of our Company in the last three financial years along 

with the direct/indirect relationship, if any, between such entities and our Company, and our promoters/directors is as 

given below:                                                                                                                                                                  

              ( in Lakhs ) 

 

Particulars 

For year ended 

March 

2022 

% March 

2021 

% March 

2020 

% 

Purchases from   Top   5 

Suppliers(1) 3,730.91 9.89 2,898.42 10.43 2,938.74 11.79 
(1) We confirm that there is no direct/indirect relationship between the suppliers forming part of the above top 5 

and our Company and our promoters/directors. 

 

¶ There is no routine concentration of suppliers as a percentage of total purchases, however, during the F, Y. 2017-

18, due to lower availability of sugarcane, we have made substantial purchase for raw sugar leading to high 

amount of purchases from certain entities in this period. 

 

UTILITIES  

 

Power & Fuel 

We have set up our own co-generation unit. Even for off-season period (when sugarcane crushing is not there) our 

Company is self-sufficient in generating the entire power for its need. For a very short period the company meets its power 

requirement by procuring electricity from the Hubli Electricity Supply Company Limited. 

 

In addition to the said self-generated power and sanctioned power, the company has installed DG Sets as standby 

arrangement in all its manufacturing units, which is used in case of need / shortage or requirement of additional power. 

The DG Set gets its fuel requirement from the petrol pump owned by the Company. 

 

Water 

Owing to the nature of business of the Company, we need uninterrupted water supply, which is why the integrated facility 

is strategically located at a place where water is adequately available. The reservoir Dhupdal has been built on the 

confluence of the rivers Hiranyakeshi and Ghatprabha to facilitate irrigation for various industries. After having obtained 

the necessary approvals from the Irrigation Department of the Government of Karnataka, our Company has laid water 

lines for uninterrupted supply of water. Our Company has entered into an extension agreement dated September 21, 2022 

with the Government of Karnataka for utilization of water from the Ghatprabha River for use of rift  irrigation. 

 

Steam 

Steam is used for various processes in the production of sugar, manufacture of distillery products and power generation. 

We generate our entire steam requirement on a captive basis wherein we use the bagasse (generated during sugar 
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production) and coal (if  required) for burning in the boilers installed thus generating steam. 

 

Emission and Effluent Treatment Plant 

Our Company has installed various effective treatment plants which broadly cover our segment wise operations with 

adequate capacities to treat the effluent generated from all units as per the consent granted by the Karnataka State Pollution 

Control Board (KSPCB). An effluent from the distillery, the spent wash, is mixed with press mud, which is discharged 

from sugar plant, and is used to make organic compost. Being involved in the business of Sugar and Distillery the company 

also produces liquid effluents. All  liquid effluents are treated in sophisticated effluent treatment plants and the treated 

water is used for plantations within the plant premises. The ash produced as result of burning bagasse or coal is sold to 

brick and cement manufacturers. 

 

OTHER RAW MATERIALS  

 

Sulphate 

 

Sulphate is essential for manufacture of sugar. It is the ingredient which is used for the crystallization of syrup obtained 

from clear juice. We source our requirement of Sulphate from various local vendors and also from vendors in Bangalore. 

 

Lime 

 

Milk of lime is added to the Juice Sulphater for cleaning process. Lime is obtained from local vendors in our vicinity and 

is sufficiently available as it is a common chemical substance. 

 

Caustic Soda 

 

Caustic Soda is used for cleaning the turbine blades which in turn are used in the power generation activity. Caustic Soda 

is available from various local vendors as it is a common chemical substance. 

 

Packing Material 

 

The company uses packing material for packing of Sugar and other distillery products. The company generally opens an 

open tender for procuring the various packing materials and orders are placed in bulk quantities. 

 

QUALITY CONTROL & QUALITY ASSURANCE  

 

We place strong emphasis on product and process quality, which we believe is the critical factor contributing to our 

success. Being in the business of sugar production, alcoholic spirits manufacture by distillation including ethanol, and 

generation of power; requires that we adhere and adopt stringent quality control measures. To assess and facilitate 

compliance with applicable requirements, we regularly review our quality systems to determine their effectiveness and 

identify areas for improvement. We operate on dedicated Standard Procedures for all of our product segments, which is 

critical in quality control. 

 

Following quality control measures are currently adopted by our Company in relation to our Sugar production, Distillery 

products and Co-generation unit: 

 

Sugar Production 

Our Company uses various methods to assess the quality of sugarcane being used for production of sugar along with the 

quality of bagasse and the sugarcane juice extracted from these sugarcanes. We also monitor the juice clarification process 

and thereafter syrup and massecuite quality is checked. We have a well equipped laboratory which enables our Company 

to ensure, monitor and check all the parameters in the various stages of sugar production. The produced sugar undergoes 

grading for determining the quality and price to be commanded. 

 

Distillery products  

The processes involved in the distillery unit use molasses, water and certain chemical processes. In order to obtain alcohol 

content above 99.60% and the water content only in traces, our Company adheres to strict quality measures for blending 

and for manufacture of Ethanol or Vinegar as required. Our Company has all the facilities to maintain the quality standards 
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and well equipped laboratory and manpower to check the same. The spirits manufactured are sent to our laboratory on 

sample basis for testing the alcoholic levels. 

 

Co-generation Unit 

Our Co-generation unit operates boilers at high pressure where the quality of the boiler feed is very stringent and has to 

be maintained strictly as per the norms of the boiler manufacturer. The water quality is constantly monitored in our in- 

house laboratory where all testing facilities are available for this purpose and is under constant monitoring. 

 

HEALTH,  SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT  

 

We are committed to protecting the health and safety of our employees and workers working in our factories. We have 

policies in place for health and safety for our workmen which have the following salient features: 

 

¶ Compliance with relevant Safety and Statutory Regulations and Rules both in letter and in spirit 

¶ Ensuring cleanliness of work place in compliance with the relevant regulations 

¶ Providing work force with appropriate tools like helmets, gloves, aprons, face masks, etc. 

¶ Knowledge / instructions on work procedures and safety precautions 

¶ Conducting safety training on induction of new employees and workers as well as periodic refresher training 

¶ Conducting classes on first aid training, fire-fighting, mock drills, safety audit, risk analysis studies, etc. 

¶ Ongoing assessment on the status of safety, health and environment at the work place and take appropriate 

measures to improve the same 

¶ Obligation and responsibility on every employee to perform the tasks ensuring complete safety. 

 

Unit  Monitoring  

We have a state of the art control room set-up inside the manufacturing unit which monitors the entire process of sugar 

manufacturing and Co-generation unit in real time. It also maintains the various raw material inputs, heating temperatures, 

air pressure, electricity generation load, etc. from a single work station. The monitoring unit is built with various safety 

measures and redundancies to give prior alarms in case of any overload or mishap. 

 

MARKETING,  SALES AND DISTRIBUTION  SETUP 

Our Company undertakes marketing for all of its manufactured products, from Sugar to Compost. Our marketing set-up 

for each segment is explained below: 

 

Sugar Production 

Since the de-regularization of Sugar, our Company has developed a robust marketing and sales team which liaisons 

with various major brands. Also, after the de-regulation, the price has become highly dynamic and we need to price our 

products according to these market dynamics. For this, we constantly endeavour to acquire new clients and also retain the 

existing ones. We sell our manufactured sugar to various wholesalers, stockists and to several FMCG companies. Our 

Marketing team consists of well experienced and qualified people to maintain and increase relations with our customers. 

 

Co-Generation 

Electricity is a commodity which cannot be stored and has to be consumed the moment it is generated. Our co- generation 

unit has an installed capacity of 36.4 MW per annum. After our captive consumption requirement is met, we sell the surplus 

power generated to the grid under Open Access 

 

Industrial Vinegar: 

Our Company produces Vinegar which is non-potable and widely used for various industrial purposes or for further 

processing for domestic consumption. We mainly sell Vinegar to several companies in the food and beverage industry 

and in the agri-product processing industry. Our marketing team directly approaches various companies for sales pitch. 

Currently we have several agri-product companies as part of our client list who use our Vinegar as a preservative for raw 

vegetables and other agricultural products. 

 

By-Products: 

The crushing of sugarcane and subsequent production and manufacture of our products results in the production of various 

by-products such as Bagasse, Molasses, Carbon Di-Oxide, Boiler Ash and Compost. Bagasse and Molasses is majorly 

used for captive consumption in our co-generation unit and distillery unit respectively. However, on certain occasions, 
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surplus molasses is sold to other distillery units in the vicinity based on the demand. Our marketing team keeps good 

relations with various distillery units for ensuring the sale of surplus quantities. The liquefied CO2 is sold to various 

cold storage houses, medical equipment makers and other industrial users who are regularly contacted by our marketing 

team. Further, we have entered into an agreement with Excellences Carbonic Pvt. Ltd. for sale of crude Carbon Di-Oxide. 

Boiler Ash is sold to various local manufacturers of bricks and related products. With the growing infrastructure in Bellad-

Bagewadi and other nearby areas, many brick manufacturers have a constant demand for Boiler Ash. Compost is largely 

sold on a highly subsidised rate to the farmers who grow sugarcane in the nearby villages. This ensures that the farmers in 

turn sell the sugarcane produce to us on a priority. 

 

MANPOWER  

The production of sugar, manufacturing of distillery and ancillary products and the power generation process requires 

an appropriate mix of skilled, semi-skilled and un-skilled labour. Belgaum being a border city to both Karnataka, 

Maharashtra and Goa, labour ï skilled, semi-skilled and unskilled ï is easily available here. As on March 31, 2022, Our 

Company had 849 employees. 

 

Besides the above, we also hire laborer from local and nearby areas at our factory premises on a daily wages basis as and 

when required. Our employees are not unionized into any laborerôs or workersô union. We do not employ any Contract 

Labour in our factory and hence no compliance with The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970 or Rules 

thereunder is required. We have not experienced any major work stoppages due to labour disputes or cessation of work in 

the last five years. We believe that we share good and cordial relations with our employees. 

 

The detailed break-up of our employees is as under: 

 

Segment Directors KMP  / Admin Workers Total 

Office / General 10 13 276 289 

Sugar Production 5 346 351 

Co-Generation 0 85 85 

Distillery Unit 1 90 91 

Vinegar Unit 1 9 10 

By-Products & Miscellaneous 1 22 23 

 

The frequency distribution of the salary of the above employees for the month of March 31, 2022 is as given below: 

 

Frequency (Monthly  Salary Range) No. of Employees 

From To 

1 10,000 69 

10,001 20,000 713 

20,001 30,000 38 

30,001 40,000 18 

40,001 50,000 0 

60,001 70,000 4 

80,001 90,000 5 

1,90,001 2,00,000 4 

2,20,001 2,30,000 1 

2,90,001 3,00,000 1 

 

EXPORTS AND EXPORT OBLIGATIONS  

 

The total exports of the company for the last three fiscal years i.e., 2021-22, 2020-21 and 2019-2020 is Rs NIL each. 

 

As per the Authorization Forwarding Letter issued by the Additional DGFT dated November 07, 2016, our Company had 

an export obligation of 6 times the value of duty saved; to be fulfilled within a period of 6 years (the duty saved being  

48,33,203). 

 

We have cleared our duty obligation made to DGFT by making the required payment vide Challan No.360 dated May 

31, 2022.   
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COLLABORATIONS  

The Company has so far not entered into any technical or financial collaboration agreement. 

 

COMPETITION  

India is one of the largest sugar producer and consumer in the world. Our Company faces severe competition in the 

business of Sugar production from sugar mills operating not only in Karnataka and Maharashtra but throughout the country 

and also from international markets. Though our direct sugar competitors are the sugar mills operating out of North West 

Karnataka and South West Maharashtra, with the de-regulation of sugar prices, we now have to set sugar prices as per 

national competition. The competition faced by us is also in the form of sugarcane purchase from farmers from villages 

in our vicinity and also outside the area of our factory. Further, competition in the sugar industry arises from organized as 

well as from un-organized sector. 
 

INTELLECTUAL  PROPERTY 

We have registered 2 trademarks and have applied for 1 patent,  as explained below: 

 

Sr. No. Description  Class Trademark  No. Status 

Trademarks 

1. VSL (Device)  33 2152827 Registered 

2. VSL (Device)  30 2152826 Registered 

Patents 

1. A System and a 

Process for 

Manufacturing 

Sugar 

The system comprises of a 

receiving unit, a series of milling 

units, rotary screens, juice heater 

assemblies, liming and sulphation 

unit, clarification and settlement 

unit, evaporating units, and 

crystallization and centrifugation 

units. The system requires lesser 

man power, and is user friendly 

along with less consumption of 

steam and energy, thus being cost 

effective. The present disclosure 

also related to process for making 

sugar from sugarcane. The process 

reduces the loss of sugar, requires a 

comparatively lower amount of 

milk of lime and contains 

substantially lower amount of 

sulphur.  

NA Application 

Number - 

202141033741 

Applied For 

 

PROPERTY 

Freehold Property 

The details of the Free Hold property are as under: 

 

Sr. No. Schedule of property  and area Purpose 

1.  Land bearing Survey Nos. 136, 139, 140:1, 140:2, 140:3, 140:4, 

141:1, 148:3, 149:1, 149:2, 149:3, 149:4, 150:1, 150:2A, 150:2B, 

151:1, 151:2A, 151:2B, 151:2C and 152 situated at Bellad Bagewadi, 

Taluka Hukkeri, Bellad Bagewadi 591305, Karnataka, India 

 

Area ï 132 Acres and 34 Gunthas. 

 

 

Factories, Buildings, Godowns      and 

Sheds 
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2.  Residential Apartment bearing No. M-104, First Floor of ñM-Wing ï 

Lynxò in ñBrigade Gatewayò, situated in Industrial Suburb, 

Subramanyanagar, Municipal Ward No. 9, Rajinagar Extension 

(Malleswaram West), Bangalore ï 560010 

 

Area ï 2300 square feet 

AND 

Vacant Land bearing Municipal Nos. 26 and 26/1, New No. 26/1, 

situated in Industrial Suburb, Subramanyanagar, Municipal Ward No. 

9, Rajinagar Extension (Malleswaram West), Bangalore ï 560010 

 

Area ï 404 square feet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Guest House 

3.  Freehold Land  situated at R. Sy. No. 204 / 2A, Navage Village, 

Uchagaon Revenue Circle, Belgaum 

 

Area ï 20 Gunthas 

 

Future Expansion purposes(1) 

4.  Freehold Land situated at R. Sy. No. 206 / A, Navage Village, 

Uchagaon Revenue Circle, Belgaum 

 

Area ï 3 Acres and 34 Gunthas(2) 

 

Future Expansion purposes(1) 

5.  Freehold Land situated at R. Sy. No. 206 / B, Navage Village, 

Uchagaon Revenue Circle, Belgaum 

 

Area ï 3 Acres and 6 Gunthas(2) 

 

Future Expansion purposes(1) 

6.  Freehold Land situated at R. Sy. No. 207 / 1, Navage Village, 

Uchagaon Revenue Circle, Belgaum 

 

Area ï 1 Acre and 32 Gunthas(2) 

 

Future Expansion purposes(2) 

 

(1) These properties have been acquired pursuant to registered POA and the final sale deeds for the same are under 

process. We confirm that none of the Sellers belongs to our Promoter, Promoter Group & Directors of our 

Company. 
(2) Each R. Sy. No. has been acquired from multiple owners of small parcels of land. We confirm that none of the 

Sellers belongs to our Promoter, Promoter Group & Directors of our Company. 

 

Lease Property 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the 

Lessor 

Premises Leased and area Term of the Lease Purpose 

 

 

1. 

 

Prakash 

Shrishailappa 

Katti 

Survey No. 134/2, Off Ghartprabha 

ï Chikodi Road, Hukkeri Taluka, 

District Belgaum, 591 305 

 

Area ï 2 Acres 

 

20 years from August 

16, 206 to August 15, 

2026. 

 

Consumer Diesel 

Pump 

 

 

2. 

 

Prakash 

Shrishailappa 

Katti 

Survey No. 134/2, Off Gokak Road, 

Hukkeri Taluka, District Belgaum, 

591 305 

 

Area ï 5 Acres 

 

20 years from June 07, 

2017 to June 06, 2037 

 

 

Staff Quarters 

 

 

3. 

 

Nikhil Umesh 

Katti 

4th Floor along with terrace, CTS No. 

8692/A, Sector No. III,  Shivbasv 

Nagar, Mal-Maruti Extension, 

Belgaum 

 

Area ï 1543 Yards / 0.32 Acre 

 

10 years from August 

21, 2013 to August 20, 

2023 

 

 

 Corporate House 
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4 Shri 

Shidalingayya 

Batayya 

Kadahatti, Shri 

Anandayya 

Balayya 

Kadahatti, & 

Shri, Santosh 

Shidalingayya 

Kadahatti, 

R S No 148 A of Viilage Belrad 

Bagewadi,Hukkeri Taluka, District 

Belgaum, 591 305 

 

 

 

 

 

Area 13 Acres and 28 gunthas 

29 years from March 

01, 2021 to February 

28, 2050 

Expansion plans for 

distillery, bagasse 

storage and allied 

activities 

 

INSURANCES 

 

The insurance policies covered by the company are: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the 

Insurance 

Company 

  

Type of Policy 

  

  

Validity Period  

  

Description of 

cover under 

the policy 

  

Policy No. 

  

Sum 

Insured 

(  lakhs) 

Premiu

m 

p.a. (  in 

lakhs) 

  

1 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Standard Fire 

& Special 

Perils Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 1 
680400112201

00000006 
12,000.00 13.03 

2 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Standard Fire 

& Special 

Perils Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 2 
680400112201

00000007 
12,000.00 13.03 

3 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Burglary 

Insurance 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 3 
680400462201

0000026 
24,000.00 5.66 

4 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Standard Fire 

& Special 

Perils Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 4 
680400112201

00000012 
2,725.00 4.65 

5 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Bharat Griha 

Raksha Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 5 
680400112286

00000097 
185.00 0.72 

6 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

New India 

Bharat Laghu 

Udyam 

Suraksha 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 6 
680400112243

00000019 
750.00 0.61 

7 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

New India 

Bharat Laghu 

Udyam 

Suraksha 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 7 
680400112243

00000020 
525.00 0.37 

8 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Machinery 

Insurance 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 8 
680400442251

00000016 
2500.00 7.38 
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9 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Machinery 

Insurance 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 9 
680400442251

00000017 
3200.00 14.56 

10 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Machinery 

Insurance 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 10 
680400442251

00000018 
1017.00 6.00 

11 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Machinery 

Insurance 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 11 
680400442251

00000019 
1450.00 4.28 

12 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Electronic 

Equipment 

Insurance 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 12 
680400442258

00000011 
225.00 0.83 

13 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Boiler and 

Pressure Plant 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 13 
680400442252

00000006 
2,200.00 1.04 

14 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Boiler and 

Pressure Plant 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 14 
680400442252

00000007 
20,200.00 0.94 

15 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Standard Fire 

& Special 

Perils Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 15 
680400112201

00000008 
22,500.00 

2412953.

00 

16 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Standard Fire 

& Special 

Perils Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 16 
680400112201

00000009 
5,025.00 8.37 

17 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Standard Fire 

& Special 

Perils Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 17 
680400112201

00000010 
9,000.00 15.72 

18 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Standard Fire 

& Special 

Perils Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 18 
680400112201

00000011 
600.00 0.77 

19 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Employees 

Personal 

Accident 

Insurance 

Policy 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 19 
680400422201

00000038 
9,020.00 1.60 

20 

New India 

Assurance 

Company 

Limited 

Employees ð 

Hospitalizatio 

n Insurance 

From January 23, 

2023 to 

January 22, 

2024 

As per Note 20 
680400482268

00000079 
2706.00 2.03 

 

Notes: 

1 On stock of sugar in PP gunny bags or gunny bags stored in sugar godown nos. 1 & 2 situated at VSIL. 

2 On stock of sugar in PP gunny bags or gunny bags stored in sugar godown nos. 3 & 4 situated at VSIL. 
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3 On stock of sugar in PP gunny bags or gunny bags stored in sugar godown nos. 1, 2, 3 & 4 situated at VSIL. 

4 On VSIL vinegar unit, building, plant & machinery, stock - raw material & finished product and stock in process of 

various grades and stored in various tanks.  

5 On 112 No. of staff residential quarters / flats in six blocks, each flat and each flat F.F.F. & electrical installation. 

6 On Administrative Office Building, F.F.F. Interior Decoration, Electrical Installation, Air Conditioner, Computers 

and accessories and Stationery etc. 

7 Guest House building including F / F / F, interior decoration, electrical installation, air conditioner, kitchenware, 

utensils, fridge, ovens, crockery & glass ware and such others. 

8 Description of machinery insured ï a) Turbo Generator Shin Nippon Japan 22.4 MW 4922 RPM SL No. 21901. b) 

Turbo Generator Seisa Gear Box 1500 RPM Sl. No. 07KADA61. c) Turbo Generator Sl. No. 2K80862301 

9 Various Electrical and Mechanical Equipmentôs & Transformers, Gear Boxes in various departments of VSIL 

10 All electrical motors & sugar mill electrical VFD in various departments in sugar factory and co-generation unit. 

11 Description of machinery insured ï a) Turbo Generator Shin Nippon Japan 15 MW SL No. 21100. b) SEISA Gear 

Box 8000/1500 RPM NDM 6067 Sl. No. 6067. c) TDPS Turbine Generator Set 18750 KVA Sl. No. 2K3022401. 

12 All types of electronic equipment in various departments of VSIL 

13 Boiler ï ISGECJHON THOMPSON Boiler with it accessories ï 80 TPH KTK 3478 MICR 67 Kg/SQCM, 510 DEG.C 

14 Boiler ï ISGECJHON THOMPSON Boiler with it Accessories ï 70 TPH KTK 2760 MICR. 67 Kg/SQCM, 485 DGC 

15 Building including superstructure, plinth and foundation, plant, machinery & accessories, F.F.F. , Godown Nos 1,2,3 

& 4 and compound wall for the Sugar & Co-gen Plant of VSIL 

16 Various buildings including P & F etc., P & M & all its accessories, F/F/F including E/I, on stock of Ethanol, Rectified 

Spirit in tanks or in process and B Pallet 

17 On Stock of B Heavy Molasses stored in various tanks and or in process at sugar factory and in distillery compound 

18 Biomass Briquette shed manufacturing Unit Building Plant & Machinery and Stock 

19 Accident Insurance for 902 employees of VSIL (all departments) 

20 Raasta Aaptti Kavach policy for 902 employees of VSIL (all departments) with sum insured of  1,00,000 as 

compensation for Road Accident,  1,00,000 as hospitalization for Road Accident and  1,00,000 hospitalization 

expenses for employment extension; per employee 

21 On stock of loose or press bales Bagasse in open in Bagasse yard situated at Factory 
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OUR MANAGEMENT AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE  

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

As per the Articles of Association of our Company, we are required to have not less than 3 (three) Directors and not more than 

15 (fifteen) Directors on its Board, subject to provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013. As on date of this Draft Letter 

of Offer, our Board consist of 10 (ten) Directors, out of which 5 (five) are Executive Directors, 5 (five) are Non-Executive 

Independent Directors. Mr. Nikhil Umesh Katti is the Managing Director of our Company. 

 

S. No. Name DIN Designation 

1. Nikhil Umesh Katti 02505734 Managing Director 

2. Kush Ramesh Katti 02777189 Whole Time Director 

3. Mukesh Kumar 02827073 Whole Time Director 

4. Ramesh Vishwanath Katti 02669306 Additional Director 

5. Sneha Nithin Dev 09762514 Additional Director 

6. Vishnukumar Mahadev Kulkarni 01756948  Independent Director 

7. Surendra Shantaveer Khot 03504813 Independent Director 

8. Pramod Pratibha Munnolli 07852508  Independent Director 

9. Basavaraj Veerappa Hagaragi 07852512  Independent Director 

10. Shivanand Basavanneppa Tubachi 07852525  Independent Director 

 

The following table sets forth certain details regarding the members of our Companyôs Board as on the date of this Draft Letter of 

Offer: 

 

S. No.  Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Occupation, Address, 

Nationality and Term 

Age Other Directorship 

1. Vishnukumar Mahadev Kulkarni  

Designation: Independent Director  

Address: Sr. No. 12/3B, Flat No. 1004, B-2, Siddharth Towers, G.A. 

Kulkarni, Behind City Pride Kothrud, Pune City, Ex. Serviceman 

Colony Pune, Maharashtra - 411038  

Date of Birth: January 10, 1959 

Occupation: Self Employed  

Nationality: Indian 

Term: 5 Years  

Date of Appointment as an Independent Director:  July 17, 2020 

DIN: 01756948  

64   Jewel Profile Pvt Ltd 

 

2. Nikhil Umesh Katti  

Designation: Managing Director 

Address: 341 Bellad Bagewadi, Belgaum , Karnataka - 591305  

Date of Birth: March 22, 1983 

Occupation: Business 

Nationality: Indian 

Term:  3 years 

Date of Appointment as MD: February 15, 2011 

DIN:02505734  

 39  Vishwaraj Infrastructure 

Private Limited 

U R Agrofresh Private 

Limited 

U R Sugar Industries 

Limited 

UK27 Hospitality Services 

(India) Limited   

3. Ramesh Katti  

Designation: Additional Director   

Address: House No. 341, Basav Circle, Bellad Bagewadi, Hukkeri 

(rural), Bellad Bagewadi, Belgaum, Karnataka - 591305  

Date of Birth: October 21, 1964  

Occupation: Business  

Nationality: Indian 

Term:  Will be decided in upcoming AGM or EGM 

Date of Appointment as an Additional Director: October 15, 2022 

DIN: 02669306  

 58   NA   

4. Kush Ramesh Katti  

Designation: Whole Time Director  

 36  Vishwaraj Encivil India 

Limited 
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Address: Bellad Bagewadi, Hukkeri, Bellad Bagewadi, Belgaum, 

Karnataka - 591305  

Date of Birth: November 14, 1986 

Occupation: Business  

Nationality: Indian 

Term: 5 Years  

Date of Appointment as Whole Time Director: June 30, 2013 

DIN: 02777189  

U R Agrofresh Private 

Limited 

U R Sugar Industries 

Limited 

  

5. Mukesh Kumar 

Designation: Whole Time Director  

Address: F-201, Mantri Paradise Bannerghatta Road, Opposite 

Reliance Mart Arekere Gate, Bangalore South, Bilekahalli, Bangalore 

South, Bangalore, Karnataka - 560076  

Date of Birth: September 28, 1963 

Occupation: Business Executive 

Nationality: Indian 

Term: 3 Years 

Date of Appointment as Whole Time Director: March 01, 2019 

DIN: 02827073  

 59   Fullon sugar private 

limited   

6. Surendra Shantaveer Khot 

Designation: Independent Director  

Address: Plot No. 116, Ramateerth Nagar, Belgaum, Karnataka - 

590016  

Date of Birth: May 29, 1945 

Occupation: Professional 

Nationality: Indian 

Term: 5 years 

Date of Appointment as an Independent Director: March 20, 2011 

DIN: 03504813  

 77   NA   

7. Pramod Pratibha Munnolli  

Designation: Independent Director  

Address: House No. 570/A, Basti Oni, Bellad Bagewadi, Hukkeri 

(rural), Bellad Bagewadi, Belgaum, Karnataka - 591305  

Date of Birth: June 10, 1985 

Occupation: Professional 

Nationality: Indian 

Term: 5 Years  

Date of Appointment as an Independent Director: September 30, 2017 

DIN: 07852508  

 37   UR Sugar Industries 

Limited   

8. Basavaraj Veerappa Hagaragi 

Designation: Independent Director  

Address: House No. 1460/42, Pragati Housing Colony, Bellad 

Bagewadi, Hukkeri (rural), Bellad Bagewadi, Belgaum, Karnataka - 

591305  

Date of Birth: March 18, 1955 

Occupation: Business 

Nationality: Indian 

Term: 5 Years 

Date of Appointment as an Independent Director: September 30, 2017 

DIN: 07852512  

 67   UR Sugar Industries 

Limited   

9. Shivanand Basavanneppa Tubachi 

Designation: Independent Director  

Address: Plot No. 278, Anugraha Shivabasava Nagar, 2nd Sector, 

Belgaum, Nehru Nagar, Hukkeri, Belgaum, Karnataka - 590010  

Date of Birth: May 30, 1950 

Occupation: Business  

Nationality: Indian 

Term: 5 Years  

Date of Appointment as an Independent Director: September 30, 2017 

DIN: 07852525  

 73   NA   
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10. Sneha Nithin Dev 

Designation: Additional Director  

Address: M, 104 Briedge Gate Way 26/1 Dr. Rak Kumar Road, 

Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, Bangalore North, Karnataka - 560055  

Date of Birth: December 02, 1985 

Occupation: Business  

Nationality: Indian 

Term: Will  be decided in upcoming AGM or EGM 

Date of Appointment as an Additional Director: October 15, 2022 

DIN: 09762514  

 37   NA  

 

Details of current and past directorship(s) in listed companies whose shares have been / were suspended from being traded 

on the stock exchanges and reasons for suspension 

 

None of our Directors is/was a Director in any listed company during the last five years before the date of filing of this Draft 

Letter of offer, whose shares have been/were suspended from being traded on the any stock exchange. 

 

Details of current and past directorship(s) in listed companies which have been/ were delisted from the stock exchange(s) 

and reasons for delisting 

 

None of our Directors are currently or have been on the Board of Directors of a public listed company whose shares have been 

or were delisted from any stock exchange. 

 

Our Key Managerial Personnel 

In addition to our Managing Director and Whole-time Director, set forth below are the details of our Key Managerial Personnel 

as on the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer: 

 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

  

Priya Manoj Dedhia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. Her contact details are set forth hereunder.  

Address: 103, Kusum Nivas CHS Ltd, Namadev Path No.3, Kai DADA Utgikar Marg, Dombivali East, Thane -421201  

Telephone: +91 9769306316  

E-mail: cs@vsil.co.in  

 

Chief Financial Officer  

Sheshagiri Hanumantarao Kulkarni, is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. His contact details are set forth hereunder.  

Address: Degulahalli Post: Devagaon Taluk: Bailhongal, Dist: Belagavi -591305  

Telephone: +91 9686698938  

E-mail: accounts@vsil.co.in  

 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  

 

Name of the Director Designation Date of Appointment 

Nikhil Umesh Katti*  Managing Director January 16, 2009 

Kush Ramesh Katti Whole Time Director June 30, 2021 

Mukesh Kumar Whole Time Director September 24, 2019 

Sheshagiri Hanumantarao Kulkarni Chief Financial Officer May 08, 2014 

Priya Manoj Dedhia Company Secretary and Compliance 

Officer 

March 22, 2021 

*Appointed as Manging Director w.e.f 15/02/2011 

 

MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION STRUCTURE  

 

The management organisation structure of the Company is depicted from the following chart: 
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SECTION V - FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 

Sr. No. Details Page Number 

1.  Unaudited Limited Reviewed Financial Results for the nine months 

period ended December 31, 2022  

 

85 to 90 

2.  Audited Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 2021-22 

 

90 to 154 
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